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Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051 
Phone: +91 – 22- 2656 4000 | mindspacereit.com 
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To, 

 The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
 Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, 
 Plot No. C/1, G- Block,  
 Bandra Kurla Complex, 
 Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400051. 

 Scrip Symbol “MINDSPACE” (Units) 

BSE Limited 
25th Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai- 400001 

Scrip Code “543217” (Units) and Scrip 
Code “960104”, “960327”, 973069 and 
“973070” (Debentures) 

Subject: Outcome of the Meeting of the Governing Board (“Board”) of K Raheja Corp Investment 
Managers LLP (“Manager”), manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“Mindspace REIT”) held on 
Friday, August 13, 2021. 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

We wish to inform you that the Governing Board of the Manager of Mindspace REIT, at its meeting held on 
Friday, August 13, 2021, has, inter-alia:  

i. approved the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements and Unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter ended June
30, 2021,

ii. declared distribution of Rs. 2,728 million / Rs. 4.60 per Unit for the quarter ended June 30, 2021. The
distribution comprises Rs. 2,509 million / Rs. 4.23 per Unit in form of dividend and Rs. 219 million /
Rs. 0.37 per Unit in form of interest.

iii. approved extension of Memorandum of Understanding dated December 16, 2019 entered by
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited, one of the special purpose vehicle of Mindspace REIT in
relation to proposed transfer of land parcel admeasuring 40.0 acres at Mindspace Pocharam,
Hyderabad to K Raheja Corp Private Limited, KRC group entity until March 31, 2022.

Further, we have enclosed:- 

1. Press Release in connection with the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements

and Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT for the

quarter ended June 30, 2021, as Annexure 1,

2. Earnings presentation for quarter ended June 30, 2021 comprising of the business and financial

performance of Mindspace REIT for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 as Annexure 2,

3. Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements and Unaudited Condensed

Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter ended June 30, 2021

along with the Limited Review Report thereon by the Statutory Auditors as Annexure 3.
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Phone: +91 – 22- 2656 4000 | mindspacereit.com 

The details of related party transactions are set out at page nos. 25 to 26 of the Unaudited 
Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements and at page nos. 55 to 56 of the Unaudited 
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT, which are enclosed as Annexure 
3. 

We also wish to inform you that record date for the distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 
June 30, 2021, will be Thursday, August 19, 2021 and the payment of distribution will be made on or 
before Saturday, August 28, 2021. 

Please take the same on your record. 

Thanking you, 
For and on behalf of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Authorised Signatory 
Name: Preeti Chheda  
Designation: Chief Financial Officer and Compliance Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Encl: As above 
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Mindspace REIT Announces Results for Q1 FY2022 

Leases 1.2 msf in the Portfolio during the quarter 

Under-construction Hyderabad ROFO Asset achieves pre-leasing of 1.8 msf 

Declares Distribution of INR 4.60 per unit  

Mumbai, 13 August 2021: Mindspace Business Parks REIT (BSE: 543217 | NSE: MINDSPACE) 
(‘Mindspace REIT’), owner and developer of quality Grade A office portfolio located in four key office 
markets of India, reported results for the quarter ended 30 June 2021.  

Performance Update 

• Gross leasing remained strong at 1.2 msf, with an average rent of INR 60 psf/month

• Under-construction ROFO asset, Commerzone Madhapur, Hyderabad achieved pre-leasing of
1.8 msf

• Achieved Re-leasing spread of 56.3% on 1.1 msf of area in the Portfolio

• Proposed re-development1 at Mindspace Madhapur, increasing leasable area from 0.36 msf to
an estimated 1.311 msf

• Portfolio size to potentially increase from 30.2 msf to 31.2 msf due to the proposed
re-development

• Continued to collect more than 99% of Gross Contracted Rentals

• Committed Occupancy of 84.4%

• Same Store Committed Occupancy of 84.4%

Financial Update 

• Declared distribution of INR 2,728 Mn / INR 4.60 p.u.

• Annualised distribution yield of 6.7% on issue price of INR 275 p.u.

• Net Operating Income of INR 3,596 Mn

• Average cost of debt further reduced to 7.0% as on 30 June 2021

• Robust balance sheet with low net debt to market value of 14.9%

Distribution 

The Governing Board of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP, Manager to Mindspace REIT 

approved a distribution of INR 2,728 Mn or INR 4.60 p.u. for Q1 FY2022 at its meeting held earlier 

today. Dividend, which is tax-exempt in the hand of unitholders, forms significant portion of 

distribution (INR 4.23 p.u., 92.0%) while interest (INR 0.37 p.u.) forms 8.0%. The record date for the 

distribution is 19 August 2021, payment of the distribution shall be processed on or before 28 August 

2021. 

1 Subject to final design and receipt of requisite approvals 

         Annexure 1
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Other Updates 
 

• Facilitated c.60,000 vaccinations for our tenants, employees, and construction workers  

• Assisted in capacity enhancement of 120 beds at Kondapur Government Area Hospital, 
Hyderabad 

• Received Platinum certification from IGBC for B3 at Gera Commerzone Kharadi & LEED Gold 
certification from USGBC for B12D at Mindspace Madhapur 

• Mindspace REIT committed to 100% renewable electricity use by 20502, India’s first real-estate 
entity to join Climate Group’s RE100 initiative 

• SEBI has reduced the trading lot size to 1 unit, a welcome move, expected to improve market 
depth and result in wider investor participation 

 

Speaking on the results, Mr. Vinod Rohira, Chief Executive Officer, Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

said,  

“At Mindspace REIT we continue to demonstrate strong operating and financial performance, amidst 

a challenging external environment. Our gross leasing for the quarter remained healthy at 1.2 msf as 

existing tenants continued to expand footprint, while we also added new tenants. Robust hiring outlook 

and a healthy deal pipeline of technology firms supported by sustained demand and investments in the 

sector, augurs well for Grade A player like us. We remain confident of demand revival on the back of 

rapid vaccinations, gradual relaxation of restrictions across our micro-markets and strong desire to 

return to office amongst our tenants.” 

Investor Communication and Quarterly Investor Call Details  
Mindspace REIT has disclosed the following information pertaining to the financial results and business 

performance (i) Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim and Unaudited Condensed Consolidated 

Interim financial statements for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 and (ii) an earnings presentation 

covering Q1 FY2022 results. All these documents are available on Mindspace REIT’s website at 

https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor-relations/financial-updates/#ir 

Mindspace REIT is also hosting an earnings conference call on 16 August 2021 at 16:00 hours Indian 

Standard Time to discuss the Q1 FY2022 results. The dial in details is available on our website at 

https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor-relations/calendar#ir and have also been filed with the 

stock exchanges.  

A replay of the call and the transcript will be available on Mindspace REIT’s website at 

https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor-relations/calendar#ir  

Disclaimer 
This press release (“Press Release”) (a) is for information purpose only without regards to specific 

objectives, financial situations or needs of any particular person, (b) comprises information given in 

summary form and neither purports to be complete nor guarantees that such information is true and 

accurate, (c) should not be considered as a recommendation to any person to purchase / subscribe to  

any units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments issued or proposed to be issued by  

 
2 Across areas serviced and maintained with the Portfolio 

https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor-relations/financial-updates/#ir
https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor-relations/calendar#ir
https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor-relations/calendar#ir
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Mindspace REIT (d) does not constitute or form part of any offer for sale or subscription of or 

solicitation or invitation of any offer to buy or subscribe for, or advertisement with respect to, the 

purchase or sale of any units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace 

REIT in any jurisdiction. 

This Press Release may include statements that are / may deemed to be, ‘forward-looking statements’ 

which involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that 

may or may not occur in the future. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future 

performance. Any projection of future income or performance should be viewed merely as a fair 

estimate of the management of Mindspace REIT, which may be dependent on several factors and in 

no manner should be construed as an indication of its reflection in the market price of units or any 

other securities / instruments issued or proposed to be issued by Mindspace REIT. No representation, 

warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made or assurance given that such statements, views, 

projections or forecasts, if any, are correct or that any objectives specified herein will be achieved. 

None of Mindspace REIT, or its manager viz. K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP, or any of our 

affiliates or advisors, as such, (a) make any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to, 

and/or accept any responsibility or liability with respect to, the fairness, accuracy, completeness or 

correctness of any information or opinions contained herein, (b) accept any liability whatsoever for 

any loss, howsoever, arising from any use or reliance on this Press Release or (c) assume responsibility 

to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements on the basis of any subsequent 

development, information or events, or otherwise. The information contained herein is subject to 

change without notice and past performance is not indicative of future results. 

This Press Release has not been and will not be reviewed or approved by a regulatory authority in India 
or elsewhere or by any stock exchange in India or elsewhere and any prospective investor investing in 
units/debentures or other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT should consult its own advisors 
before taking any decision in relation thereto.  

About Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

Mindspace Business Parks REIT, sponsored by K Raheja Corp group, listed on the Indian bourses in August 2020. 
The REIT owns quality office portfolios located in four key office markets of India, namely Mumbai Region, Pune, 
Hyderabad, and Chennai. It has a total leasable area of 31.2 msf, with superior infrastructure and amenities, and 
is one of the largest Grade-A office portfolios in India. The portfolio consists of 5 integrated business parks and 
5 quality independent office assets. It has a diversified and high-quality tenant base, with over 165 tenants as of 
30 June 2021. Most of the buildings in the portfolio are either Gold or Platinum Green Building Certified 
(IGBC/LEED). The assets provide a community-based ecosystem and have been developed to meet the evolving 
standards of tenants, and the demands of ‘new age businesses’, making it amongst the preferred options for 
both multinational and domestic corporations. To know more visit www.mindspacereit.com 

For further details please contact: 

Investor Relations Corporate Communication 
Kedar Kulkarni 
ir@mindspacereit.com 

Cheryl Waldiya 
mediarelations@mindspacereit.com 
Phone: 9322198940 

http://www.mindspacereit.com/
mailto:ir@mindspacereit.com
mailto:mediarelations@mindspacereit.com
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Q1 FY22 

Results Presentation

13th August 2021

                 Annexure 2
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By attending the meeting where this presentation (“Presentation”) is made, or by reading the Presentation materials, you agree to be bound by the following limitations:

This Presentation (a) is for information purposes only without regards to specific objectives, financial situations or needs of any particular person, (b) should not be considered as a
recommendation to any person to purchase / subscribe to any units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments issued or proposed to be issued by Mindspace Business Parks
REIT (”Mindspace REIT”).

This Presentation and the information contained herein does not constitute or form part of any offer for sale or subscription of or solicitation or invitation of any offer to buy or subscribe for,
or advertisement with respect to, the purchase or sale of any units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT in any jurisdiction, and no part of it shall form
the basis of or be relied upon by any person in connection with any contract or commitment whatsoever.

The material that follows is a presentation of general background information. We don’t assume responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements on the
basis of any subsequent development, information or events, or otherwise. This Presentation comprises information given in summary form and does not purport to be complete and it
cannot be guaranteed that such information is true and accurate. This Presentation includes statements that are, or may deemed to be, “forward-looking statements”. By their nature,
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance including those relating to general business plans and strategy, future outlook and growth prospects, and future developments in its
businesses and its competitive and regulatory environment. Any projection of future income or performance should be viewed merely as a fair estimate of the management of Mindspace
REIT, which may be dependent on several factors and in no manner should be construed as an indication of its reflection in the market price of units, debentures, bonds or any other
securities / instruments issued or proposed to be issued by Mindspace REIT. No representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made or assurance given that such

statements, views, projections or forecasts, if any, are correct or that any objectives specified herein will be achieved. Neither we, nor any of our affiliates or advisors, as such, make any
representation or warranty, express or implied, as to, and do not accept any responsibility or liability with respect to, the fairness, accuracy, completeness or correctness of any information
or opinions contained herein and accept no liability whatsoever for any loss, howsoever, arising from any use or reliance on this Presentation or its contents or otherwise arising in
connection therewith. Unless otherwise stated in this Presentation, the information contained herein is based on management information and estimates. The information contained herein
is subject to change without notice and past performance is not indicative of future results.

The units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act, 1933, as amended (“U.S.
Securities Act”), or the securities laws of any applicable jurisdiction and these materials do not constitute or form a part of any offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to purchase or subscribe
for units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments in the United States of America or elsewhere in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration
under the U.S. Securities Act or the securities laws of any such jurisdiction. No units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT may be offered or sold in the
United States of America without registration or an applicable exemption from registration requirements under the U.S. Securities Act. By accessing this Presentation, each investor is
deemed to represent that it is and any customer it represents are either (a) qualified institutional buyers (within the meaning of Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act) or (b) outside the
United States of America (within the meaning of Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act), and is a sophisticated investor who possesses sufficient investment expertise to understand the
risks involved in the offering.

This document is just a Presentation and is not intended to be a “prospectus” or “draft offer document” or “offer document” or “final offer document” or “offer letter” or “offering
memorandum” (as defined or referred to, as the case may be, under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules notified thereunder, and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended, or any other applicable law). This
Presentation has not been and will not be reviewed or approved by a regulatory authority in India or elsewhere or by any stock exchange in India or elsewhere.

If we should at any time commence an offering of units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT, any decision to invest in any such offer to subscribe for
or acquire units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT, must be based wholly on the information contained in an offer document or offering circular
(including the risk factors mentioned therein) issued or to be issued in connection with any such offer and not on the contents hereof. Any prospective investor investing in such invitation,
offer or sale of securities by Mindspace REIT should consult its own advisors before taking any decision in relation thereto.

This Presentation is not intended to be an offer or placement for the purposes of the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (“AIFMD”), and any “marketing” as defined under
AIFMD may only take place in accordance with the national private placement regimes of the applicable European Economic Area jurisdictions.

Disclaimer
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Note: 

1. All the financial numbers in the presentation have been rounded off

unless otherwise stated

2. Mindspace Business Parks REIT is referred to as Mindspace REIT in the

presentation

3. “The Square Avenue 61 (BKC)” & “The Square Signatures Business

Chambers (Nagar Road - Pune)” are referred as “The Square BKC” and

“The Square Nagar Road” respectively in the presentation
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Key Highlights 

Operating Highlights1

1.2 msf

Gross Leasing

56.3 %

Re-leasing Spread (1)

on 1.1 msf

1.0 msf

Increase in Total 
Leasable Area 
primarily due to 
re-development

1. Re-leasing spread includes spread on extensions and vacant area leasing

2. Collections are as of 31 Jul 21

3. Total Contracted Rentals is the sum of Base Rentals and fit-out rent to be invoiced for 

Occupied Area that is expected to be received from the tenants pursuant to the agreements 

entered with them  

4. Completely leased KRC Group area, signed post Jun 21 quarter end

5. Annualized distribution yield basis Q1 FY22 distribution calculated on issue price of INR 275 p.u. 

(Yield on closing price of INR 283 p.u. as on 30 Jun 21 stood at 6.5%)

6. Net Debt as on 30 Jun 21, Market value as of 31 Mar 21; For the purpose of LTV calculation, Net 

Debt is considered post accounting & minority adjustment

7. Across common areas serviced and maintained within the Portfolio

8. As on 31 Jul 21

9. Applicable from 11 Aug 21

>99 %

Collections of Total 
Contracted 
Rentals (2)(3)

Financial Highlights2

INR 3,596 Mn

NOI for Q1 FY22  

7.0 %

Weighted Average 
Cost of Debt

14.9 %

Low Net Debt to 
Market Value (6)

Trading lot reduced 
to 1 (9), expected to 

improve liquidity

Committed to 100% 
renewable energy 
usage by 2050(7)

60k
Vaccinations 

facilitated for tenants, 
employees and 

construction workers

Platinum certification from 
IGBC (B-3, Gera 
Commerzone Kharadi) & 
LEED Gold certification 
from USGBC (B-12D, 
Mindspace Madhapur)

Enhancing public 
healthcare infra to 

tackle the pandemic

(8)

1.8 msf

ROFO leasing update: 
1.8 msf pre-leased at 

Commerzone Madhapur 
(ROFO asset)(4)

6.7 %

Annualized 
Distribution yield(5)

INR 2,728 Mn

Distribution for Q1 FY22 
(INR 4.60 p.u.)

Other Highlights3
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Leasing Overview – Q1 FY22

1.2 msf leases signed across 10 tenants and achieved 56.3%(1) Re-leasing spread on 1.1 msf(1)

56.3 %

Average Re-leasing Spread(1)

1.2 msf

Gross Leasing

Area Re-leased (2)

Note: All leasing numbers include LOIs signed
1. Includes spread on leasing of vacant area as on 31 Mar 21

2. Includes Re-leasing of contractual expiries and leasing of early 
terminations

Q1 FY22

Q1 FY22 - Split Basis Type of Tenants

Vacant area leased

INR 60 psf/month

Average Rent for Area Leased

0.6 msf

0.5 msf

New area leased 0.1 msf

Q1 FY22 – Gross leasing

Assets Location Type Tenants
Leased 

(ksf)

Madhapur Hyderabad
Vacant area 
leased

Smartworks 444

Airoli (E) Mumbai Re-leased Wipro 345

Madhapur Hyderabad Re-leased Thomson Reuters 130

Madhapur Hyderabad Re-leased Knoah 93

Others 155

Total 1,169

Leased to 

new tenants

9.1%

Leased to 

existing tenants

90.9%
Gross 

Leasing

1.2 msf

Gross 

Leasing

1.2 msf
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Delivered Sustainable Financial Performance

Performance driven by efficient cost management

Revenue from 

Operations

(INR Mn)

NOI

(INR Mn)

NOI for Q1 FY22
marginally up on sequential basis

NOI for Q1 FY22 driven by cost 
optimization

Maintained over 80% NOI margin

Key Points

16,293(1)FY21 13,741

Q4 FY21 4,265(1) 3,579

Q1 FY22 4,197 3,596

Note:
1. Excludes revenue from works contract services in Gera Commerzone Kharadi
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Mindspace REIT Declares Q1 FY22 Distribution

Over 90% distributions are in the form of tax-exempt dividends

Apr 21 to Jun 21Period

13 August 21
Declaration Date

19 August 21Record Date

Payment Date
On or before 

28 August 21

Key Dates

INR 2,728 MnDistribution Amount

Dividend

₹4.23

92.0%

Interest

₹0.37

8.0%

Distribution 

Yield (1)

Q1 FY22 Distribution of INR 2,728 Mn, INR 4.60 per unit resulting in Distribution Yield(1) of 6.7%

593,018,182Outstanding Units

INR 4.60Distribution per unit

Distribution 
per unit

INR 4.60

6.7%

Note:
1. Annualized distribution yield basis Q1 FY22 distribution calculated on issue price of INR 275 p.u. (Yield on closing price of INR 283 p.u. as on 

30 Jun 21 stood at 6.5%)
2. Payout as a % of REIT NDCF

Payout 

Ratio(2)

c.100%
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Portfolio
Overview
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Portfolio Overview

1. Comprises 23.8 msf Completed Area, 1.8 msf of Under-Construction area   
and 5.6 msf Future Development Area 

2. Market Rent of INR 63.8 psf (FY22) considered for calculating MTM potential 
(basis management estimates)

3. As of 31 Mar 21 and adjusted for completion status as of 30 Jun 21

4. For the purpose of LTV calculation, Net Debt as of 30 Jun 21 and Market 
Value as on 31 Mar 21 has been considered post accounting & minority 
interest adjustment

% split by Total Leasable Area

6.6 years

WALE

31.2 msf

Total Leasable Area(1)

INR 57.1 psf

In-place Rent

11.6%
Mark to Market Potential(2)

14.9%
Net Debt to Market Value(3)(4)

84.4%
Same Store Committed 

Occupancy

Mumbai 
Region (41.0%)

Pune (16.0%)

Hyderabad (40.4%)

Chennai (2.6%)

Mindspace REIT is one of the largest Grade-A office portfolios in India

84.4%
Committed Occupancy

91.7%
Market Value(3) of 

Completed Area
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Five Integrated Business Parks

Mindspace Airoli West

Mumbai Region | 5.1 msf
Gera Commerzone Kharadi 

Pune| 2.6 msf (2)

Mindspace Airoli East 

Mumbai Region | 6.8 msf  

Mindspace Madhapur

Hyderabad | 11.6 msf(1)

Commerzone Yerwada

Pune | 1.7 msf (2)

Completed Area: 9.8 msf; Committed Occupancy: 90.1%

Note: Above areas include Under-Construction Area and Future Development Area

1. Leasable Area increased due to potential increase in area on account of redevelopment of 1A-1B (subject to approvals & final design)

2. Total Leasable Area for these assets comprises only Asset SPVs’ share of the area 

Completed Area: 4.7 msf; Committed Occupancy: 89.1%

Completed Area: 3.6 msf;  

Committed Occupancy: 68.6%

Completed Area: 1.3 msf;  

Committed Occupancy: 93.1%

Completed Area: 1.7 msf;  

Committed Occupancy: 98.4%
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Five Quality Independent Office Assets

Paradigm, Mindspace Malad

Mumbai Region | 0.7 msf

Commerzone Porur 

Chennai | 0.8 msf (1)

Note: Above areas include Under-Construction Area and Future Development Area

1. Total Leasable Area for these assets comprises only Asset SPVs’ share of the area

Completed Area: 0.8 msf; Leased: 67 ksf Completed Area: 0.7 msf;  Committed Occupancy: 94.0%

The Square, Nagar Road

Pune | 0.8 msf

Completed Area: 0.7 msf;  

Committed Occupancy: 100%

Mindspace Pocharam

Hyderabad | 1.0 msf 

Completed Area: 0.4 msf;  

Committed Occupancy: 71.1%

The Square, BKC

Mumbai Region | 0.1 msf

Completed Area: 0.1 msf; 

Refurbishment under process; Leased: 32 ksf

Perspective
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Marquee Tenant Base

Share of foreign MNCs in 

rentals (1)

81.8%

Share of top 10 tenants in 

rentals (1)

38.6%

Share of Fortune 500 

companies in rentals (1)(2)

34.2%

Technology Financial Services Diversified

Leading MNCs and Fortune 500 companies across sectors

Technology Financial Services Diversified

Note :
1. Represents % of Gross Contracted Rentals as on 30 Jun 21
2. Fortune 500 Global List of 2021

Syntel

Accenture Wipro

Here Solutions

Verizon Fiserv

Barclays

UBS

BNY Mellon

Bank of America

Qualcomm Amazon

Schlumberger

CitiusIBM Allstate UHG Model N
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Technology 

(Dev. and 

Processes)

44.5%

Financial 

Services

17.5%

Telecom & 

Media

11.9%

Engineering & 

Mfg.

7.1%

Healthcare & 

Pharma

6.1%

E-Commerce

2.9%

Professional 

Services

3.3%

Others

6.7%

Diversified Portfolio of Marquee Tenants

Diversified tenant mix across sectors
% split by Gross Contracted Rentals

(1)

Top 10 tenants Gross Contracted Rentals contribution (38.6%) 
% of total Gross Contracted Rentals

(1)

Reduced concentration risk with top 10 tenants contributing 38.6% (Jun 21) vs. 41.6% (Mar 20)

Note:
1. Basis Gross Contracted Rentals as on 30 Jun 21

UBS

Total 

Tenants

165+

6.8%

5.5%

4.5%

4.5%

3.4%

3.1%

3.0%

2.9%

2.8%

2.3%

Qualcomm

Wipro

Verizon

# of parks

2

2

1

Cognizant

Accenture 

Barclays

L&T

Amazon

Schlumberger

2

2

1

1

3

1

2

New entrant to top 10
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2.3 
1.7 

1.0 

0.2 

-

FY22 FY23 FY24

Early Expiry as on Jun 21

Contractual & Early Expiry as on Mar 21

Lease Expiry Profile 

Successfully re-leased around 70% of FY21 expiries (1)

Note:
1. Excluding 0.36msf area under re-development at 1A and 1B
2. Re-leasing spread includes spread on extensions and vacant area

3. Excludes early re-leasing of 175 ksf during the quarter
4. Gross rent as % of total rent of Completed Area as of 30 Jun 21
5. FY22 data pertains to 1.3 msf expiries between Q2-Q4 FY22

Strong re-leasing achieved despite challenging 
leasing environment

Track record of achieving Re-leasing spread        
across parks

7.3%Expiries(4)(5)

25.4%MTM 

Opportunity (5)
12.4%

5.4%

16.7%

Area Re-leased (since Apr 18)

msf

30.2%
Re-leasing

Spread

Average 

Re-leasing Spread(2)
27.8%50.2 54.9

2.4 (3) 1.6

1.2 1.1

2.2

0.4

FY19 FY20 FY21 Q1 FY22

1.0

57.8

5.8%%

%

23.1% 19.1% 56.3%

Area Expiry (msf)

0.5

Rent at Expiry 

(INR psf)

(0.04)

0.4 msf
Re-leasing 

visibility 
in Q2 FY22

1.1

Area Re-leased
Re-leasing of area vacated in FY21

0.4 msf
Re-leased out 

of Q1 FY22 
expiries

0.2

Early Renewals
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Ability to Attract New Tenants along with Existing Tenant Retention

Note:
1. For the period Apr 18 – Jun 21; Includes Committed and Pre-Leased Area
2. Re-leasing spread includes spread on extensions and vacant area

10.1 msf leased since Apr 18, including 5.6 msf at 27.8% Re-leasing spread

New Area leased
% split by area (1)

Existing Area Re-leased
% split by area (1)

Existing 

Tenants

New Tenants 

Added

Smartworks

Weatherford

Princeton Digital Chalet

Knoah Wipro

Parexel

Thomson Reuters

Verizon

Existing 

Tenants

76.1%

New 

Tenants

23.9%Existing 

Tenants

34.8%

New 

Tenants

65.2%

5.6 msf

27.8% Re-leasing 

spread (2)

4.5 msf

Leased to 

59 tenants

Leases signed in Q1 FY22

Charnham

Telstra SchlumbergerCitius

Intelliteach
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Financial
Updates
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Stable NOI Growth Driven by Effective Cost Management 

Note:

1. Others include Commerzone Porur & The Square BKC

2. Inter company eliminations is with respect to Facility Management Business 

Assets 
Revenue from Operations (INR Mn) NOI (INR Mn) % of NOI 

Q4 FY21 Q1 FY22 Q4 FY21 Q1 FY22 Q1 FY22

Mindspace Airoli (E) 895 884 707 697 19.4%

Mindspace Airoli (W) 529 475 407 392 10.9%

Mindspace Malad 185 185 161 160 4.5%

Mumbai Region 1,608 1,554 1,275 1,250 34.8%

Gera Commerzone Kharadi 326 327 258 288 8.0%

The Square Nagar Road 116 109 86 84 2.3%

Commerzone Yerwada 398 391 325 325 9.0%

Pune 839 827 669 696 19.4%

Mindspace Madhapur 1,776 1,783 1,569 1,591 44.2%

Mindspace Pocharam 25 23 16 18 0.5%

Hyderabad 1,801 1,806 1,585 1,609 44.7%

Facility Management Business 216 164 63 50 1.4%

Others
(1)

8 14 (13) (8) (0.2%)

Inter Company Eliminations(2) (208) (156)

Total 4,265 4,197 3,579 3,596 100.0%

NOI (Q4 vs Q1) - Reasons for variances

▪ Mindspace Airoli West – Lower due to exits in Q4 FY21 and straight lining adjustment, compensated by increase in Net Power Income

▪ Commerzone Kharadi – Increase due to higher property tax booking in Q4 FY21 and increase in Net Power Income

▪ Mindspace Madhapur – Higher due to Rent + Fit out commencement for new area, escalation achieved, increase in Net CAM Margin, 
straight lining adjustment and tenant lock-in compensation, compensated by exits in Q4 FY21 & Q1 FY22

▪ Facility Management Business – Lower due to limited tenant physical occupancy 
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Q1 FY22: NDCF Build-up 

Particulars (INR Mn) Q1 FY22

Revenue from Operations 4,197

Property Taxes & Insurance (139)

Other Direct Operating Expenses (462)

Net Operating Income (NOI) 3,596

Property Management Fees (105)

Net Other Expenses (143)

EBITDA 3,348

Cash Taxes (Net of Refunds) (433)

Working Capital changes and other adjustments (1) (778)

Cashflow from Operations 2,137

Capex incl cap. Interest (1) (1,141)

Net Debt (repayment) / drawdown (2) 2,563

Finance Costs paid for the period (excluding interest to REIT)(3) (288)

Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT (233)

NDCF (SPV Level) (4) 3,038

Net Distributions from SPV to REIT 2,851

Other Inflows / (Outflows) at REIT Level (119)

NDCF (REIT Level) 2,732

Distribution 2,728

Dividend 2,508

Interest 220

1. INR 204 Mn has been transferred from Capex to Working Capital 
changes pursuant to lease commencement of Fit outs

2. Net of investments in fixed deposits and Mutual funds

3. Net of interest income
4. Net of repayment of REIT Debt by SPV which was further reinvested 

by REIT
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Low Leverage Offers Balance Sheet Headroom for Future Growth

Strategy to embed a blend of short term and long-term debt with a mix of instruments

INR 4.5 Bn

Undrawn Committed 
Facilities

CRISIL : CCR AAA/Stable(1)

ICRA : ICRA AAA (Stable)(1)

Note:

1. CRISIL rating re-affirmed basis rating note Jul 21; ICRA rating note 
Aug 20

2. Net Debt and Market value as of 30 Jun 21; For the purpose of 
Net Debt to Market Value calculation, Net Debt is considered 
post accounting & minority interest adjustment 

Composition of debt

14.9%
Net Debt to 

Market Value(2)

INR 37 Bn

Net Debt

Lease Rental 

Discounting

60.0%

Fixed Cost 

Debt

28.4%

Overdraft / 

Line of Credit

11.6%

Total 

Gross Debt

INR 40 Bn

9.2%

7.0%

Mar-20 Jun-21

Reduction in weighted average cost of debt (p.a.)

Fixed Cost Debt – Avg. Cost 6.5% p.a.

Variable Cost Debt  - Avg. Cost 7.2% p.a.

Average Term to Maturity 6.2 yearsDebt at REIT Level
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Projects 
Updates
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▪ Leasable area: 0.7 msf

▪ Status: Level 8 Shuttering WIP

▪ Estimated completion : Q1 FY23

▪ Balance cost: INR 1,660 Mn

▪ Awarded IGBC Gold Pre-

Certification

▪ Active on-going discussions for 

leasing

▪ Leasable area: 1.0 msf

▪ Status: Façade WIP

▪ Received OC for 2 office floors

▪ Estimated completion: Phased 

completion targeted over FY22 to 

match with the demand

▪ Balance cost: INR 1,089 Mn

▪ SEZ de-notification received

▪ Leased/ Pre-leased: 193k sf 

▪ Leasable area: 0.1 msf

▪ Status: OC received in Q1 FY22

▪ Balance cost: INR 108 Mn 

▪ Leased to Chalet Hotels

▪ Rent Commencement – Q3 FY22

Development Progress & Other Updates

Note: As of 30 Jun 21
1. Ongoing projects / projects commencing in FY22 INR 13,451 Mn, recently 

completed projects INR 936 Mn, upgrades INR 2,679 Mn and fit-out / 
general development INR 834 Mn

2. MoU – Memorandum of Understanding 
3. MBPPL – Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited
4. KRCPL – K Raheja Corp Private Limited (a KRC Group entity)

Mumbai Region

Mindspace Madhapur (B22) Commerzone Kharadi (B5)

Balance Capex – INR 17,900(1) Mn (excluding approval cost)

Pune

Mindspace Airoli, West (B9)

Hyderabad

MoU(2) dated 16 Dec 19 entered by MBPPL(3) in relation to proposed transfer of 40.0 acres land parcel at Pocharam, 

Hyderabad to KRCPL(4) has been extended until 31 Mar 22, on account of pending receipt of SEZ de-notification approval
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Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad – Upgrade (1/2)

Elevated boardwalks for ease of movement Appealing entrance

Well spread F&B spaces across the Park Security cabin
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Final IntentCurrent Status

Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad – Upgrade (2/2)

Kiosks – Finishes WIP Perspective

Façade Upgrade for Bldg. 3A & 3B commenced Perspective
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Mindspace Airoli East, Mumbai Region - Upgrade

Building 5&6 Façade WIP Drop-off Lobby Area- Wall art is in progress

Club House Food Court - WIP

Current Status

Perspective

Final Intent
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The Square BKC, Mumbai Region– Upgrade

Entrance Lobby Façade WIP Perspective

East Elevation WIP Perspective

Final IntentCurrent Status
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ESG via 
Value Creation
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Key Achievements and Awards  

Environment friendly project 
of the year - By Estate Awards

Mindspace Airoli West

First real estate entity from 
India to join the EV100 & 
RE100 initiative

Awarded 

Five Star rating across 4 parks

Sword of Honour for 2 parks

COVID 19 Assurance Statement 
for 6 parks

Most environment friendly 
commercial space

Mindspace Airoli West

Commerzone Porur

Green 

Buildings

36(1)

Total “Green 

Building” 

Footprint

>18.7 msf

of the Green 

Buildings are 

Gold or Platinum

100%

Note:

1. Includes pre-certified buildings

Received 

certification

across 5 parks

Commercial Project of the 
year - By Realty Conclave 

Gera Commerzone Kharadi

45001
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Our Commitment to Build an ESG Centric Ecosystem

Robust 
Corporate 

Governance

Organic 
Farming

Waste 
Management

Green 
Sustainable 

Development

Tenant 
Engagement

Sewage 
Treatment

Electrical 
charging 
stations

Renewable 
Energy 
through 
Solar PV 
Panels

Integration of sustainability into the fabric of assets, operations and culture

Preserving 

Nature
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Mindspace REIT joins Climate Group’s RE 100 Initiative

• Opportunity to encourage tenants to make the switch 

to clean energy

• Installed solar capacity of 1.8 MW across 2 parks,

normalized(2) power consumption in our parks is over 

100 GWh(3)

• In furtherance of our agenda towards building a 

sustainable ecosystem and minimizing environmental 

impact

Phased transformation to renewable energy (1)

35%
50%

100%

2025 2030 2050

India’s first Real-Estate entity to join RE 100, committing to 100% renewable energy by 2050

Note:
1. Across common areas serviced and maintained within the Portfolio

2. For the period between Jan 19 to Dec 19
3. GWh – Gigawatt hour
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• Extending support to HCSC and SCSC to assist frontline warriors 
and marginalized Covid affected patients

• Initiatives aimed at boosting healthcare eco-system positively 
impacting the local communities

Spearheading Multi-pronged Initiatives to Tackle the Pandemic

Hospital floor addition

Relief work recognized by Hyderabad Police 

Commissioner

Strengthening Healthcare Infrastructure in Hyderabad1

• Extending support to construct additional floor at a Government 
hospital in Kondapur, Hyderabad

• Floor addition to enable capacity enhancement of 120 beds

• Project has been completed within a short span of 45 days and is 
ready for handover to government

Assisting frontline warriors & marginalized Covid patients 2

Initiatives

• Oxygen concentrators

• ICU beds

• Ventilators

• Ambulance services 

• Emergency drugs 

• Tele-consultation and tele-
medicine

• Shelter for children of COVID 
affected families

• Isolation centre
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Embarking on a Journey to Safety, Facilitated Vaccination of c.60k People 

No. of Parks

Tenant workforce

Staff & families 

Construction workers

Total No. of Vaccines 

Facilitated

7 150

1,200c.59k

c.60k

Fortis

Apollo

S.L. Raheja Aditya Birla

Columbia Asia Cloud 9

Vaccination Drive

Partnered Hospitals
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Price 
Performance & 

Unitholding
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✓ Increase in unit price since listing
(3)

Distribution yield
(2)

Stable Price Performance

Note: As on 30 Jun 21
1. Rebased to 100
2. Annualized distribution yield basis Q1 FY22 distribution calculated 

on issue price of INR 275 p.u. (Yield on closing price of INR 283 p.u. 
as on 30 Jun 21 stood at 6.5%)

3. Increase is over offer price 

Price movement of Mindspace REIT since listing
(1)

6.7%

2.9%

Price at listing date

As on 30 Jun 21

High since listing

Low since listing

INR 304 p.u.

10 years

INR 283 p.u.

INR 342 p.u.

INR 275 p.u.

Offer Price INR 275 p.u.

Stock Symbol – NSE : Mindspace; BSE : 543217

Part of “MSCI India Domestic Small Cap Index“ and various other MSCI and FTSE indices

(Nifty: +42.3%)

(Mindspace REIT: +2.8%)

(Nifty Realty: +68.6%)

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Mindspace REIT Nifty Nifty Realty



mindspace re i t . c om 35

Unitholding Summary

Unitholding Pattern as on 30 Jun 21

Note:

1. As of 30 Jun 21

Marquee Investors (1)

Unitholding Summary

(593 Mn units)

(Market Cap : INR 168 Bn) (1)

Sponsors & Sponsor 
Group 

63%

Public 
(Others)

37%

Blackstone

Vanguard 

Group

IIFL AIF

Capital Group

Fidelity Group

HSBC Global 

GIC

Kotak AIF

SBI Life

Sponsor & Sponsor 

Group

63.2%

Foreign Portfolio 

Investors

14.3%

Non Institutions

11.9%
Blackstone 

Group

9.2%

Alternative 

Investment 

Funds

1.3%

Mutual 

Funds

0.1%

Total Unitholders - 11,380
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Market
Updates
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1,300 

1,450 - 1,700 

2020 2025E

Robust Fundamentals and Outlook to Drive IT-BPM Demand Momentum

Robust hiring outlook on the back of pipeline, we anticipate need to return to office for talent 

management and retention

Indian IT-BPM Revenue (USD Bn)

190 

300- 350 

2020 2025E

GCC Revenue (USD Bn)

Source: Cushman & Wakefield, “GCC Value Proposition for India” report by Deloitte and NASSCOM

34 

60 - 85 

2020 2025E

# of Firms Setting up GCCs

1.3 

2.2 - 3.0 

2020 2025E

Direct Employment (Mn)

Pandemic has fueled digital transformation leading to strong outlook for GCCs

Employment Trends

▪ IT- BPM is the Topmost Private Sector in the Country with 8% contribution 

to GDP

▪ Industry employs 4.47 Mn individuals

▪ Top 10 IT firms have exponentially increased headcount on QoQ 

basis during the pandemic 

▪ In 2021, 89% firms are planning to expand workforce with 56% planning 

significant increase (>5%)

Estimated to lead to demand revival for Grade-A Office spaces as the normalcy returns
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Mumbai Region

Grade-A Office Stock H1 CY2021

Supply, net absorption and vacancy trend analysis – Mumbai Region Micro-Markets

Thane Belapur Rd BKC & Annex Malad-Goregaon

BKC & 

Annex 

10.2%

Thane 

Belapur Rd 

16.6%

Malad -

Goregaon 

14.7%

Andheri 

and Powai 

20.8%

Thane 

9.8%

Worli-Lower 

Parel 

10.2%

Others 

17.7%

2.1

1.7

0.6

1.4

1.0

0.2

1.6

0.8

0.0 -0.1

18.8%

17.3%
15.2% 22.6%

27.9%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

 (0.50)

 -

 0.50

 1.00

 1.50

 2.00

 2.50

2017 2018 2019 2020 H1 2021

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy

0.9

0.0

1.0

0.3

0.5

0.7
0.6

1.3

-0.4
0.1

23.1%

15.8%

11.0%

17.5%
20.2%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

 (0.60)

 (0.40)

 (0.20)

 -

 0.20

 0.40

 0.60

 0.80

 1.00

 1.20

 1.40

2017 2018 2019 2020 H1 2021

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy

Stock

99.6 msf

Primarily BFSI and IT-BPM segment tenants 

Note – Source: Cushman & Wakefield, supply and net absorption data is in msf

1. Thane Belapur Rd includes Airoli East and Airoli West

(1)

0.0 0.0

1.2

0.0

1.2

0.2

0.1

0.9

0.1

1.1
19.1%

18.0%

19.0%

18.4%

…

16.0%

16.5%

17.0%

17.5%

18.0%

18.5%

19.0%

19.5%

 -

 0.20

 0.40

 0.60

 0.80

 1.00

 1.20

 1.40

2017 2018 2019 2020 H1 2021

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy

Key Updates

▪ Leasing to gain momentum in second half of 2021driven 

by BFSI, engineering and manufacturing amongst others

▪ Currently vacancy in Thane Belapur road is high primarily 

due to new supply and subdued demand

▪ Trans harbor sea link & new airport expected to shift the 

demand epicenter, the micro market is seeing 

increasing traction from BFSI sector

▪ In Malad-Goregaon, vacancies are expected to decline 

due to high pre-commitments

▪ Rents in our micro-markets have remained stable since 

2019 and are expected to remain stable in the near 
term
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Hyderabad

Grade-A Office Stock H1 CY2021 Supply, net absorption and vacancy trend analysis 

Micro-Markets
(1)

: Madhapur

Technology Sector is the Dominant Demand Driver

Others

2.5%

Peripheral 

East

2.9%

Gachibowli

28.6%

Madhapur

66.1%

4.5
3.8

7.4

3.6

2.6

3.7
4.0

7.5

1.8

0.9

4.7%

3.5% 2.6%

6.6%

10.3%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

 -

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

2017 2018 2019 2020 H1 2021

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy

Stock

71.6 msf

Key Updates

▪ Most preferred office space micro market in Hyderabad due to good physical and social infrastructure

▪ Delay in supply and soft demand expected for the next 6 to 12 months 

▪ Pre-commitment levels continue to be strong

▪ Rentals are expected to remain stable over next 8 to 12 months

Note – Source: Cushman & Wakefield, supply and net absorption data is in msf

1. Mindspace REIT also owns Mindspace Pocharam - 1.0 msf in the Peripheral East micro-market
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Pune

Grade-A Office Stock H1 CY2021

Note – Source: Cushman & Wakefield, supply and net absorption data is in msf

1. SBD East includes Kalyani Nagar, Kharadi, Viman Nagar, Hadapsar

Supply, net absorption and vacancy trend analysis 

Micro-Market: SBD East
Others

11.3%

SBD East

55.3%
SBD West

10.7%

PBD West 

22.7%

Technology Sector is the Dominant Demand Driver

1.1 

1.5 

2.4 2.1 

-

1.5

2.0

2.6

1.2

0.3

5.9%

3.5%
2.3%

5.1%

4.3%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

 -

 0.5

 1.0

 1.5

 2.0

 2.5

 3.0

2017 2018 2019 2020 H1 2021

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy

Stock

55.8 msf

Key Updates

▪ One of the best performing micro-market of the city

▪ Presence of strong social and physical infrastructure and proximity to International Airport led SBD East to 

emerge as a preferred commercial destination 

▪ Vacancy albeit single digit, has increased marginally due to the impact of pandemic

▪ Rentals have increased consistently for past few years and are expected to remain stable over next 12 months 

along with slightly longer time to lease

(1)
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Chennai

Grade-A Office Stock H1 CY2021 Supply, net absorption and vacancy trend analysis 

Micro-Market: South-West

Others

19.9%

Peripheral 

South

22.1%
Suburban 

South

33.9%

South-West

24.1%

(1)

0.8 0.6

0.1

1.6

0.0

0.4

0.9

0.4 0.4

0.1

7.1% 4.6%

2.1%

11.0%

10.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

 -

 0.20

 0.40

 0.60

 0.80

 1.00

 1.20

 1.40

 1.60

 1.80

2017 2018 2019 2020 H1 2021

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy

Stock

53.8 msf

Key Updates

▪ South-West micro market enjoys a good connectivity and well-developed social infrastructure

▪ Rents have largely remained stable and are expected to remain stable in the near term

▪ Expected to witness increased demand for office space in the medium term 

▪ Vacancy expected to come down post an increase in CY 2020

Note – Source: Cushman & Wakefield, supply and net absorption data is in msf

1. South West includes Guindy, Ashok Nagar, Vadapalani, Manapakkam, Ekkaduthangal, Porur
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Annexure
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Mindspace REIT Structure

Note: 

1. % indicates Mindspace REIT’s shareholding in respective Asset SPVs

2. 11% shareholding in these Asset SPVs is held by Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited (TSIIC)

K Raheja Corp 

Investment Managers 
LLP

Investment Manager

Mindspace Business 
Parks REIT

Trust

Axis Trustee Services 
Limited

Trustee

SPV: K Raheja IT 

Park (Hyderabad) 
Ltd.  

89%(1) (2)

SPV: Intime 
Properties Ltd. –

89%(1) (2)

SPV: Sundew 
Properties Ltd. 

89%(1)(2)

SPV: Mindspace 

Business Parks 
Pvt. Ltd. 

100%(1)

SPV: Avacado 

Properties & Trading 

(India) Pvt. Ltd.   
100%(1)

SPV: Gigaplex 

Estate Pvt. Ltd.  
100%(1)

SPV: KRC 

Infrastructure and 
Projects Pvt. Ltd.

100%(1)(3)

SPV: Horizonview 
Properties Pvt. 

Ltd. 

100%(1)

Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad – SEZ / IT Park
Paradigm

Mindspace Malad, 

Mumbai Region - IT 

Park

Mindspace Airoli 

(E), Mumbai Region

- SEZ 

Mindspace Airoli 

(W), Mumbai 

Region – SEZ/IT Park

Gera Commerzone 

Kharadi, Pune –

SEZ/

IT Park

Commerzone 

Porur, Chennai – IT 

Park

The Square BKC, 

Mumbai Region –

Commercial 

Commerzone 

Yerwada, Pune – IT 

Park

The Square Nagar 

Road, Commercial 

IT Park

Mindspace 

Pocharam, 

Hyderabad - SEZ 

Facility 

Management 
Division

K Raheja Corp 

Investment Managers 
LLP

Mindspace Business 
Parks REIT
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Portfolio Summary

23.8 msf of Completed area with Committed Occupancy of 84.4% & WALE of 6.6 years

Note: As of 30 Jun 21

Asset 
Total Leasable 

Area 

(msf) 

Completed 

Area

(msf)

UC/Future

Area 

(msf)

Occupancy 

(%) 

Committed 

Occupancy 

(%) 

WALE 

(years) 

In-place 

Rent 

(INR psf) 

Mindspace Airoli East 6.8 4.7 2.1 89.1% 89.1% 5.2 52.6 

Mindspace Airoli West 5.1 3.6 1.5 63.8% 68.6% 6.4 56.8 

Mindspace Malad 0.7 0.7 - 94.0% 94.0% 3.5 91.4 

The Square BKC 0.1 0.1 - - 27.4% - -

Mumbai Region 12.8 9.2 3.6 78.4% 80.6% 5.5 57.6

Gera Commerzone 

Kharadi
2.6 1.3 1.3 93.1% 93.1% 10.8 71.0 

The Square Nagar Road 0.8 0.7 0.1 73.4% 100.0% 5.3 61.3 

Commerzone Yerwada 1.7 1.7 - 98.4% 98.4% 5.0 60.2

Pune 5.0 3.7 1.3 91.7% 96.8% 7.1 64.2 

Mindspace Madhapur 11.6 9.8 1.8 84.2% 90.1% 7.5 54.9 

Mindspace Pocharam 1.0 0.4 0.6 71.1% 71.1% 1.5 21.3 

Hyderabad 12.6 10.2 2.4 83.7% 89.4% 7.3 53.9 

Commerzone Porur 0.8 0.8 - 8.3% 8.3% 8.3 64.0 

Chennai 0.8 0.8 - 8.3% 8.3% 8.3 64.0 

Portfolio Total 31.2 23.8 7.4 80.3% 84.4% 6.6 57.1 



mindspace re i t . c om 45

Breakup of Lease Expiry Profile

Note: As of 30 Jun 21

Asset 

9M FY22 FY23 FY24

Area 
Expiring 

(msf) 

% of Gross 
Contracted 

Rentals

Rent at 
Expiry

(INR psf)

Area Expiring 
(msf) 

% of Gross 
Contracted 

Rentals

Rent at 
Expiry

(INR psf)

Area 
Expiring 

(msf) 

% of Gross 
Contracted 

Rentals

Rent at 
Expiry

(INR psf)

Mindspace Airoli East 0.5 11.8% 51 0.3 6.2% 52 0.2 5.6% 52 

Mindspace Airoli West 0.2 8.1% 58 0.2 8.6% 52 0.1 5.1% 55 

Mindspace Malad - 0.6% 74 0.1 14.8% 92 0.1 13.4% 105 

The Square BKC - - - - - - - - -

Mumbai Region 0.7 8.9% 53 0.6 8.3% 58 0.4 6.6% 63 

Gera Commerzone Kharadi - - - - - - - - -

The Square Nagar Road - - - - - - - - -

Commerzone Yerwada 0.1 6.4% 64 0.2 9.6% 52 0.1 10.7% 78 

Pune 0.1 3.2% 64 0.2 4.7% 52 0.1 5.3% 78 

Mindspace Madhapur 0.4 3.9% 51 0.7 7.8% 53 0.4 4.1% 52 

Mindspace Pocharam 0.1 52.3% 22 - - - 0.1 35.2% 26 

Hyderabad 0.5 4.4% 43 0.7 7.7% 53 0.5 4.5% 48 

Commerzone Porur - - - - - - - - -

Chennai - - - - - - - - -

Portfolio Total 1.3 5.8% 50 1.6 7.3% 55 1.0 5.4% 58 
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Balance Sheet as on 30 Jun 21  

Balance Sheet (INR Mn) 30 Jun 21 31 Mar 21

Sources of Funds

Total Equity 169,430 172,134 

Sub-Total 169,430 172,134 

Liabilities

Debt(1) 40,283 37,858 

Security Deposits 8,362 8,366 

Other Liabilities(2) 3,959 4,360 

Sub-Total 52,604 50,584 

Total 222,034 222,718 

Application of Funds

Assets

Investment Property / Property 

Plant Equipment
197,856 196,136 

Investment Property Under 

Construction / Capital Work In 

Progress

12,511 15,339 

Cash and Bank(3) 3,368 3,662 

Other Assets(4) 8,299 7,581 

Total 222,034 222,718 

Notes

1) Debt is prior to minority interest 

adjustment

2) Other Liabilities primarily include Trade 

Payables, Capital Creditors, Retention 

Money, Advances from customers and 

Statutory Dues

3) Distributions received from SPVs were held 

in cash at REIT Level as at 30 Jun 21 and 
as at 31 Mar 21

4) Other Assets primarily include Deferred 

Tax Assets, Advance Tax, Capital 

Advances, Security Deposits, Unbilled 

Revenue
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Debt Maturity Schedule as on 30 Jun 21 

Note: As of 30 Jun 21

MLD – Market Linked Debentures
NCD – Non-Convertible Debentures

TL – Term Loan
LAP – Loan Against Property

Description 

(INR Mn)
Fixed/ 

Floating
Total 

Facility
Undrawn 

Facility
Principal 

O/S

Interest 

Rate

(p.a.p.m.) 

Wt. Avg.

Maturity

(Years)

Principal Repayment

9M 

FY22
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

FY28 & 

beyond
Total

At REIT Level

MLD (Tranche 1) Fixed 
5,000 

- 5,000 6.60% 0.8 - 5,000 - - - - - 5,000 

NCD (Tranche 1) Fixed 2,000 - 2,000 6.42% 2.5 - - 2,000 - - - - 2,000 

MLD (Tranche 2) Fixed 
3,750 

- 3,750 6.46% 2.9 - - - 3,750 - - - 3,750 

NCD (Tranche 2) Fixed 750 - 750 6.64% 2.9 - - - 750 - - - 750 

At SPV Level 

TL - MBPPL Floating 14,143 - 12,173 7.22% 9.0 760 1,131 1,274 1,524 1,694 1,913 3,877 12,173 

TL - Sundew Floating 6,444 672   5,239 7.17% 7.6 229 375 448 517 624 718 2,328 5,239 

TL - KRC Infra Floating 5,550 863 4,634 6.85% 8.6 194 304 381 436 502 602 2,216 4,634 

LAP -

Horizonview 
Floating 1,000 200 800 7.15% 2.5 - - 800   - - - 800 

TL - Gigaplex Floating 1,000 100 868 7.20% 2.6 59 88 721 - - - 868 

OD / LOC Floating 7,368 2,681 4,687 7.61% 7.0 55   - 301   - - 4,331 4,687 

Total 47,005 4,516 39,903 7.01% 6.2 1,297 6,898 5,926 6,976 2,820 3,234 12,752 39,903 

Repayment (%) 3.3% 17.3% 14.9% 17.5% 7.1% 8.1% 32.0% 100%
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Asset 

Market Value (INR Mn) Market Value (%)

Completed  
UC/Future 

Dev.
Total Completed  

UC/Future 

Dev.
Total

Mindspace Airoli East 40,849 1,850 42,699 16.6% 0.8% 17.3%

Mindspace Airoli West 29,476 6,998 36,474 12.0% 2.8% 14.8%

Mindspace Malad 9,569 - 9,569 3.9% - 3.9%

The Square BKC 3,905 - 3,905 1.6% - 1.6%

Mumbai Region 83,799 8,848 92,647 34.0% 3.6% 37.6%

Gera Commerzone Kharadi 13,360 5,539 18,899 5.4% 2.3% 7.7%

The Square Nagar Road 8,115 354 8,469 3.3% 0.1% 3.4%

Commerzone Yerwada 19,606 - 19,606 8.0% - 8.0%

Pune 41,081 5,893 46,974 16.7% 2.4% 19.1%

Mindspace Madhapur
(2)

87,434 3,394 90,828 35.5% 1.4% 36.9%

Mindspace Pocharam 1,177 1,568 2,745 0.5% 0.6% 1.1%

Hyderabad 88,611 4,962 93,573 36.0% 2.0% 38.0%

Commerzone Porur 6,993 - 6,993 2.8% - 2.8%

Chennai 6,993 - 6,993 2.8% - 2.8%

Facility Management Business 5,327 652 5,979 2.2% 0.3% 2.4%

Portfolio Total 225,811 20,355 246,167 91.7% 8.3% 100.0%

Summary of Valuation as on 31 Mar 21

Note: 

1. As of 31 Mar 21 and adjusted for completion status as of 30 Jun 21; includes Real Estate & Facility Management Division
2. The Market Value of Mindspace Madhapur is with respect to 89.0% ownership of the respective Asset SPVs that own Mindspace Madhapur

Project wise Market Value breakup(1)
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ROFO Assets to Add Further Scale And Growth

8.6 msf 

total potential 

4.6 msf 

by FY23 

10 
year ROFO term(2)

3 currently 

identified assets

Strong pipeline spread across Mumbai Region, Chennai and Hyderabad

Note: Area represent Sponsor Group’s share; ROFO Assets comprises only commercial development within the park
1. Committed Occupancy of 55%; Completed area as on 30 Jun 21
2. Effective from Aug 20

Status: 
• Tower 2: 6th Floor 

Slab WIP
• Expected 

completion: Block 1 –
Yet to commence
Block 2 – Q3 FY23

Chennai | 1.8 msf
Commerzone Pallikaranai

Status: 

• 1.8 msf pre-leased
• 17th floor WIP
• Expected completion: 

Phase 1 – Q2 FY22
Phase 2 – Q4 FY22

Hyderabad | 1.8 msf
Commerzone Madhapur

Status: 
• Completed: 0.8 msf(1)

• UC: 0.2 msf
• Future Development: 

4.0 msf

Mumbai Region | 5.0 msf

Mindspace Juinagar

Perspective

Current

Current

Current

Perspective

Perspective

Perspective



mindspace re i t . c om 50

12 Research Houses Covering Mindspace REIT

Research House Analyst Email Id

Ambit Capital Karan Khanna karan.khanna@ambit.co

Bank of America Kunal Tayal kunal.tayal@bofa.com

CITI Research Atul Tiwari atul.tiwari@citi.com

Credit Suisse Lokesh Garg lokesh.garg@credit-suisse.com

ICICI Securities Adhidev Chattopadhyay adhidev.chattopadhyay@icicisecurities.com

IIFL Securities Mohit Agrawal mohit.agrawal@iiflcap.com

Investec Capital Sri Karthik Velamakanni sri.karthik@investec.co.in

JM Financial Manish Agrawal manish.agrawal@jmfl.com

Kotak Securities Murtuza Arsiwalla murtuza.arsiwalla@kotak.com

Morgan Stanley Sameer Baisiwala sameer.baisiwala@morganstanley.com

Nirmal Bang Amit Agarwal amit.agarwal@nirmalbang.com

UBS Securities Sourabh Taparia sourabh.taparia@ubs.com

mailto:Karan.Khanna@ambit.co
mailto:kunal.tayal@bofa.com
mailto:atul.tiwari@citi.com
mailto:lokesh.garg@credit-suisse.com
mailto:adhidev.chattopadhyay@icicisecurities.com
mailto:Mohit.agrawal@iiflcap.com
mailto:Sri.Karthik@investec.co.in
mailto:Manish.Agrawal@jmfl.com
mailto:murtuza.arsiwalla@kotak.com
mailto:Sameer.Baisiwala@morganstanley.com
mailto:amit.agarwal@nirmalbang.com
mailto:sourabh.taparia@ubs.com
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Key Definitions

Asset SPVs Collectively, Avacado, Gigaplex, Horizonview, Intime, KRIT, KRC Infra, MBPPL and Sundew

Committed Occupancy (%)
Occupied Area + Committed Area

Completed Area

Committed Area Completed Area which is unoccupied but for which letter of intent/ agreement to lease have been signed 

Completed Area
Leasable Area for which occupancy certificate has been received; Completed Area comprises Occupied Area, Committed 

Area and Vacant Area 

Future Development Area

Leasable Area of an asset that is planned for future development, as may be permissible under the relevant rules and 

regulations, subject to requisite approvals as may be required, and for which internal development plans are yet to be 

finalized and applications for requisite approvals required under law for commencement of construction are yet to be 

received 

Gross Contracted Rentals (INR)
Gross Contracted Rentals is the sum of Base Rentals and fit-out rent invoiced from Occupied Area that is expected to be 

received from the tenants pursuant to the agreements entered into with them 

In-place Rent (psf per month)
Base Rent  Base Rentals for the specified period for a specified month

Occupied Area*monthly factor 

Market Rent (psf per month) Manager’s estimate of Base Rent that can be expected from leasing of the assets to potential tenants

Market Value Market value (adjusted for non-controlling interest) as determined by Valuer as of 31 Mar 21

Msf Million square feet

Net Operating Income (NOI)
Net Operating Income calculated as Revenue from operations less: direct operating expenses (which includes Maintenance 

services expense, property tax, insurance expense, cost of material sold and cost of power purchased) 

Occupied Area Completed Area for which lease agreements / leave and license agreements have been signed with tenants 

Pre-Leased Area
Under Construction Area for which letter of intent / agreement to lease/ lease deed/ leave and license agreement has been 

entered into with prospective tenants 

Portfolio Assets which will be directly or indirectly owned by Mindspace REIT in terms of the REIT Regulations 

Re-leasing spread Refers to the change in Base Rent between new and expiring leases, expressed as a percentage 

Same Store Committed 

Occupancy (%)

Represents Committed Occupancy for the Portfolio for areas where occupancy certificate was received on or before

30 Jun 20

Total Leasable Area Total Leasable Area is the sum of Completed Area, Under Construction Area and Future Development Area

Under Construction Area Leasable Area where construction is ongoing and / or the occupancy certificate is yet to be obtained 

Vacant Area
Completed Area which is unoccupied and for which no letter of intent / lease agreement / leave and license agreement 

has been signed 

WALE
Weighted Average Lease Expiry based on area. Calculated assuming tenants exercise all their renewal options post expiry of 

their initial commitment period 
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Thank You
Investor Relations Enquiries: Kedar Kulkarni 

(Finance & Investor Relations) 

Email id: ir@mindspacereit.com

mailto:ir@mindspacereit.com


Chartered Accountants 

Lotus Corporate Park 

1st Floor, Wing A- G 

CTS No.185/A, Jay Coach 

Off Western Express Highway 

Goregaon (East) 

Mumbai - 400 063 

Maharashtra, India 

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000 

Fax: +91 22 6245 1001 

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27th-32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai 
- 400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED STANDALONE INTERIM 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To  

The Governing Board, 

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Introduction 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial

Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (the “REIT”), which comprise the
unaudited Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2021, the unaudited

Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income,
the unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for quarter ended June 30,
2021, the unaudited  Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in Unitholders’ Equity

for the quarter ended June 30, 2021, and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for
the quarter ended June 30, 2021 as an additional disclosure in accordance with paragraph

6 of Annexure A to the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No.
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (“SEBI Circular”) along with summary of
the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes (together hereinafter

referred as the “Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements”).

2. The Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the

Investment Manager and approved by the Governing Board of the Investment Manager,
have been prepared in accordance with  Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim

Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations that would have been

followed for half yearly reporting as per the SEBI REIT Regulations. Our responsibility is to
express a conclusion on the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements based on

our review.

Scope of review 

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE)
2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the

Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’s
personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and

other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and consequently does not enable

us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Annexure 3
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Conclusion 

 
4. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, 

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying 

Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in accordance 
with Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations.  

 

Emphasis of matter 
 

5. We draw attention to Note 13(a)(i) of the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial 
Statements, which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” to comply with 
the REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 
 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Nilesh Shah 

Partner 

 Membership No. 49660 

Mumbai, August 13, 2021                                                  UDIN: 21049660AAAACX5306 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

ASSlffS 

Non-current assets 
Financial assets 
- Investments 
- Loans 
- Other financial assets 

Other non-current assets 
Total non-current assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 
- Loans 
- Cash and cash equivalents 
- Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
Total current assets 

Total assets 

1\Ql!ITY AND LIABILITIES 

l•:Ql!ITY 
Corpus 
Unit capital 
Other equity 

Total equity 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
- Borrowings 
- Other financial liabilities 

Total non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
- 13orrowings 
- Trade payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and 
- total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro and small 

enterprises. 
- Other financial liabilities 

Other current liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (net) 

Total current liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Significant accounting policies 
Sec the accompanying notes to the condensed standalone financial statements 

Note 

4 
5 
6 
7 

8 
9 

10 
11 

12 
13 
14 

15 
16 

17 
18 

19 
20 
21 

4-38 

As at 
30 June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

1,53,103 
16,178 

85 
4 

1,69,370 

5,000 
2,843 

288 
23 

8,154 

1.77,524 

0 
1,62,839 

2,880 
1,65,719 

6,455 
71 

6,526 

4,978 

8 

289 
I 
3 

5,279 

1,77,524 

As per our report of even date attached, 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Firm's registration number: 1 l 7366W/W-I 00018 

Nilcsh Shah 
Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

!'lace: Mumbai 
!)ate : 13-August-2021 

(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

~ 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: I 3-August-2021 

Vinod N. Rohira 
Chi~/Execu/ive qf/icer 
DIN:00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I 3-August-2021 

As at 
31 March 2021 

(Audited) 

1,53,103 
21,178 

213 
4 

1,74,498 

2,938 
2 

10 
2,950 

1,77,448 

0 
1,62,839 

2,950 
1,65,789 

11,425 
193 

11,618 

13 
19 
6 
3 

41 

1,77,448 

Preeti N. Chhedu 
Chief Financial (Jf/icer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : l 3-August-2021 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
(all amounts In Rs. mllllon unless otherwise stated) 

Income and gains 
Interest 
Dividend 
Other Income 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Valuation expenses 
Audit fees 
Insurance expenses 
Management fees 
Trustee fees 
Legal and professional fees 
Other expenses 

Total Expenses 

Earnings/ (loss) before finance costs, 
depreciation, amortisation and tax 

Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Profit/ (loss) before tax 

Tax expense: 
Current tax 
Deferred tax 

Profit/ (loss) for the period / year 

Items of other comprehensive income 

Note 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss 
- Remeasuremcnts of defined benefit liability, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the 
period / year 

learning per unit 
Basic 
Diluted 

Significant accounting policies 
See the accompanying notes to the 
Condensed Standalone Financial 
Statements. 

• refer note 36 
/\s per our report of even date attached. 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

27 

3 
4- 38 

Firm's registration number: I I 7366W/W-100018 

Nilesh Shah 

Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I 3-August-2021 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

425 
2,587 

2 
3,010 

I 
I 
0 

16 
I 
4 
5 

28 

2,982 
200 

2,782 

2,782 

2,782 

4.69 
4.69 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 March 2021 
(Audited)" 

355 
2,681 

7 
3,043 

3 
4 
0 

17 
0 
9 
2 

35 

3,008 
131 

2,877 

3 

3 
2,874 

2,874 

4.85 
4 85 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 
(Unaudited) 

3 
1 
5 

(5) 

(5) 

(5) 

(5) 

Not Applicable 
Not Applicable 

(nurlni. as the Manager lo Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13-/\ugust-2021 

2 

~>~ 
Vinod N. Rohira 

Chi~f'Execu/ive Ofjicer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : l 3-August-2021 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2021 
(Audited) 

789 
5,344 

12 
6,145 

9 

7 

0 
34 

2 
17 
7 

76 

6,069 
230 

5,839 

5 

5 
5,834 

5,834 

14 67 
14.67 

Preeti N. Chheda 

Chief Financial qf/icer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : l 3-August-2021 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Standalone Statement or Cash Flows 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

For the quarter For the quarter For the quarter For the year 
ended ended ended ended 

30 June 2021 3 I March 2021 30 June 2020 3 I March 2021 
(Unaudited) (Audited)• (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Cash Flows from operating activities 
Profit/ (loss) before tax 2,782 2,877 (5) 5,839 
ild/ustment.1·: 

Interest income (425) (355) (789) 
Dividend income (2,587) (2,681) (5,344) 

Guarantee commission fees 3 (7) (7) 

Net gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss (3) 
Gain on redemption of mutual fund units (1) (0) (2) 

Finance costs 200 131 230 
Operating cash Flows before working capital changes (28) (35) (5) (76) 
Changes in: 
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial and other assets (13) (2) ( 13) 
Increase/ (Decrease) in financial and other liabilities (3) (3) l (26) 
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables (5) 9 2 12 

Cash (used in)/ generated from operntions (49) (31) (0) (103) 
Income taxes paid, net I 3 
Net cash generated/ (used in) from operating activities (49) (32) (0) ( 106) 

Cash Flow from investing activities 
Loans given to SPYs (3,300) (8,030) (26,682) 
Loans repaid by SPY 3,300 3,560 5,504 
l'urchase of Investments (Preference shares) (334) 
Investment in mutual fund (660) (1,255) (7,525) 
Proceeds from Redemption of mutual fund 661 1,255 7,527 
Proceeds from Redemption of Preference shares 337 
Investment in fixed deposits (82) (387) 
Maturity proceeds of fixed deposits 83 388 
Dividend received 2,587 2,681 5.344 
Interest received 264 255 581 

Net cash generated/ (used in) investing activities 21852 1 t1533 l (15,247) 

Cash Flow from financing activities 
Proceeds from issue or units 10.000 
Loans taken from Sl'Y 150 
Loans repaid to SPY ( 150) 
Collection towards Offer For Sale 35,000 
Payment to Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities (35,000) 

in respect ofOfTer For Sale 

Expenses incurred towards Initial Public Offering (264) 
Proceeds from issue of debentures 4,500 11,500 
l)istribution to unit holders (2,852) (2,835) (2,835) 
Recovery Expense rund Deposits (!) (1) 

Interest paid (46) (37) (39) 
l)cbenturcs issue expenses 32 70 

Net cash generated from financing activities 12,s9sl 11595 18,291 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (95) 30 (0) 2,938 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning or the period/ 
year 2,938 2,908 0 0 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end or the period/ year 2 84J 2 9'.lR 0 2 ()J8 

3 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN :IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 
(HII amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Cash and cash equivalents com11rise: 
Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 

- in current accounts 
- in escrow accounts 

Fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year 
( refer note 9) 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 
(llnnuclitecl) 

2,768 

75 
2,843 

For the quarter 
ended 

3 I March 202 I 
(Audited)• 

2,888 

50 
2 938 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 
(Unaudited) 

0 

0 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2021 
(Audited) 

2,888 

50 
2.CJ3ff 

Note: 111e Trust has issued Units in exchange for investments in SPVs during the quarter ended 30 September 2020. The same has not been reflected in Condensed 
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows during the year ended 31 March 2021 since these were non-cash transactions. (refer note 13(iii)) 

Significant accounting policies 3 
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Standalone 4-38 
Financial Statements 

• refer note 36 

/\s per our report of even date attached 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: I I 7366W/W-100018 

Nilcsh Shah 

l'artm:r 
Membership number 4%60 

l'lacc· Mumbai 
I )ale · 13-/\ligliSl-1.021 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I 3-August-2021 

4 

Vinod N. Rohira 

Chief faeculive Officer 
DIN : 0046066 7 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I 3-August-2021 

Prccti N. Chheda 

Cl,;ef !•'111<111cial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date . I 3-Augusi-2021 



MINDSPACE BlJSINl~SS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in lJnit holder's I\qulty 
(all amounts in Rs. million nnless otherwise stated) 

A. Corpus 
Balance as on I April 2020 
AddiLions during the year 
Balance as on 31 March 2021 
Balance as on 1 April 2021 
Add il um~ during the pt:rlod 
Closinl\ h11b111cc 11s 111 30 ,11111 2(12 I 

n. Unit Capital 
Balance as on I April 2020 
Add: Units issued during the year (refer note 13) 
Less : Issue expenses 
Balance as on 31 March 2021 
Bahrnce as on I April 2021 
Add : Units issued during the period (refer nole 13) 
Less Issue expcnsC'!I 

losluH balance as at 30 June 2021 

C Other c uitv 
ParticulHrs 

Balance as on I April 2020 
Proill ror Lhe year ended 31 March 2021 
Other comprehensive income lor the year 
• Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 3 I December 2020 
Balance at 31 March 202 1 
Bal11nc1' as at 1 April 2021 

Profil for the quarler ended 30 June 2021 
Other comprehensive income for the period 
•1 .ess: Distribution Lo Unitholders for the quvner ended 31 Mureil 202 I 
{'lo~lng hnlnncl' as at 30 June 2021 

Amount 

Amount 

0 

0 

0 

u 

1,63,080 
(24 1) 

1,62,839 
1,62,839 

1,62,839 

Retained Earnings 

(49) 
5,834 

(2,835) 
2,9 0 
2,950 

2,782 

(2,8~2) 
2,8HO 

*The dislributions made by Mindspace REIT to its Unilholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash nows (NDCF) of'Mindspace REIT under 
the REIT Regulalions , 

i\s per our report 01· even date attached 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm 's registration number: I l7366W/W-100018 

Nilcsh Shah 

Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

!'lace: Mumbai 
Date : 13-AugusL-202 I 

for and on be hair of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

~ •gas <he M""'''"' ,, M~= ~;:ks REIT) 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : I 3-August-202 I 
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Vinod N. Rohir11 
Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13-August-2021 

Prceti N. Chheda 

Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I 3-AugusL-2021 



MINDSl',\CI<: 11 \JSI Nl•:s :,, l' /\IU<S Hl(IT 
ll N: IN/llEIT/1 ?-211/003 
(all amounts in l!s.rnillion unless otherwise stated) 

Ncl Distributable Cnsh Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Parngraph 6 to SEBI circular No. Cln/lMD/DF/146/2016 

Sf No l'nrticulnrs 

2 

~11~h !lows l'CUCIVCll f'r 111 As. ~I SPVs including but nol li111 1tcd lo: 
interest 
dividends (net of applicable taxes) 
repayment of REIT Funding 
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction (net of applicable laxes) 

redemp1ion proceeds from prcfoic11cc slra,cs o, any other similar instrument 

Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets, sale of shares of Asset SPVs, 
liquidation of any other asset or investment (incl. cash equivalents) or any form of 
fund raise al Mindspace REIT level adjusted for the following: c•>&t•ll 

applicable capital gains and other taxes, if any 
debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
transaction costs 
proceeds te-invcsted or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the 
REIT 1egulations 
any acquisition 
investments as pe, milted under tl1e REIT regulations 
lending to Asset SPVs 

as may be deemed necessary by the Managet· 
Add: Prncceds fiom sale of investments, assets or sale or shares of Asset SPVs not 
disuibured pmsuanl to an earlier plan lo 1e-invesl in acc01dance with the REIT 
Regulations, if such proceeds a1c not intended lo be invested subsequently 

4 Add: Any other income 1cceived by Mindspace REIT not captured hctein 
Less: Any other expenses paid by Mindspace REIT not captured herein 

<, l.ess: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure al Mindspace REIT level 
7 Less: Net debt repayment / (drawdown), redemption of preference shaies / debentures 

/ any other such instrument / premiums / any orhet obligations I liabilities, ere., as 
maybe deemed necessary by the Manager 

I! Add/Less: Othe, adjustments, including but nol limited lo ncl changes in security 
deposi ts, working capital, etc. as may be deemed necessary by the Manager <ll«t<•• 

•; Less: lntc,csl paid on external debt bo,rowing at Mindspace REIT level 
IO Less: Income tax and other laxes (if applicable) at the Standalone Mindspacc REIT 

level 
Net Oisll'ihuta!Jlc Cash Flows (NDCFl 

Notes: 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 202 I 
( 1 ltmudi\cd) 

264 
2,587 

420 

(420) 

I 
(19) 

(SS) 

(46) 

2,732 

for the qua, tcr 
ended 

31 March 2021 
(A111h1c1I) 

255 
2,681 

5,200 

(30) 

(5,170) 

I 
(2) 

(JI l 

(37) 

2,866 

For the ycai 
ended 

31 March 2021 
IAuditctl) 

456 
5,344 

7,620 

(50) 

(7,570) 

2 
(35) 

(24) 

(37) 

5.706 

The Governing Boa1d of the Manager to the T1t1s1, in their meeting held on 13 August 2021, has declared distribution lo unitholdc,s of Rs 4 60 per unit which 
aggtcgales to Rs 2,728 mil lion for the quarter ended 30 June 2021. The distributions of Rs 4.60 per unit comprises Rs. 4,23 per unit in the ro, 111 of dividend and Rs 
0.37 pc, unit in the form of inlcresl payment. 

Statement of Net Distributable Cash rlows have not been disclosed for all the compal'alive periods since the fit'sl distribution of the REIT as stated in the Final 
Offer Document was made upon completion oflhe fiisl full quarter after the listing oflhe Units on the Stock Exchanges i e 31 December 2020 

3 

4 
5 

6 

Fo1 the year ended 31 March 2021, lending lo SPVs 1'10111 fund raised al REIT level in the qua1tc1 ended 30 September 2020 has been excluded fo, the pu, pose o/' 
NDCr calculation 

Repayment of REIT f'unding which is further lent to SPVs has been captured under "Liquidation of assets" 
I.ending to and repayment fiom SPVs within the same quaiter has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments" 
Borrowing from and repayment lo SPVs within the same qua, tc, has been adjusted under "Othe1 Adjustments" 

As per mu repor I of even date auachcd: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Cha11e1ed Accountants 

for and on behalf of the Goveming Board of 
K Raheja Corp lnvcslmcnt Managers LLP 

l'i1111's registration number: I 17366W/W-100018 

Nilesh Shah 

Partner 
Membership numbc, : 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I 3-August-2021 

6 

(acting as the Manager lo Mindspace Business Pa1ks REIT) 

i C. Raheja 

Memher 
DIN:00028044 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I 3-August-2021 

\)~~ 
--­Vinod N. Rohira Prccti N. Chhcda 

C:hiej l:'xcrn/ive 0/Jicer Chief /o'inancial Officer 
DIN: 00460667 DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 
Date: I 3-August-2021 Date : I 3-August-207. 1 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: I N/RF:IT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Stamlalonc Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless othen,ise stated) 

Mindspace REIT bacl,ground 

Mindspacc Business I'm ks RL'IT ('M111dspacc Rh! I") was settled on 18 November 2019 at Mumbai, Mahaiasht1a, India as a cont, ibutmy, detc, minate and 
i11cvocahlc trust u11dc1 the p1ovisio11s ul'thc Indian T,usts /\ct, 1882, pursuant to a 1111st deed dated 18 Novcmbe, 2019, Mindspacc REIT was 1cgistc1cd with 
SEil i 011 10 Dcccmbc, 2019, al Mumbai as a REIT pursuant to the !WIT Regulations having 1egistrntio11 numbc, IN/REIT/19-20/0003 The Tn1st's principal 
place of' business address 1s al Raheja Towe,, Level 8, Block 'G', C-30 Band, a Kurla Complex, Mumbai - 400 051 

Anbcc Constructions LU' (/\CL.j and Cape T1ading I.I.I' ('CTL') a,e the sponsms of Mindspace REIT , The T,ustee to Mindspacc REIT is /\xis l1ustee 
Services Limited (the 'Trustee') and the Manage, fo, Mindspace REJT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (the 'Manage!") , 

·1 he objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is to canyon the activity of a real estate investment t, ust, as permissible uncle,· the REIT Regulations, 
to 1aise funds th1ough the Rl'.IT, to make investments in acco1dance with the REIT Regulations and the investment strategy and to carry on the activities as 
may be requi1ed !'ell' ope,ating the REIT, including incidental and ancillmy mattel'S thereto 

Mindspace REIT acquired the Special Purpose Vehicles ('Sl'Vs') by acqui1ing all the equity interest held by the Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities in the 
Sf>Vs on 30 July 2020 In exchange for these equity inte1ests, the above shareholders have been allotted 55,66,54,582 units of Mindspace REIT on 30 July 
2020 which wc,c issued at Rs 275 each , 
Mindspace REIT went public as pc, its plan fo1· l11itial Public OITe,· of Units after obtaining the 1equi1ed appl'Ovals flam the relevant authorities The units wc,e 
allollcd to the successful applicants on 4 August 2020 
/\II these units wc1e subsequently listed on the BSE Limited (llSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) on 7 August 2020 

Acco1·dingly. the equity i11te1esl in each ol'the below SPVs have been transfened from the respective shmeholde1s to Mindspace REIT, 

Mindspaec llusincss Parks P1ivatc Limited (Mlll'PL) 
Gigaplex Estate P1·ivate Limited (Gigaplex) 

3 Sun<lcw l'ropc1iics Limited (Sundcw)* 
,1 lnti1nc P1 ope, tics Lim1tcd (lntimc)* 
5 K Raltcja IT Paik (l-lydc1abad) Limited (KRIT)* 
6 KRC l11fiastrucl111e and f>1ojecls P,ivate Limited (KRC lnlia) 
7. llmizonvicw 1'1ope1iies P1ivale Limited (1-loiizonvicw) 
8, /\vacado Properties and Tiading (India) 1'1ivate Limited (/\vaeado) 

• Remaining 11% of'equity inte,·est in lntime l'1opc1iics Limited, K Raheja IT Park (llyde1abad) Limited and Sundew Properties l.imitcd is owned by /\ndh,a 
f>rndcsh lndust,ial lnfrns11ucl111·e Corporation ('/\l'IIC'J 

·1 he b, icf activities and shmcholding pallc111 ol'thc SPVs aic p,ovide<l below: 

Name of the SPV 

Mlll'l'I. 

(,ignplcx 

Activities 
Equity Shareholding (in percentage) 

as at 31 March 2021 

The SPY is engaged in rcnl estate Mindspace 
development p,o.iects such as Special REIT. 100% 
Economic Zone (S1'7.), lnfo1mat1011 
Technology Pai ks and olhe, com me, cial 
as:sets. I he Sf>V has its p1ojccts in /\iroli 
(Navi Mumbai), Punc and Pochm am 
(1-lydeiabad). The SPY 1s a deemed 
dislribution licensee pu1sunnt to which it 
can dist, ibutc power to the SEZ tenants 
within the Pmk Ii commenced 
distribution of electricity in its p,oject at 
/\iroli, Navi Mumbai from 9 /\pril 2015 

The Sl'V is engaged in ,cal estate 'v1 indspace 
development projects such as Special llEIT: 100% 
Economic Zone (SEZ), lnt'o,mation 
Technology Pa, ks and other eommcrcial 
assets The SPY has its p, ojccts in Ail'Oli 
(Navi Mumbai) The SPY is a deemed 
dist, ibution licensee pursuant to which it 
can dist, ibute powe, to the sr,z tenants 
within the Park It commenced 
disl1'ibution or elect, icily in its prnject at 
/\11oli, Navi Mumbai from 19 Ap,il 2016, 

Equity Shareholding (in 
percentage) 

as at 30 ,Jnnc 2021 
Mindspncc 
Rl'l'I 100% 

Mindspacc 
REIT: 100% 



MINDSl'ACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/ 19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financiul Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Name of the SPV Activities 

The SPY is engaged in development and 

Equity Shareholding (in 11ercentage) 
as at 31 March 2021 

Mind space 
leasing/I iccnsing of IT paik, SEZ to REIT: 89% 
diffe, enl cuslomcl's in I lydc, a bad Andhia Pradesh Industrial lnfrastructu, c 

Sundcw 
Corporation Limited ( 11 %) 

·111e SPY 1s engaged m development and Mindspace 
leasing/licensing of IT park to different REIT: 89% 
customers in Hyderabad . Andhrn P1adesh Industrial Infrastructure 

lntime Corporation Limited ( 11 %) 

The SPY is engaged in development and Mindspace 
lcasing~iccnsing of IT pm·k to different REIT: 89% 

KRIT customers in Hydeiabad. Andl11a P,adesh Industrial lnfrasl1uclt11c 
Co,poration Limited (11%) 

The SPY is engaged in real estate Mindspace 
development projects such as Special REIT: 100% 
Economic Zone (SEZ) and lnfonnation 
Technology Parks. The SPY has its 
p1ojcct in Kharadi Pune.The SPY is a 

KRC Infra deemed distribution licensee pu1suant to 
which it can disl l'ibute power lo the SEZ 
tenants within the Paik . It commenced 
dist, ibution or elect, icily in its project at 
Kharadi, Punc ftom I June 2019 

The SPY is engaged in development and Mindspace 
leasing/I icensing of IT park to diffe1cnl REIT: 100% 

1-lorizonview custome, sin Chcnnai , 

The SPY has developed an Industrial park Mindspac.: 
for the purpose or letting out to different RE IT: 100% 
customc1s in Prnadigm building at Malad-

Avacado 
Mumbai and is being maintained and 
operated by the SPY. The SPY also has a 
co111111e1cial p,ojecl in llandra Kurla 
Complex, Mumbai . 

8 

Equity Shareholding (in 
percentage) 

us at 30 June 2021 
Mindspace 
REIT: 89% 
Andhra P,adesh Industrial 
lnfraslructurc Col'poration 
Limited ( 11 %) 

Mindspacc 
REIT: 89% 
Andhra Pradesh Industrial 
lnft astructure Corporation 
Limited ( 11 %) 

Mindspace 
REIT: 89% 
Andhra l'rndcsh Industrial 
lnt\astructu1e Corporation 
Limited (I 1%) 

Mindspacc 
REIT: 100% 

Mindspace 
REIT: 100% 

Mindspace 
REIT: 100% 



MINDSl'ACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
llN:IN/llEIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Stundalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

2 llnsis of Preparation 

The Condensed Standalone l11te1i111 Financial Stntcments ('Condensed Standalone l'inancial Statements) of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comp,ise the 
Condensed Standalone· Balance Sheet as al 30 June 2021, lhc Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comp,chensive income, the 
Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash f-low for the qua,ter ended 30 June 2021, the Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholdc, s Equity for 
the quarter ended 30 June 2021, the Statement of Net Distributable Cashtlows of Mindspace REIT for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 and a summary or the 
sig11ificant accounting policies and select explanatory information and othe, additional financial disclosures 
The Condensed Standalone financial Statements have been prepared in acco,dance with the ,equirements of Secrnities and Exchange Board of India (Real 
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circulm 
No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 ("the REIT ,egulations"); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 "Interim Financial Rcpo,ting" to the 
extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations (refer note 13 on p1 esentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of compound instruments undc, Ind /\S 
32 - Financial Instruments: P1 escntation), read with relevant rules issued thereunde1 and other accounting principles gen~rally accepted in India 

n,e preparation oi the condensed standalone financial statements 1s after takmg 111to cons1derat1011, ellecl to the amended Schedule Ill of the Companies /\ct, 
2013 notified vide Minist1y of Co1vo1ate Affairs notification dated 24th March 2021, lo the extent these arc 1elevant to the preparation of the condensed 
standalone financial statements. 

/'he Condensed Standalone Financial Sialcments we, e aulh01 iscd for issue in acco, dance with resolution passed by the Governing Board of the Manage, on 
behalf of Mindspace REIT on I 3 August 2021. 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements me p,·cscnted in Indian Rupees in Million, except when otherwise indicated 

Stntemcnt of compliance to Ind-AS 
These Condensed Standalone linancial statements for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 have been prepared in acc01 dance with Indian Accounting Sianda, d (Ind 
AS) 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully dcsc,ibed above and Note 13 to the condensed 
standalone financial stc1tcments 

J Signiticunt nccounting policies 

11) Functionul nnd Presentation Currency 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements arc presented in Indian Rupees, which is also Mindspace REIT functional cun-cncy in which Mindspacc 
REIT operates_ All linancial infonnation presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded off to the nea,est million except otherwise stated, 

b) Basis of measurement 
These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements arc prepared on the historical cost basis, except fo, certain financial assets and liabilities (rcl'c, 
accounting policy regarding financial instrument) mcasu,ed at fair values; 

c) Use of judgments and estimntcs 
The prcparntion of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in confonnily with genc,al ly accepted accounting p, inciples in India (Ind AS) requires 
management lo make estimates and assumptions that affect the ,eported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual ,·esults could dil'/'c, 
t'ton, those estimates 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a pciiodic basis Revisions to accounting estimates aic 1ccogniscd in the pc1iod in which the 
estimates a,e revised and in any future pe,iods affected. 
lnfomwtion about c, itical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most sig11ificanl effect on the amounts recognised in the Condensed 
Standalone Financial Statements is included in the following notes: 
(i) Ptescntation of"Unit Capital" as "Equity" in acco1dancc with the REIT Regulations instead of compound insltumcnl (Note 110 13) 

(ii)mpairment and l'ai, valuation of lnvcslmcnts in SPVs 

(iii) ,ecognilion and measurement ofp1ovisions /'o, contingencies and disclosu,e of contingent liabilities (Note 32 (a)) 

d) Current versus non-current c/assiticntion 
Mindspace REIT p1esents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on cuncnt/ non-cunent classification: 
An asset is treated as cu11enl when it is: 
- Expected to be ,ealised 01 intended to be sold or consumed in nonnal ope1·ating cycle; 
- Held p,ima, ily for the prnvose of 1,ading: 
- Expected to be realised within twelve months arter the repo, ting date; 01 

- Cash or cash equivalent unless it is 1es1riclcd from being exchanged o,• nsed to scllie a liability f01 at least twelve months afte, the rcpo11ing dale. 

/\II other assets a,e classified as non-current. 
I\ liability is current when: 
- Ii is expected to be settled in no1111al opc,ating cycle; 
- It is held pl'ima,ily fo, the pu,posc of trading; 
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date: 01 
- The,c is no unconditional ri ght to defc, the selllement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
Mindspace REIT classifies all othe, liabilities as n01i-cu1Tent. 

Defe11ed tax assets and liabilities me classified as non-cunent assets and liabilities. 
The ope,ating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets fo, p,occssing and thei, ,ealisation in cash and cash equivalents Mindspace RlclT has 
identified twelve months as its ope,ating cycle 

c) Measurement of fair values 
Mindspace REIT accounting policies and disclosu,es 1equi1e the measurement of fair values, fo, both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 
Mindspace REIT has an established co1111ol framework with 1especl lo the measu,•cment offai, values. 

Mindspace REIT regularly reviews significant unobse,vable inputs and valuation adjustments , If third party infmmalion is used to measure fair values then 
the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the thi rd pa11ies to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the 1equi1eme11ls of Ind AS, 
including the level in the fair value hiel'aichy in which such valuations should be classified . 

When measuring the l'ait value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace REIT uses observable market data as far as possible. Fai, values a,c calcgo1iscd into 
difforcnl levels in a fair value hiera,chy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 
, Level I: quoted p1iees (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabili ties that entity can access on measurement date , 
, Level 2: inputs othe, than quoted prices included in Level I that me observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as p,ices) 01 indi,ectly (i ,c 
de, ived rrom prices) 

, Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that a,e 1101 based on obse,vable market data (unobse1vable inputs). 
If the inputs used to measu1e the t'ai, value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fai, value hiern,chy, then the foi, value measurement is 
categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fai,· value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement 

!l 



MINDSPACE BUSIN~:ss PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(all nmounts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated) 

3. I Impairment or assets 
Mindspace REIT assesses at each rcpm1ing date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impai red. If any such indication exists, the t, ust estimates 
the 1ccoveiable amount or the asset. The rccovc1·ablc amount of the assets (m where applicable that of the cash gcnctating unit to which the asset belongs) is 
estimated as the higher of its net selling p1ice and its value in use Value in use is the p,escnt value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise li'om the 
continuing use of the assets and tiom its disposal at the end of its useful life. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset rn-1hc 
cash-gcncrnting unit lo which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount, Impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit mid Loss. 

When an impainnent loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the ,eviscd estimate of its 
recoverable amount, bnt so that the increased carrying amount docs not exceed the cmrying amount that would have been determined had no impainncnl loss 
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in p1ior years_ A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of P1ofit 
and Loss. 

3.2 Asset Acquisition 
If the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets does not constitute a business, Mindspace REIT identifies and recognises the individual identifiable assets 
acquired including those assets that meet the definition of, and recognition crite,ia for, intangible assets in Ind AS 38, lntanb~ble Assets and liabilities assumed 
The cost of the group is allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of ptll'chasc and no 
goodwill is recognised 

Allocation of the cost oflhe group is done as follows: 

Frn any identifiable asset or liability initially measu,ed at an amount other than cost, Mindspace REIT initially measures that asset or liability at the amount 
specified in the applicable Ind AS Standmd. Mindspacc REIT deducts ftom the transaction price of the group the amounts allocated lo the assets and liabilities 
initially measured al an amount other than cost, and then allocates the ,esidual transaction price lo the 1cmaining identifiable assets and liabilities based on 
thci, ,clativc fai r values al the date of the acquisition 

3.3 Foreign currency transactions 
T,ansaclions denominated in foteib~' cuncncy me tecrnded at the exchange rate prevailing on the dale of transactions, Exchange diffc,cnccs aiising on fo1cign 
exchange tt·ansactions settled during the period a, c recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the pct iod. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cu1Tcncy, which arc outstanding as at the end of the petiod and not covered by fo,ward contracts, arc 
tianslatcd at the end or the pc1iod at the closing exchange ,ate and the 1csulta11t exchange differences me recognised in the Statement of J>,ofit and Loss. Non­
monetary fol'eign cu11c11cy items at'c crmied at cost, 

3,4 Compound financial instruments 
'[ he component pai1s of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace REIT arc classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance 
with the substance ot the contractual arra ngements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled 
by the exchange of a Jixed amount of cash 01· anothc, financial asset fo, a fixed numbc, of the Trust's own equity inst,umenls is an equity inst, 11mc11l 

Al the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing ma,kct inte,est rate for simila1· non-conve11ible instruments , This 
amount is 1ecrndcd as a liability 011 an amortised cost basis using the effective intc,est method until extinguished upon conversion or at the inst1·,11ncnt's 
nrntu, ily dale 
The convetsion option classified as equity is dcte1111incd by deducting the amount oflhe liability component fiom the fair value ofthc compound inst,umcnt as 
a whole This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured 

T, ansaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible inst, umenls are allocated to the liability and equity components in propot tion to the al location of the 
gi-oss pl'Occcds T1a11saclion costs ,elating to the equity component arc 1ccognised directly in equity Transaction costs relating lo the liability component arc 
included in the carrying amount ol'll1c liability component and arc amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument using the effective intc,csl method 

3.5 Embedded derivatives 
A derivative embedded in a hybrid co11t1acl, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is scpat'alcd from the host and accounted fot as a separate dc,-ivativc 
if: the economic chmacte,istics and risks me not closely ,elated to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet 
the definition ofa derivative; and the hyb,id contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded de1ivatives are measured at fai, value with 
changes in fair value 1ecogniscd in profit 01 loss, Reassessment only occuts if there is either a change in the tenns of the contract that significantly modifies the 
cash nows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit 01 loss catego,y 

3.6 Tax expense 
Income tax expense comprises current lax and defell'cd tax chmgc 01· credit . It is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss except 
to the extent that it relates lo an item 1ccogniscd di,cctly in equity or in other comp1ehc11sive income in which case, the cu1-rent and dcfc11·cd tax a,c also 
recognised in equity and other comprehensive income respectively. 

a) Current tax 
Cu11cnt tax comp,iscs the expected tax payable or 1cccivablc 011 the taxable income or loss frn the period and any adjustment lo the tax payable rn· 
receivable in respect of previous ycats The amount of cutrcnt lax reflects tl1c best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid rn· tcccivcd al'tc1· 
considering the ,111ce11ainty, if any, ,elated to income taxes. It is mcasu,cd using lax ,ates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by end or 
reporting period 

b) DcFcrrcd tax 
Dcfcircd tax asset/ liability is ,·ccognizcd 011 tcmprnary diffc1e11ces between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Condensed Standalone 
Financial Statements and the corresponding lax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc measu,ed that arc 
expected to apply to the period when the asset is 1ealised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end or the rcprn1ing pc, iod. 

The measurement or del'errcd tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which Mindspace REIT expects, 
at the end of the ,eprnting period, to recover 01 settle the canying amount of ils assets and liabilities. 
Defo11cd tax liabilities a,c gcnc,ally 1ecob"1izcd for all taxable tempormy differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 1ecog11izcd fo r all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temprn a,y di ffc1·c11ccs can be 
utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities arc not recob"1ized if the tempora,y difference arises from the initial recognition (other titan in a business 
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable p1ofit nor the accounting profit. 
The canying amount of dcfc1Tcd tax assets a,·e ,eviewcd at the end of each repo,ting period and ,educed to the extent that it is no longe,- probable that 
sufficient taxable pl'Ofits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Dcfcned tax assets and liabilities arc offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset cunent tax assets and liabilities, and they ,·elate lo income taxes 
levied by the same tax authority on the same laxablc entity, or on diffetent tax entities, but they intend to settle cunent tax liabilities and asscls on a net 
b s1.s or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
l{N: IN/REIT/I 9-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Stnndnlone Firnmcinl Stntcmcnts 
(.ill amounts in Rs, million unless othenvisc stated) 

3.7 Prn\'isions, contingent linbilities niul contingent nsscts 
1'1ovisions are recognised when Mindspacc REIT has a p1csent legal 01 const,uctive obligation as a 1cs1dl ofa past event, it is probable that the Trnst will be 
requi,cd 10 sellle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made ol'thc amount of the obligalion. The amount recognised as a provision is the best eslimalc 
ol'thc consideiation 1equircd lo settle the p1csc111 obligation at the end of the repo1ting period, taking into account 1he risks and uncertainties sunouuding the 
obligation P,ovisions me dctc1111incd by discounting the expected future cash flows al a pre-tax iate that reflects current ma,kct assessments ol'll1c time value 
of money and the 1isks specific to the liability The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cosl. 

Contingent liabililies me disclosed when there is a possible obligation 01 a piesenl obligalion that may, but will probably not. require an outAow 01'1esou1ces 
When there is a possible obligation of a p1cscnl obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is ,emote, no provision m disclosu1e is 
made. 
A contingent asset 1s disclosed wl1en there wou ld be a possible asset that mises l'iom past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by lhe occuncncc 
or non-occunence of one 01 more unce11a1n futu1 e events not wholly within the conl!ol of Mindspace REIT 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets arc reviewed at each ,cporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

3,8 Investment in SPVs 
The Company has elected to recognize its investments in SPVs at cost in accordance with lhc option available in Ind J\S 27, 'Separa te Financial Statcmc111s·. 
rhc details of such investments are give11 in Note 4. 
Assets 1cp1escnting investments in SPVs a,e reviewed fo1 impai1111ent,wheneve1· evenls or changes in circumstances indicate th at carrying amount may 11ot be 
1ccovcrable Such ci1cumstances include, though arc not limited lo, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in lhc 
cco1101111c environment 

J.9 Financial instruments 
lnitinl recognition and measurement 
Financial assets and/01 linancial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace REIT becomes party lo a contrnct embodying the related financial instruments 
J\11 financial assets, financial li abilities a1e initially mcasu1ed at f'ai,· value. T, ansaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition rn issue of financial 
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities al fair value through profit or loss) me added to 01 deducted f'lom as the 
case may be, the tai, value of such assets or liabilities, on initial 1ccognition Tiansaction costs directly attribulablc lo the acquisition of' financial assets rn 
financial liabilities at fai, value through prolit or loss arc rccoguiscd immediately in the Statement of 1'1 ofll and Loss. 

2 Financial assets: 

11) Classificntion of financial assets: 
(i) Mindspacc REITclassif'ics it s financial assets in the following measurement catcgmies: 

- those lo be measured subsequently al fair value (either through other comp1ehensive income, or th1ough the Statement of l'rofit and Loss), and 

- those mcasu1cd at amortised cost. 
(i1) The classification is done depending upon Mindspacc REIT business model ro, managing the financial assets and the contrnetunl te1111s of' ihe cash 

llows 
(iii) Fm investments in debt insl1um cnts, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held , 
(iv) Minds1rncc Rl·:t'I' 1cclassif'ics debt investmcnls when and 011ly wl1cn ils busi11ess model f'rn ma11agi11g those assets cha11ges 

h) Suhsequcnt Mcnsurcment 
(i) Deht instruments: 

Suh!\cqucnl measurement of dcbl inst1u111cnts depends on Minctspace RL~IT business model fo, managing the asset and the cash llow chrnactc,istics of 
the ussct I hc1c arc tht\!C mcasu1cmcnt cntcgorics into which the T1ust clrissifics its debt i11st1u111cnls: 

Fiu•ncial assets at amortised cost 
Financial assets me subsequently measured al amrn1iscd cost ii these financial assets arc held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets 
in order to collect co11tracl11nl cash flows and the contractual lerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows that a1c solely 
payments of p1 incipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financinl assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
Financial assets are subseque11tly measured al fair value th1ough other comprehensive income if these financial assets a1c held within a business 
whose objective is achiewd by both collecting co11trnclual cash nows that give rise on specified dales to solely payments of' p, incipal and intc,cst on 
lhe p1incipal amounl outstanding and by selling financial assets 

Finaucial nsscts at fair value through the Statement nf Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 
Financial assets arc subsequently measured at fair value tlu ough the Statement of P1ofi1 and Loss unless it is measll!cd al amrnliscd cosl or foir value 
th1ough othc1 comprehensive income 011 initial recognition The llansaction costs di1ectly attributable lo the acquisition of fi11ancial assets and 
liabilities at rai1 value 1l11 ough p1ofit or loss me immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
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c) Impairment of financi;1I usscts: 

The Mindspacc G1oup applies lhc expected c1·cdit loss model fo1 1'ccognising impai1111cnt loss on financial assets mcasu1cd al ammtiscd cost, lease 
1 cccivablcs, l1 adc 1cccivablcs, other contrnclual I ights to 1cccivc cash 01' othc1 financial asset Fo1 tiadc 1eceivablcs, the Mindspace Group mcrisurcs the loss 
allowance al an amu,1111 equal lo lit'etime expected CLedil losses Further, for lhe purpose or measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance lo, l1adc 
,eceivablcs, the Mindspacc Group has used a p1aclical expedient as permitted unde,· Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on 
a provision matrix which lakes into accounl hislrn ical c, edit loss cxpc, icncc and adjusted ro, forwa,d-looking i11fo1111alion 

d) De recognition of financial nssets: 
A linancial asset is primarily derecognised when: 
(i) the tight to tcccive cash flows from the asset has expi,cd, or 
(ii) Mindspacc REIT has lra11sfe11cd its 1ights to ,cccive cash flows from the asset: and 

Mindspace REIT has lransfe11ed substantially all the risks and rcwmds of the asset, or 
Mindspace REIT has neither t1 ansfe1Tcd nrn retninerl s11hstnnti;illy all the I isks nnci rewimi.~ of the :isset, h11t lrns tr :111.sforrcrl control of the asscl 

On dcrccognilion of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity inslrnments at l'VOCI), the differences between the cm1yi11g 
amounts mcaswcd at the date ofdcrccog11itio11 and the considcralion ,cceived is recognised in Statement ofl',ofit and I.ass, Any i111e1esl in ltansl'c11cd 
financial assets that is ct'catcd o, retained by Mindspacc REIT is recognised as a separate asset or liability 

3.10 Financial liabilities and equil)' instruments 

(a) Classification as debt or equil)• 
Financial I iabilitics and equity inst, umcnts issued by Mindspacc REIT m c classified accotding lo the substance of lhc conltaclual a11 angcmenls cnte, cd into 
and !he dclinitions or a financial liability and an equity instrument 

Financial Linhilitics 

Recognition, measurement and clnssification 
l'inancial liabilities are classified as either held al a) fair value through the Statement of r,ollt and Loss, 01 b) at amortised cost. Management determines 
lhc classification ot'ils financial liabili11cs al lhc lime of initial recognition or, where applicable, al the time of,eclassification . 

Mindspaee REIT financial liabilities include tiade and other payables, loans and bo11owi11gs and derivative financial instruments Subsequent meas,11cmc111 
of financial liabilities depends 011 thei,· classification as fair value th,ough the Statement of Profit and Loss or at amo11iscd cost All changes in fai, value 01· 
l111ancial liabilities classilicd as FVTPL are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss i\mol'tised cost category is applicable to loans and bonowings, 
trade and other payables, Aller· initial ,ccognition the financial liabilities ate mcasutcd at amrntiscd cost using the Effective lntc,cst Rate method. 

Dcreco~nition 
A li11a11eial liability is de,ccognised when the obligation under the liability is discha rged or cancelled or expires Gains and losses arc recognised in the 
Slalcmcnt of P,ofil mid Loss when the liabilities aic dcrccogniscd. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and li11a11cial liabilities ate offset and p1esc11tcd on net basis in the Ralance Sheet when thc,·c is a ct11Te11tly c11fo1ceable legal, ight 10 offset 
the 1ccog11ised amounts and there is an intention either to settle 011 a ncl basis o, to ,·calisc the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously 

3.11 Finnncial guarantee contracts 
A financial guaiantce cont1act is a contract that 1cqui1cs the issuer to make specified payments to l'eimbu1se the holder fo l' a loss it incu1's because n spcci!'icd 
dcblOI' fails to 111akc payments when due in accol'ciance with the terms of a debt instrument. 
Financial guHrantee eonlrael arc measured initially al the fair value m1d in acc01dance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case 10 case basis Mindspaee RFIT elects lo 
account lo1 rinnneial g:ua!'anlec ns Insurance Cont1acts as spcciiied under Ind AS 104~ 

3.12 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is measured al the fai1 value or the conside1alion 1cccived or 1eceivnble. This inte1 alia involves discm111ting of the considcrntion clue 10 the p1escnt 
value ifpay111c111 extends beyond 110,mal credit terms 
Revenue is recognised when rccove1y oflhe considernlion is p1obable and the amount 0C1cvenue can be 111easured reliably. 
Recog11itio11 of tlivide,ul i11co111e, i11terest i11co111e 
Dividend income is recognised in p1ot'it or loss on the dale on which Mindspacc REIT's right to 1cccivc payment is established. 

lnte,esl income is 1ccog11ised using the effective inte,·est method The 'effective interest rate' is lhc rnle that exactly discounts estimated li11,11e cash ,·cccipls 
lh1 ough the expected life of the financial inst, umcnt to the g, ass canying amount of the financial asset. 

In calculating inte,csl income, the effective interest talc is applied to the g1oss ca11ying amount of the asset (when the asset is not crcdit-impai,ed) llowcve,, 
fo r linancial assets 11ml have become c1edit-impai1ed subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculalcd by applying the effective i111c,·csl rate to 
the amortised cos! of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis 
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3. I 3 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are inte1csl and other costs (including exchange differences ,elating to foreib"' cuncncy borrowings to the extent that they me 1cgai·dcd as an 
adjustment to inte1cs1 costs) incu11ed in connection with the bonowing of funds Bon owing costs di1ectly att1ibutable to acquisition 01 constrnction of an asset 
which necessaiily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use a,·e capitalised as pail of the cost of that asset Other bonowing costs aie 
,ecogniscd as an expense in the period in which they me incuJTcd. 

Interest expense is recognised usiug the effective inte,cst method The 'effective interest ,ate' is the ,ate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
1l11ough the expected life of the financial instrument to the ammtised cost of the financial liability In calculating intc1est expense, the effective interest rntc is 
applied lo the amortised cost of the liability 

3.14 Cnsh and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comp1ises of cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, other short term, highly liquid investments with miginal matmitics of 
tlucc months or less that a,e readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 1isk of changes in value 

3. I 5 Cash distribution to unit holders 
Mindspacc REIT recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholdc1s when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been created As 
per the REIT Regulations, a dist, ibution is authorised when it is app1oved by the Governing Board of the Manager A corresponding amount is recognised 
directly in equity 

3.16 Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash flows 
Cash now is 1eportcd using the indi1ect method, whereby net profit befme tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash natu,e and any del'cnals 
or accruals of past 01 future cash receipts or payments, The cash flows ti-om operating, investing and financing activities of Mindspacc REIT arc segregated, 

Frn the purpose of the Statement of Cash f'!ow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and sho1 t-term deposits, as defined above, net ot' outstanding bank 
ovc1d1afts as they are considered an integral part of the T1us1·s cash management 

3.17 Suhscqucnt events 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements a,e adjusted lo ,cnccl events that occur after the reporting date but before the Financial Statements ate 
issued The Financial Statements have their own date of m1thorisalion Therefore, when prcpa1ing the f-immcial Statements. management considers events up 
10 the date of autl10risation of these financial statements, 

3.18 Enrnings per unit 
'I he basic eain111gs per unit is computed by dividing the ncl profit/ (loss) altributable to the unit holders of the REIT by the weighted avc,agc number of units 
outstanding du,ing the reporting pc,iod The number or units used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comp,ises the weighted average units 
conside,ed for dc1iving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted avc,agc number of units which could have been issued on the convc1sion of all 
dilutive potential units 
Dilutive potential units aic deemed convc1ted as of the beginning of the ,cporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing diluted 
earnings pc, unit, only potential equity units that arc dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share 01 inc1case loss per units a,e included 

J.19 E11rnings before finuncc costs, depreciation, amortisation and income tnx 
Mindspace REIT has elected to present earnings bcfo1c finance cost, depreciation, amo,tisation and income tax as a separate line item on the lace or the 
Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and I ,oss Mindspace REIT measmes earnings before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation and income lax on the 
basis ofprolit/ (loss) f'iom continuing operations In its measurement, Mindspnce REIT does 1101 include depreciation ancl amo,tisation expense, linance costs 
and tax expense. 

3.20 Errors and estimates 
Mindspace REIT 1evises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will p1 'ovide mme 1elevant and ,eliablc 
info, mat ion to the users of the Financial Statement. Changes in accounting policies a, e applied retrospectively, 

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of rccOb"'iscd assets or liabilities or to p1 o1it or loss is applied prnspcctivcly 
in the period(s) of change. 
Discove1y of en·m s ,esults in ,cvisions rcl!ospcctively by ,estating the comparative amounts of assets, I iabilities and equity of the ca!'iiest piior pc, iod in which 
the e11or is discovered, The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated. 

3.21 Distl'ihutions 
The Net Dist, ihutable Cash Flows of Min<lspace REIT me based on the cash tlows generated limn Mindspace RElT's assets and investments 

In terms of the Dist1ihution Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset Sl'Vs is required to be distributed to 
Mindspace REIT, in p1oportion of thci, shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable p1ovisions of the Companies Act P1esently, NDCF to be 1cccived 
by Mindspace REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the fonn of dividends, inte,est income, I" incipal loan 1epayment, proceeds of any capital ,eduction 01 
buyback limn the Asset Sl'Vs, sale p1occeds out of disposal of investments if any 01 assets di,ectly held by Mindspace REIT 01· as specifically permitted undc, 
the Trust Deed m in such othc, fo, 111 as may be pennissible unde, the applicable law 

The Manager is 1cqui1ed lo and shall declmc mid distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspacc REIT as dist1ibutions ("REIT Dis11ibutions") to the 
Unitholdeis Such REIT Dist, ibutions shall be declared and made fo,· cvc1y qua, ter of a r-inancial Year 
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4 Non-current investments 
Particulars 

Unquoted Investments in SPVs (at cost) 
(refer note below) 

- 39,75,000 (31 March 2021: 39,75,000) equity shares of Avacado 
Properties and Trading Private Limited of Rs. IO each, fully paid up 

- 11,765 (31 March 2021: 11,765) equity shares of Horizonview 
Properties Private Limited of Rs. IO each, fully paid up 

- 5,88,235 (31 March 2021: 5,88,235) equity shares of KRC 
Infrastructure And Projects Private Limited of Rs. IO each, fully paid up 

- 1,96,01,403 (31 March 2021: 1,96,01,403) equity shares of Gigaplex 
Estate Private Limited of Rs. I each, fully paid up 

- 2,50,71,875 (31 March 2021: 2,50,71,875) equity shares of Sundew 
Properties Limited of Rs. IO each, fully paid up 

- I 2,03,033 (31 March 2021: 12,03,033) equity shares of Inti me 
Properties Limited of Rs. JO each, fully paid up 

-1,78,00,000 (31 March 2021: 1,78,00,000) equity shares of K. Raheja 
IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited of Rs. IO each, fully paid up 

- 81,513 (31 March 202 I: 81,513) equity shares of Mindspace Business 
Parks Private Limited of Rs. IO each, fully paid up 

Total 

As at As at 
30 June 2021 31 March 2021 

9,482 9,482 

0 0 

6,868 6,868 

13,121 13,121 

33,722 33,722 

15,478 15,478 

25,618 25,618 

48,814 48,814 

1,53,103 1,53,103 

Note: The Trust has issued units as consideration lo acquire these investments wherein the tradable REIT Unit has been 
issued at Rs 275 each. 

Details of% shareholding in the SPVs, held bv Mindspace REIT is as under: 

Name ofSPVs Ownership Interest 
30 June 2021 31 March 2021 

Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 100% 100% 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 100% 100% 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 100% 100% 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 100% 100% 
lntime Properties Limited* 89% 89% 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited* 89% 89% 
Sundew Properties Limited* 89% 89% 
Mindseace Business Parks Private Limited 100% 100% 

* Remaining 11% of ownership interest in lntime Properties Limited, K. Raheja !T Park (Hyderabad) Limited and 
Sundcw Properties Limited is owned by Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation (APIIC) 
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5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Loans (Non current) 
Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
I ,oan to SPVs- refor Note 30 

As at 
30 June 2021 

16,178 

16,178 

As al 
3 I March 2021 

21 , 178 

21,178 

Note · Mindspace REIT has given loan amounting Rs 3,300 million during the quarter ended 30 June 202 l (31 March 2021 Rs 
26,682 million) to Gigaplex, Avacado, Horizonview, KRC Infra, MB PPL and Sundew and the outstanding balance as al end of 30 
June 2021 is Rs 21,178 million (including Loans to SPY's of current nature amounting to Rs 5,000 million) (3 l March 2021 
Rs.21, 178 million) 
Security: Unsecured 

Interest : 7 50% per annum for the quarter ending 30 June 2021 (31 March 2021 - 7.55% - 8 75% per annum) in accordance with 
interest rate policy as adopted b} Mindspaee REIT 

Terms of repayment: 

a) Bullet repayment ol' Rs 9,728 million on dale falling 15 years from the lirsl disbursement dale or such other date as may be 
mutually agreed between the Lender and the Borrower in writing. 

bJ Bulle\ repayment of Rs.5,000 million is due on 29 /\p1 ii 2022 and accordingly the same has been classified as current loans as 
on 30 June 2021 (refer note 8) 
c) Bullet repayment oF Rs 4.470 million is due on 17 May 2024 

d) Bullet repayment Rs 1,980 million is due on 16 December 2023 

e) At any time prior lo the repayment date, the Borrower may on any date, prepay the whole or any part of the loan outstanding 

Other financial assets (Non-current) 
Particulars As HI As at 

30 June 2021 3 I March 2021 
Interest receivable on loan to Sl'Vs 80 205 
Other Receivables lrom related earlies 5 8 

85 213 

Other Non-current assets 
Particulars As at As at 

30 June 2021 3 I March 202 I 
Pre aid Ex enses 4 4 

4 4 

Loans (Current) 
Particulars As at As at 

30 ,June 2021 31 March 2021 
Unsecured, c,msidered good 
Loan io Sl'Vs- refer Note 5 and 30 5,000 

5 000 

Cn,d1 1111d cush c11'1i1•11lcn ls 
Particulars As at As at 

30 ,June 2021 3 I March 202 I 

Cash on hand 
13alanccs with banks 

- in current accounts• 2,768 2,888 
- lh ~d dcpo~i•~ wfil1 on11i11n l n111t11ri1v lcs8 limn 11101111, s 75 50 

2,lMJ 2,IJJ8 
*Includes balance with banks of Rs O million (31 March 2021: NIL) for unclaimed distributions. 

10 Other current financial assets 
Pa rticu la rs 

Interest receivable on loan to SPVs 

11 Other current assets 
Pa rticu la rs 

l lnsec.,ured, considered good 
/\dva~ce for supply of goods and rendering of services 
Deposits 
Prepaid Expenses 
Ha lances with government autho1 ities 

15 

As at 
30 June 2021 

288 
288 

As at 
30 June 2021 

8 

12 
2 

23 

As al 
3 I March 2021 

2 
2 

As at 
31 March 2021 

6 
I 
2 
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12 
C'o r lll5 

As at I April 2020 
Additions durin g the yem 
As at 31 Mnrch 2021 
As ut I April 2021 
Additions dur.fn» the period 
Closing Balance as at 30 ,June 2021 

A11uu1111 
(I 

0 
0 

a 
13 l!nit Cn ital 

Unit Ca 1itnl 
As at I April 2020 
Units issued du, ing the year 

- pursuant to the initial public offe,, issued, subscribed and fully paid-up in cash 
(refer note a(ii) below) 

- in exchange for equity interest in SPVs (refer note a(iii) below) 
Less: Issue expenses (refer note below) 
As at31 March 2021 
Asat I April 2021 
Units issued d111in, the e,iod 

No. 

3,63,63,600 

55,66,54,582 

59 30,18 182 
59,30,18,182 

Amount 

10,000 

1,53,080 
(241 I 

1,62,839 
1,62,839 

Closing Balance as at 30 June 2021 59,30, 18,182 I 62,839 

Note: Issue expenses pertaining lo the Initial Public Offering (]PO) and listing of the units on the NSE and BSE have been reduced lrom the Unitholdc,s 
capital in accot·dancc with Ind AS 32 financial lnsllumcnts: P,csenlation 

(a) Terms/rights attached to units and other disclosures 

(i) Mindspacc REIT has only one class of Units Each Unit rep,escnts an undivided bcncl'icial i111e1cst in Mindspacc REIT Each holder of Units is entitled lo 
one vole per unit ·1 he Unilholdc,s have the right to receive at least 90% or the Net Distributable Cash Flows or the Trust at least once in evcty six months 
in each financial yea, in accOl'dancc with the REIT Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Manager approves distributions The dist, ibulion will be in 
p1 opo, tion to the numbc,· of Units held by the Unitholdc, s. Mindspace REIT declares and pays dist, ibutions in Indian Rupees. 

Under the p1ovisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace REIT is rcqui,·cd to distribute to Unilholde,s not less than 90% of the net distributable cash 
llows of Mindspacc RUT for each financial year. Accordingly, a pot1ion of the Unit Capital contains a conttactual obligation or the Mindspacc REIT to 
pay to its Unitholde,s cash dist,ibutions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial insllumcnt which contains equity and liability components in 
accordance with Ind AS J2 - Financial lnsllumcnts: 1'1esentation However, in accordance with SEl3l Circulais (No, CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 
December 2016 and No CIR/IMD/DF/141/20! 6 dated 26 December 2016) issued under the REIT Regulations, the Unitholders' fonds have been presented 
as "Equity" in orde, lo comply with the requirements of Section I-I of Annexurc A lo the SEBI Circular' dated 26 December 2016 dealing with the 
minimum presentation and disclost11c 1cquircmcn1s fo, key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity, the dist,ibulions 
lo Un11holde1s is also presented in Slalcmcnl or Changes in Unitholdc,s' Equity when the dist,ibutions aie app,ovcd by the 13oard of Di,celois ol' 
Investment Manage, . 

(ii) Initial Public Offering of 3,63,63,600 units for cash at p, ice of Rs. 275 pc, unit agg,egating to Rs. 10,000 million , 
(iii) Mindspacc Rlol'I has acqui,·cd the SPVs by acqui, ing all the equity interest held by the Sponsor Group and Blackstone Entities in the Sl'Vs, The 

acquisition of equity interest in the SPVs has been done by issue of 55,66,54,582 units of Rs. 275 each as pc,· the table below 

Number of Units allotted for acquiring equity interest held by Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities in SPVs 

Name of the SPY S11onsor Grou1> Blackstone Entities Total 
Avacado 2,93,04,371 51,71,359 3,44,75,730 
I lorizonview 364 64 428 
KRC Inti a 2, 12,24,693 3 7,45,522 2,49,70,215 
Gigaplcx 4,73,34,745 3,72, 113 4,77,06,858 
lnlime 4,67,89,935 94,84,426 5,62,74,361 
Sundcw I 0, 19,43,753 2,06,64,275 12,26,08,028 
KRIT 7 ,74,43,859 1,56,98,080 9,31,41,939 
Mindspacc 15,08,55 ,361 2,66,21,662 17,74,77,023 
'I otnl number ol Umts issued 47 48 97,081 8, 17,57,50 I 55,66,54,582 

(b) l!nitholders holding more than 5 percent Units in Mindspace REIT (other than Sponsor and Sponsor Group) 
Name of the unitholder As at 30 June 2021 As at 31 Ma,ch 2021 

, 11 of IJulls No or Unns 
IIRIW A~rn S Pearl I lolcli ng (NQ) Ptc I .Id S,'12,Y 1,425 

'1/, hQldiu g %hnl(l i11 g 
9 16% 

(c) Mindspacc REIT has not allotted m1y folly paid-up units by way of bonus units 1101 has it bought back any class of units ftom the date of1cgisl1alion till the 
balance sheet dale. fu11hcr, Mindspacc REIT has nol issued any units fo, consideration other than cash from the date of rcgistrnlion till the balance sheet 
date. except as disclosed above. 

14 Other E uitv 
Pa rticulars As at 

30 June 2021 

Reserves anti S11rp/11s 
Rclaincd cm nin 1s* 

•Refer Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity for detailed movement in other equity balances , 

Retained earnings 

2,880 
2,liliO 

As at 
31 Mmch 2021 

2,950 
2 950 

The cumulative gain or loss at ising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated unde, · the heading or retained earnings, Al the 
end of the year, the profit after lax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the ,etaincd earnings account 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: I N/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Conclcnsecl Standalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

I 5 Borrow in s 
Particulars As at As at 

30 ,June 2021 31 March 2021 

10 year G-See linked secured, listed, gua,antccd, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rnted, principal protected 
- market linked, redeemable, non-convertible dcbc11tu1cs ("Markel Linked Debentrnes / MLD Series I") 
(net of issue expenses, at amo11ised cost) (31 March 2021 : 4,975 million) (refer Note I) 

10 yeai G-Scc linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, ,ated, pl'incipal prnteeted - market 
linked, redeemable, 11011-convc,tible debentures ("Market Linked Debentu,es / MLD Series 2") (net of issue 
expenses, at ammtised cost) (31 Ma,ch 2021 : 3,719 million) (refer Note 2) 

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, iaicd, 1cdecmablc non-convertible debentu,es (NCD Series 
I) (net of issue expenses, at amOl1ised cost) (31 March 2021 : 1,981 million) (iefer Note 3) 

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-eonvertible debentures (NCD Series 
2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2021 : 750 million) (,•efer Note 4) 

3,722 

1,983 

750 

6,455 

4,975 

3,719 

1,981 

750 

11.425 

Note I : 111 Septembe, 2020, Mindspace REIT issued 5,000 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, 11011-cumulative, ,atcd, principal 
protected - market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures ("Market Linked Debentures/ MLD Series I") having face value of Rs, 10,00,000 
(Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Rupees five hundred crores only). The tenure of the said MLD Se,ics I is 577 clays from 29 
September 2020, being dale of allotment of the MLD Series I and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i e on malu1 ily on 
29 Ap, ii 2022 rhc coupon payoff s1111cl11re is linked to condition where the payoff will be fixed on the final lixing date i.c 30 Mai ch 2022 If idcnlil'icd I 0 
yeai G-Sec's lasl t1adcd p,ice as on final fixing date is greater than 25% of its last traded p1icc as on initial fixing date i e 29 September 2020, the coupon 
ralc will be 6 80% pa. If identified IO year G-Sec's last t,aded piice as on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% or its lasl traded p, ice as 011 initial 
fixing date, the coupon rate will be zc, o percent. As per the valuers , cport in respect of valuation of MLD Series I, the p, obability of occun cnce of such an 
event (last t, acted p, ice of identified IO yea, G-Scc on final lixing date being less than or equal lo 25% of its last tiadcd piice on initial l'ixing date) is 
remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero. 
This ML.I) Se,ies I was listed on 13Slo Limited on 13 Ociober 2020 

Security terms 

MLD Sc, ics I a, e sccrn cd by each or the following sccu, ily in favou r of the Debenture Trustee (holding frn the benclit of the Debe11t111 e I loldc, s): 

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way or simple mo1tgage (including receivables arising therefrom) 011 the aggregate leasable aiea or 
app,oximatcly 974,500 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no 6, 7 and 8 of Commcrzone Yerawada (app,ox . 178,569 sq ft. in building 110 6, app,ox 
371,799 sq rt. in building 110. 7 and approx 424,132 in building no , 8) together with the propo1tio11ate undivided right, title and i11le1cs1 in the notionally 
dcmmcated land admcasu1i11g app1oximalcly 25,313 sq mt,s on which the said three building 110 6, 7 and 8, out of all those pieces and parcels of lmge, 
land arc situate, lying and being in Village Ycrawada, Taluka llavcli, District l'une ("Mo,tgaged Properties") ofMLD Series I 

b) A charge on the escrow account in which 1·cccivablcs of lhc Mortgaged Properties of MB PPL shall be received 

c) Corprnatc guaiantee executed by MBl'PL 

Retfe111plio11 terms: 
a) MLD Se, ies I are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 577 days from the date of allotment, i,e 29 Ap, ii 2022 and accordingly the same 
has been classified as cun enl bonowings as on 30 June 2021 (refer note 17) 
b) 'I he Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case 1ati11g is upg1adcd af'lc, any 
ialing dow11g1ade, the Coupon shall be dec,eascd by 25 bps fo, each upg1ade. The lnvesto,s shall have the light to accelerate the MU) Se,ies I if the 
rnling is downg,aded to A+ 

c) Upon occull'ence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days notice to the Issue, 
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all lhe Debentu res then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of 
each Debenture. 
d) Dc1111ls of disclosure rc![Ldl'~tl as ocr SEBI circular· SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 /\11ril 2018 a,e as follows . 
Particulars Sccu red/ Unsecured Previous du.c date Next clue date 

Princiual Interest Princiual Interest 
10 year G-Sec linked secured . Secured Not Applicable Not Applicable On Maturity On Maturity 
listed, guaianteed, senior, taxable, 
non-cumulative, iated, p1'incipal 
protected - market linked, 
1cdecmable, non-conve11ible 
debentmes ("Market Linked 
Debentures/ Ml .D Series I") 

- " c) Rating agency CRISIJ, has assigned a ratmg of "CRISIL PP-MLD AAA1/Stable' to MLD Se, 1cs I ot the 1ss11e1 / M111dspacc REI I Subsequently ihc1e 1s 
no challl..!.C in the credit i-atinu 

Note2: In Mmch 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, p,incipal p,otectcd --111aike1 
linked, redeemable, non-conve11iblc debent111cs ("Maiket Linked Debentures/ MLD Series 2") having face value or Rs 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) 
each, amounting to Rs 375,00,00,000 (Rupees tl11·ce hundred seventy five crorcs only) . The temue of the said MLD Sc,·ies 2 is 38 months lio111 18 Mmch 
2021, being date of allolmcnl of the MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on mallll ity 011 17 May 
2024. The coupon payoff st, uctme is linked to condition whe, e the payoff will be fixed on the final fixing date i c 16 April 2024 If identified IO yeai G­
Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is greater than 25% of its last trnded p1·ice as on initial fixing date i,e 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will be 
6.65% p_a_ If identified IO year G-See 's last traded p, ice as on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on initial lixing date, 
the coupon ,ate will be ze,o percent As pc, the val11e1s reprnt in 1espect of valuation of these MID Se,ies 2, the probability ofoccu,rence of such an event 
(last traded price of identified IO year G-Scc on final fixing date being less than OI equal to 25% of its last II acted price on initial fixing date) is I emote and 
hence the value of the option conside,cd as zero 

This MLD Seiies 2 was listed on llSE Limited on 22 March 202 1. 
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1'\,lfNDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed St11ndalone Financial Statements 
(all nmounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stnted) 

Security terms 

MLD Series 2 a, e sccu1·cd by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Dcbcntu1 c Holders): 
a) First and exclusive cha1ge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggiegate leasable area ofapp1oximately 13,71,442 Sq. rt. 01 thereabouts 
in buildings no 12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx. 12,69,140 sq. ft. in building no, l2A and app1ox 1,02,302 sq rt in 
building no 12B) togethe1 with the propo11ionatc undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842 
sq. mtrs on which the said two building no . 12A and 12B, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Madlrnpu, 
Village, Serilingampally Manda! , Ranga Reddy Dist1ict, Hydeiabad ("Mortgaged P1operties"), for MLD Series 2. 

b) First , an king exclusive charge created by way of a hypothccation ove1· the Hypothecated Properties of MLD Series 2. 

c) A charge on the escrow accounl c,eated, in which receivables or the Mo!lgaged P1ope11ies of Sundew shall be ,eccived, save and except any common 
area maintenance charges payable to Sundew with , espect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties 
d) Corpo,ate guarantee executed by Sundew 

Redt!111ptio11 terms: 
a) MI.D Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 38 months flam the date of allotment, i.e 17 May 2024. 

b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for cve1y notch downg,adc in the ,ating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upgraded after any 
rating downg,adc, the Coupon shall be dcc,cased by 25 bps fo, each upg1ade. The lnvesto1s shall have the 1ight lo accele,ate the MU) Series 2 irthe 
iating is downgiaded to A+ 

c) Upon occ,11rencc of a manda101y redemption event, the Debentu,e T1ustce may, by issuing not less than 30 (thi11y) business days notice to the Issue,· 
1cqui1c the Issuer to redeem in foll, all the Debc111ures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in 1cspcct or 
each Debentu, e. 

cl) Details of d,~olosurc rcqu11-cd IL~ 1or $Iii II cJrcular $1 (1\1111 0 11 )DI fS/1)1)1 IS/Cll<ll'/20 I ll/7 1 dntcd I J A1ll ii 20 I~ n,c ns fo ll ows . 
Particulars Secured I Unsecured Previou.~ clue d:ite Next due date 

Princiillll Interest P1inci!lal Interest 
10 year G-Sec linked secu1ed, Seemed Not Applicable Not Applicable On Maturity On Matmity 
listed, se11io1. taxable, ll011· 

cumulative, ,ated, principal 
p1otected - mmket linked , 
redeemable, non-convertible 
debcntu,es ("Market I.inked 
Debentures I MLD Sc1ics 2") 

-e) Ra1111g agency CRISIL has assigned a iat111g of "CRISIL l'P-MLD AAAr/Stable" to MLD Senes 2 of the issuer/ M111dspace Rl, 1'1 Subsequently 1hc1c 1s 
no change in the c, edit iating 

Note 3 : In December 2020, Mindspacc Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 secwed, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, ,atcd, 1edcemable, 11011-convc,tiblc 
debentu,cs ("NCD Se,ies I") having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs 200,00 ,00,000 (Rupees two hundred 
cro1cs only) with a coupon rnte or 6 45% p.a. payable qua11c1 ly beginning fiom the end of first full quai1e1· from the date of allotment i.e. 31 March 2021, 
with last coupon payment on the scheduled ,edemption date i.c 16 December 2023 The tenu,c of the said NCD Scl'ies I is 36 months fiom 17 Dcccmbc, 
2020, being date of allotmc111 

This NCD Sc1ics I was listed on llSI" Limited on 21 Dcccmbc1 2020, 

Securi(v terms 

NCD Series I me sccu1cd by each of !he following security in favou, of the Debenture Trnslee (holding for the benefit of the NCD I lolde, s): 
a) l'i,·st and exclusive charge ,cgistercd by way of simple m01tgage (including ,eceivables arising therefrom) on the agg,egate leasable mea al 
approximately 414,599 Sq Ft 01· 1he1cabouls in buildings no I and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sq ft in building no I and app1ox 
371,399 in building no 5) togcthc1 with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 
18,264 sq. mt1s on which the sa id two building no_ I and 5, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situmcd, lying and being in Village 
Yeiawada, Taluka Haveli, Disl1ict Punc ("Mo11gaged P1ope1ties") of NCD Series I 
b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mo11gaged Prope11ies shall be 1cceived save and except any common area maintenance 
charges payable to MBBPL wilh respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged p1ope1ties. 
c) Corporate gua1a111ee executed by MBl'J>L. 

llede111ptio11 terms: 
a) NCO Series I a,e redeemable by way of bullet repayment al lhc end of 36 months f1om the date of allotment, i,e 16 December 2023. 
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial qua, tc, in a year (sta11i ng from 31 March, 2021) until the scheduled redemption dale 
c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps fo, evc,y notch downgrade in the rating by the C1edit Rating Agency In case iating is upgraded al'tc, any 
1ati11g downba·ade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upbaade. 
d) Upon occu11encc of a mandato1y redemption event, the Dcbcntu1c Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days' notice to the Issue, 
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in ,espccl ol' 
each debenture. 
cJ Delilils 11f di~~ lusurc rc111ur1.,d as ,or SEBI circular SElll /1 10 11 l)J JSIDl)I I . CIR i>/2() 18n I datu ) SI d l 0 13 Aul' 12 18meas fo l ows : 
P11 rticulars :secured I Unsecured Previous due date Next due elate 

Principal Interest Princi1>al Interest 
SCC\ll'l!d , listed, scnio1 , taxabl e, Sc 11rud On Maturily 30 June 2021 On Maturity )U Scptcmbc, 2021 
11on-c11muln1ivc, rated, 1cdccmnhlc 
J1ou ... convcn 1blc debentures (NCD 
s .. o-!r< 11 
I) Ratmg agency CRISII. has assigned a ialmg ol "CRISIL AANStahlc" to the NCD Sen es I ot the issuer I Mmdsflscc REIT. Subsequently thc1c 1s no 
change in lhc credit ia ting 
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RN: IN/REIT/I 9-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 4: In Mmch 2021, Mindspace Business Parks Rl'IT issued 750 sccu,ed, listed, senio,·, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, ,edcemable, 11011-convc,tiblc dcbentu,es 
("NCO Sc, ies 2") having face value or Rs. I 0,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 7 5,00,00,000 (Rupees seventy five c, ores only) with a 
coupon rate of'6 6861% p.a payable qumtcl'iy beginning from the end of fi1st full qua11e1 from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2021, with last coupon 
pay111e111 011 the scheduled redemption date i c 17 May 2024 The tenure or the said NCO Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date or 
allot111e111. 
NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE I .imitcd 011 22 March 2021 , 

Security terms 

NCD Sc, ies 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCO Holdc, s): 
a) Fi,st and exclusive chaige being 1·egistc1cd by way of simple mortgage (including ,eceivablcs arising the1efio111) on the aggregate lcasablc area of 
app,oximately 151,460 Sq Ft. or thc1eabouts in building 110. 4 ofComme,zone Yerawada togethc, with the proportionate undivided ,ight, title and intc,cst 
in the notionally demarcated land admeasu ring app, oximatcly 9,561 sq . mtrs on which the said building, out of all those pieces and pai'ccls of lmge, land 
that arc situated, lying and being in Village Yeiawada, Ta Iuka Have Ii, Dist, ict Pune ("Mortgaged Properties") of NCO Se,·ies 2 

b) A charge on the esc1ow account to be c,catcd, in which 1eceivables of the Mortgaged P1operties shall be received, save and except any common a,ea 
maintenance charges payable to MBPPL with ,·cspcct to the ma111te11a11ce of the mo,tgaged p1opertics. 
c) Coqiorate guaiantee executed by MBPPL 

Redemption terms: 
a) NCD Series 2 aie ,edeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end ol'38 months from the date of allotment, i e 17 May 2024 
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each rinancial qua, tc, in a year (starting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled , edemption date_ 
c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps fo, eve,y notch downg,ade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upg1aded arter any 
rating downgrndc, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps rm each upg,ade. 

cl) Upon occurrence of a mandatrny redemption cvent, the Debenture Trustee may, by issning not less than 30 (thi,ty) business days' notice to the Issue, 
require the Issue, to 1cdccm in full, all the dcbentu,es then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandato,y ,edemption amount in 1espect 01· 
each debenture , 
et Details of disclosu1 e n:@ 1rcd as ;c,r SElll circulm SEBl/1-1O/DDI-IS/DDI-IS/CIR/l'/2018/71 dated 13 A1ir112018 111·e os lbllows , 
Particulars Secured/ Unsecured Previous due date Next due date 

Principal Interest l'rinci1ial Interest 
Sccu,ed, listed, scnio1, taxable, Secu,cd On Matu,ily 30 June 2021 On Matu rity 1~ Septem be,· 2021 
non-cumulative, iated, redeemable 
11011-convc11ible debentures (NCD 
Series 2) 
t') Rating agency CRISIL has assigned a 1at111g oJ "CRISIL AAA/Stable" lo the NCD Senes 2 at the issuer/ M111dspace REI r Subs~(Jll~ntl)' thc,c ,s no 
change in the c11Jdit 1ating, 

Other requirements as 11er SEBI circular (No. SEBI/IIO/DDIIS/DDIIS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018) for issuance of deht securities hy Real 
Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) and Infrastructure Investment Trusts (lnvlTs). 

Pnrticulars 
As at and for the year ended 30 

----- ___ _,j_111!.£JmJ_ __ 
Secu,il) / Asset cover (MU) 
Surw~ I J(rcfor a liclu wJ 2.2(1 
Secu,ity / Asset cover (NCD Sc,ics 
I trefc,· b below) 2.37 
Secu,ity / Asset cover (MLD 
Se, ics 2)t1cfe1· c below) 2.34 
Sccmity / Asset cove, (NCD Se, ics 
2)(reJ'e,· d below) 2.44 
Debt-equity ,atio (1efcr c below) 0.o7 
Dcbt-sc,vic•o covernge 1atio (1cfc1 f 
below) 14.94 
lntcrcsl-scrvicc covc1agc ratio 
(refer H below) 14.94 
Net wo11h (Rs. in million) (1•efer h 

1,65,719 
below) 

Fonnulac for com put al ion of ratios a, c as follows basis Condensed Standalone Financial Statemcnts:-

a) Secu,ity ! Asset cove, ,atio (ML.I) Se,ies I)~ Fai, value of the secu,ed assets as on 30 June 2021 as computed by independent value,/ (Outstanding 
p1incipal amount ofMLD Series I+ lntel'csl accrued thc l'eon) 
b) Sccu, ity / Asset cove, ,atio (NCD Se1ies I)~ I.owe, of Fair value of the secured assets as on 30 June 2021 as computed by two independent value,s / 
(Outstanding principal amount ofNCD Series I I lntc,esl acc,ued the,eon) 
c) Secu l'i ty / Asset cover ,·Mio (MLI) Series 2) -·· Fai, value of the seclll'cd assets as on 30 June 2021 as computed by independent value, / (Outstanding 
principal amount ofMLD Sc,·ies 2 1- Jnte1est acc,ued the,eon) 
d) Secu11ty I t\ssc\ cover ,atio (NCD Sc,ies 2) ,_ Fair value of the secu,cd assets as on 30 June 2021 as computed by independent value, / (Outstanding 
principal amount ofNCD Series 2; Interest acc l'ued thereon) 
e) Debt equity ,atio - Bo11owings / Total Equity 
t) Debt Sc, vice Cove,agc Ratio ·:c Earnings before inte, est, depreciation and lax/ (Interest expenses+ Principal repayments made du ri ng the pc, iod) 
g) Interest Service Coverage Ratio ---Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax/ Interest expenses 
h) Net wo,th - Corpus-, Unit capital+ Othe, equity 
Bon owings Non cu1 rcnl borrowings i Cui I ent bonowings 1 Cun ent nrnturitics of long-tc1111 borrowings+ Interest accrued 
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16 Other financial liabilities 
Particulurs 

17 

18 

19 

lnte, est ace, ued but not due on debentures 
Ot her pay:1~ lcs tu rdal~d pnrtv 

Current liabilities 
Borrowin s 

Particulars 

Secured 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
10 year G-Sec linked secu1ed, listed, b'llaranteed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, p1incipal p1otected 
- market linked, redeemable, non-conve,tible debentu,es ("Mrnket Linked Deben1u1es / MLD Series I") 
(net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2021 : 4,975 million) (refer Note 15( I)) 

Particulars 

Trade payable 
- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 
-Total outstanding dues other than mic,o and small enterpl'ises 

Other financial liahilities (current) 
Particulars 

ln1e1est acc1ucd hut not due on dcbenlu,es 
Unpaid Distiibulions 
Other liabilities 
- lo related pm ty• 
- to othe,s 

As at 
30 June 2021 

As at 
30 June 2021 

70 
I 

71 

4,978 

4 978 

As at 
30 ,June 2021 

As at 
30 June 2021 

8 

262 
0 

27 

289 
• Expense of Rs 19 million (31 March 2021 Rs , 17 million) is payable to the Manager for Mindspaee REIT Management rees 

20 Other current liabilities 
Pnrticulnrs As at 

30 June 2021 
SW llllOI dues 

21 Current tax liabilities 
Particulars As at 

30 June 202 I 
l'rnvi~im1 f1)1 h1c,m1a T~ [Ne t or A<lv1111c0 TP.xl 3 

3 

20 

As al 
3 I Ma,eh 2021 

As al 
3 I March 2021 

As at 
31 Mai ch 2021 

As at 
3 I Ma,eh 2021 

As al 
31Mmeh2021 

As al 
3 I March 2021 

185 
8 

193 

13 
13 

,. 

17 

19 

(, 

(, 

3 
3 



MINDSI',\ ' f,; ll j!SfNJo'.SS I' IU,S IU-:1'1 
llNt lN/REIT/1 '1-10/0(JJ 

ltl \"$" ti) rhc Condcmual s1u•ulutui1c rrium1tinl S til1l'U1rn1,; 

(all amounlll in Rs, million unless otherwise stated) 

22 Interest Income 

Particulars 

lntcr·cst income 
- 011 fixed deposits 
- on loans µiven to SPVs (relcr note 30) 

23 Other Income 
Particulars 

Glia1antce Commission Fees 
Net gains/(losses) 011 fi1mncial assets at fait value through profit or 
loss• 
10111 on rcdl!mpU(lll of 1m11unl t11m.l unils 

• Gain on 1edemption ofi1wesl111ent in ptefcrence shares invested in SPY 

24 Other ex enses 
Particulars 

Bank cha, gcs 
Filing and stamping fees 
Royalty Charges 
Marketing and adve11isemenl expenses 
Broke, age Expenses 
M,sccl h:mc.:oux t1KJ>C! ll.St:s 

25 Fir11111c.c costs 
Particulars 

lntc1cst expense 011 dcbenru,es (refc,• Note 15) 
lntc,est expense on loans taken fiom Sl'V {refer Note 30) 

2<, Twx t, )L•11sr 

J>nrticulHrs 

Cu11c11t rnx 
D~fcrrcd tnx charl!c 

27 Enrnin~s Per Unit (El'U) 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 

0 
425 
425 

l'or the quarter 
ended 

JO June 2021 
(3) 

l'or the querier 
ended 

30 June 2021 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 

0 
5 

200 

200 

For the qunrter 
ended 

30 June 2021 

Fot the qua11cr 
ended 

31 March 2021 

I 
354 
355 

For rite qua1ter 
ended 

31 March 20? I 

For the qua,tcr 
ended 

3 I Mai ch 2021 

Fo, the qua,ter 
ended 

31 March 2021 

7 

0 
7 

0 
I 

(J 

2 

131 

131 

fo1 the quaItc1 
ended 

31 March 2021 

For the quarter 

ended 
30 June 2020 

1101· tho quartet 
ended 

30 June 2020 

For the quartet 
ended 

30 June 2020 

ro,· rite quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 

!'or the qua1tcr 
ended 

30 June 2020 

0 
0 

0 

For the ycm 
ended 

31 March 2021 

788 
789 

!'or tl1c ycat 
ended 

1 I March ?0? I 

For the yeai 
ended 

3 I March 2021 

Fo, tl1c yea, 
ended 

31Maich2021 

12 

0 

228 
2 

For the yea, 
ended 

230 

31 Match 2021 

Basic El'U amounts are calculn,cd by dividing lhe p1ofit for the period attriburablc to unit holde,s by lhc weighted ave1age number of units 0111sta11ding drning the 
pc1iod Diluted EPU ammmts are calculated by dividing the p1ofit athibutablc to unit holders by the weighted average 11111nbe1 of units outstanding during the 
pc, iod plus the weigltted avc1 age number of units thal would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive polential units into unit capital. The units of the Tnisl 
we,c allotted to Sponso1 Group and Blackstone clllities on 30 July 2020 and to the applicants of initial public offer 0114 August 2020. 

The following reflects the profit and unit data used in the basic and diluted EPU computation 

Pn1·ticulurs For the quarter f'OI" the qt1aitcr !'or the quarter For the year 
ended ended ended ended 

30 June 2021 31 March 2021 30 June 2020 31 Maich 2021 
1'1ofit / (loss) after tax for calculating basic and diluted EPU 2,782 2,874 (5) 5,834 
Weighted average mnnbe, of Units (Nos) 59,30,18,182 59,30, 18,182 Not Applicable 39,75,55, 169 
I.::amings Per Unit 
- Basic (Rupces/tu1it) 4.69 4,85 Not Applicable 14 67 
- Diluted (Ruecc•/111 ,ilJ • •l,611 4 85 Not Appl lo~ blc 111.67 
'M/11,Ls j, ncu REIT does not have any 01111111 111llnu <li lutivu urnts 

28 Manac:emcnt Fees 
IU:IT Mnnngemcnt Fees 
l'u1sua11t to the Investment Management Agreement elated 21 November 2019, the Manage, is entitled to fees@ 0,5% of REIT Net DiSll'ibutablc Cash Flows 
which shall be payable either in cash or in units 01 a combination of both, at the discretion of the Manager The fees has been determined fo1 undc1 taking 
management of the Rffl' and its i11vestmc11ts. The REIT Management fees accnied for the quaiter ended 30 June 2021 is Rs 16 million. ·11,c,c arc 110 changes 
du, ing the pe, iod i11 the methodology fo, computation of fees paid to the Manager, 

29 Assessment of llossiblc im1>oct resulting from Covi<.1~19 ()andemic 
Mindspacc REIT has considered the possible cflCcts that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the opcrntions and carrying amounts o!'l,oans 
given, lnvcslments and other assets Mindspacc REIT, as at the date of approval of these financial statements, has used internal and external sources of 
information to detcnninc the expected futt11c impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the perfonnancc of the Company. Mi11dspace REIT based on cnnent estimates 
expects the canying amount of the assets to he 1ccovc1cd. However, due to the evolving nature of the pandemic and its 1csponsc by vatious govcmmcnt 
autlmritics Mindspace Rl•:ITwill continue to monitordcvclopmenls to identify significant impacts, if any, on the operations 

21 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed ShtndHloue Fimrncinl Sh1tcments 
(nil Amounts in Rs. million unless othenvise stated) 

30 Relnlcd Party Disclosures 

A. Parties to Mindspncc REIT ns nl JO June 2021 

SI. No . Particulars Nnmr of Entities 
I Truslee Axi s Trusle.e Services Limited 

Sponsors Anbee Constructions LLP 

2 

- Cape Trading LLP 

J 

4 
M11nager K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

~ 
Sponsors Group Mr Chandru L Raheja 

,_ (refer note below) 

~ Mr Ravi C Raheia 
7 Mr Neel C Raheia 

I Mrs Jyoti C Raheia 
Capstan Trading LLP 

9 

- Casa Maria Properties LLP 

10 

- Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 

11 

- Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 

12 

,_ 
K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd 

13 

- lnorbit Malls (India) Private Limited (Lill JO July 2020) 

14 

-

22 

Promolers/Pnrtners 11111 Dirt'ctOni 

-
Mr Ravi C Raheja 
Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja 
Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Mr. Ravi C Raheja 
Mr Neel C Raheja 

-
. 
. 
. 

Mr Ravi C Raheja . 

Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheia 

Mr Ravi C Raheja -
Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Mr Ravi C Raheja . 

Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Mr Ravi C Raheja 
Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chand1u L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Ravi C Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Neel C Raheja 

Ramesh Valccha 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Jointly with Vinod Rohira 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Joinlly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Casa Maria Properties LLP 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 
Mr Neel C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Ramesh M Valecha 

Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Ravi C Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Neel C Raheja 

Sunil Hingorani 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Cesa Maria Properties LLP 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 
Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Ramesh M Valecha 
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd 
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/R~:f'l'/19-20/003 
Noles to the Condensed Shrndnlonc Fi1rnncinl Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million uni cu otherwise stated) 

30 Rclt1ted Party Disclosures 

A. Pnrties lo Mindspnce REIT as al JO June 2021 

SI. N u . P1utk11lnrs Nnme of Entltiu 
Ivory Properties and Hotels Private Limited (till 30 
July 2020) 

15 

- K Raheja Private Limited (till 30 July 2020) 

16 

- Ivory Property Trust 

17 

- - Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt Ltd 

18 

23 

Promoters/Pnrtners • Directors 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Ra vi C Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C Raheja Neel C Raheja 

Ramesh Valecha 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Jointly with Vinod Rohira 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Anbec Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Casa Maria Properties LLP 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 

Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Mrs Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Ra vi C Raheja 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with Neel C Raheja 

Mr Chand,u L Raheja Jointly with Vinod Roh1nt 

Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Casa Maria Properties LLP 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 

Chandru L Raheja 
Jyoti C Raheja 
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd 
Ravi C Raheja 
Neel C Raheja 
(all are trustees) 
Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with Ravi C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Neel C Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C. Raheja Ramesh Valecha 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Chandru L Raheja jointly with Jyoti C Raheja, 
behalf of Ivory Property Trust 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: I N/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condem1cd StnndAlonc Fimmclal Stntcmcnls 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stntcd) 

30 Relnted Party Disclosures 

A. P•rtlcs lo Mindspacc REIT ns nl 30 June 2021 

S I. No. Particulars 

19 

20 

21 

Nanto:5 of SP Vs 

Governing Board and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the 
Manager (K Raheja Corp 
Investment Managers LLP) 

Entities conlrolled /j ointly 
conlrolled by members of 
Governing Board 

• only when actinH collectively 

N°Rme of Entities Prornotcrs/P11rtncrs "' 
I Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private 
Limited 
2 Gi~aplex Estate Private Limited 
3 Horizonvicw Properties Private Limited 
4 KRC Infrastructure end Projecls Private Limited 

5 lntime Properties Limited 
6 Sundew Properties Limited 
7 K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
8 Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 

9 Dices Reu.lcun Priv1:11t: Limile<l (uplu 19th Fd.1rut11y, 

2021) 
IO Educator Protech Private Limited (upto 19th 
February. 2021) 
11 Happy Eastcon Private Limited (uplo 4th February, 
2021) 
12 Sampada Eastpro Private Limited (upto 17th Morch, 
2021) 

Governing Bonrd 
Mr Deepak Ghaisas 
Ms Manisha Girotra 
Mr Bobby Parikh 
Mr Alan Miyasaki 
Mr Ravi C Rehcja 
Mr Neel C Raheja 

f<t·y '°' 1111111t,:('Cl11 l Pt t'~on url 
Mr Vinod Rohira 
Ms Preeti Chheda 

Brookfield, Agro & Development Private Limited 
Cavalcade Properties Private Limited 
Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited 
[mmense Properties Privale Limited 
Novel Properties Privale Limited 
Pact Real Estate Privale Limited 
Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Pri vate Limited 

Sustain Properties Private Limited 
Aqual inc Real Estate Private Limited 
Feat Prope11ies Private Limited 
Carin P1opcrt ies Private Lim ited 
Astc,ope Properties Privale Limited 
Conlcnt P1opcrtics Private Limited 
Grendwell Properties And Leasing Private Limited 
Sundcw Real Eslate Private Limited 
Mis Bobby Parikh and Associates 
Gencoval Strale~ic Services Pvt Ltd 
Stemade Biotech Private Limited 
Hariom lnfrafacilities Services P1ivale Limited 

24 

Directors 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 

ores lo lhc Condr.nsc1I StnndH lonc Finnnd nl St11tcmcnts 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

30 Related party disclosures 

II Transactions during the period 

Unsecured loans given to 
Avacado Properties and Trading Pvt Ltd . 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
Horizo11view Properties Pvt. Ltd. 
Sundew Properties Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 

Unsecured loans taken from 
lntime Properties Limited 

Investment in preference shares 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 

Redemption of investment in preference shares 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 

Unsecured loans repaid by 
A vacado Properties and Trading Pvt. Ltd 
G igaplex Estate Pri vale Li 111 i ted 
Horizonview Properties Pvt. Ltd. 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 

Unsecured loans repaid to 
lntime Properties Limited 

Investment in equity share of SPVs 
Avacudo Propetties and Trading (India) Private Limited 
Gigaplex f:state Private Limited 
1-lonzonview Properties Private Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
lntime Properties Limited 
Sundcw Properties Limited 
K RahcJa IT !'ark (Hyderabad) I .imited 
Mindspacc Business Parks Private Limited 

Trustee fee expenses 
Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Dividend Income 
lntime Properties Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 

Interest Income 
i\vacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 
Gigaplex Estate Private I .imited 
l·lorizonvicw Properties Private Limited 
KRC lnfrastructu1e and Projects Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Private l.imited 

Interest Expense 
lntimc Properties Limited 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 .June 2021 

25 

150 
680 
250 

1180 
1040 

150 
680 
180 

1040 
420 
830 

508 
694 
685 
700 

78 
97 
87 
26 
76 
61 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 March 2021 

1,200 

200 
3,970 
1,350 
1,310 

400 
1,500 

560 
250 
850 

0 

507 
696 
668 
810 

83 
107 
80 
17 
21 
46 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 

For the yea1 
ended 

3 I March 2021 

4,498 
6,924 
4,490 
4,620 
2,080 
4,070 

150 

334 

337 

400 
2,104 

1,300 
480 

1,220 

150 

9,482 
13,121 

0 
6,808 

15,478 
33,722 
25,618 
48,814 

2 

925 
1,257 
1,202 
1.960 

205 
257 
222 

19 
23 
62 

2 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated) 

30 Related party disclosures 

B Transactions during the period 

Gnin on Redemption of Preference Shares 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 

Reimbursement of Expenses 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 

For the quarter 
ended 

3 1 March 2021 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 

For the year 
ended 

3 1 March 2021 

3 

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP" 3 61 

•Includes fees paid to Mis Bobby Parikh & Associates amounting to Rs. 1 million for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 and Rs 0.48 million for the 
year ended 31 March 2021 

Investment Management Fees 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Payment to Sponsor Group in relation to Offer for Sale 
Chandru L Raheja 
Jyoti C Raheja 
Ravi C Raheja 
Neel C Raheja 
Gcnexl Hardware & Parks Private Limited 
lnorbit Malls (India) Private Limited 
Ivory Properties And l lotels Private Limited 
Ivory Property Trust 
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 
K Raheja Private Limited 

Guarantee commission fees from SPV 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Pvt Ltd 

Guarantee commision fees to SPY 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Pvt Ltd 

Issue or Unit capital 
Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLI' 
Capstan Trading ILP 
Casa Maria Properties LLP 
Chandru L. Raheja 
Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited 
lnorbit Malls (I) Private Limited 
Ivory Properties & Hotels Private Limited 
Ivory Property Trust 
Jyoti C. Raheja 
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 
K Raheja Private Limited 
Neel C. Raheja 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 
Ravi C Raheja 

26 

16 

(2) 
(I) 
0 
0 

17 

6 

1 

0 

34 

10 
1,139 
1,180 
1,180 

958 
1,506 
3,387 

10,357 
4,304 
2,852 

6 

1 

0 
9 

9,736 
9,736 

11,301 
11,301 
8,984 
7,274 
1,541 
3,466 

13,008 
3,912 

14,468 
2,918 
5,845 

11,301 
9,958 
5,846 



MINDSPAO: UUSJNESS PAil KS REIT 
RN: IN/RI~ IT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

30 Related party disclosures 

C Closing Balances 

Particulars 
Unsecured loan receivable (non-current) 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
Avacado P1opellies and Trading (India) Private Limited 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 

Unsecured loan receivable (current) 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 

Investment in equity shares ofSPVs 
Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
lntime Properties Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 

Interest receivable (non-current) 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
Sundcw Properties Limited 
/\vacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 

Interest receivable (current) 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
/\vacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 

Guarantee eommision fees receivable (non-current) 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
1-lorizonview Properties Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Pvt Ltd 

Other Financial Liabilities (non-eurrcnt) 
Sundcw Properties I .imitcd 
Mindspacc 13usiness Parks Private Limited 

Other Financial Liabilities (current) 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
Mindspace Husiness Parks Pvt Ltd 

Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus 
/\nbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 

Corporate guarantees outstanding 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 

27 

As at As at 

30 June 202 I 31 March 2021 

2,370 2,770 
1,928 4,098 
2,390 4,820 
1,210 860 
3,720 4,140 
4,560 4,490 

400 
2170 
2430 

9,482 9,482 
13,121 13, 121 

0 0 
6,868 6,868 

15,478 15,478 
33,722 33,722 
25,618 25,618 
48,814 48,814 

16 
94 

80 II 
84 

23 2 
140 
125 

s 7 
0 
0 
0 

0 0 
8 

19 17 
II 

0 0 
0 0 

917 689 
3,330 
4,529 
5,369 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS RI\IT 
RN: IN/RI~IT/19-20/003 
Notes IO lhc C(111c1 nsr(I :,1:111tlalorw Fln1111cial Stalcmcnts 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

31 Details or utilisation of proceeds of Debentures arc as follows: 

Objects or the issue as per the Issue memorandum 

Providing loans to the SPVs for meeting their construction related 
expenses, working capital or general corporate requirements, 
repayment of financial indebtness, general corporate purposes 
including payment of fees and expenses in connection with the Issue, 
acquisition of commercial properties 
stipulated in the transaction documents 

Total 

32 Commitments and contingencies 
a) Contingent Liabilities 

or such other purposes as 

Proposed Actual utilisation lJnutilised 
utilisation upto amount as at 

30 .lune 2021 30 .lune 2021 
11,500 11,500 -

11,500 11,500 . 

Mindspace REIT has provided corporate guarantees for loans availed by Horizonview, KRC Infra, MBPPL and Sundew and the outstanding guarantee 
is Rs 14.144 million 

b) Statement of capital nnd other commitments 
i) There arc no capital commitments as at 30 June 2021 and 31 March 2021 

33 Financial instruments : 
(a) The carrying value and fair value of financinl instruments by categories arc as below: 

Carrying Fair Value Carrying value Fair Value 
value 

Particulars 
30 June 2021 30 ,June 2021 

31 March 
3 I March 202 I 

2021 

Financial assets 
Fair value through profit and loss - - -
Fair value th rough other com prehcnsive income - - . 

Amortised cost 
f ,oans (Non current) 16,178 - 21,178 
Loans (Current) 5,000 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,843 - 2,938 
Other financial ~ssets 374 . 216 -
Totu I usscts 24,395 . 24,332 

Firrnncial liabilities 
Fnir value through profit and loss - . . 
Fair value through other comprehensive income - - . . 
Amortised cost 
Borrowings (Non Current) 6,455 - 11,425 . 
Borrowings (Current) 4,978 - - -
Other financial liabilities 360 - 212 
Trade pavables 8 - 13 

Total liabilities I 1,801 - 11.650 

The management considers that the carrying amounts of above financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values 

(h) Mensurcment of fnir values 
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining !he fair values of the financial instruments that arc: 

a) recognised and measured at fair value 

b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the Condensed Standalone financial statements 

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, Mindspace REJT has classified its financial instruments into 
the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below: 

Fair value hierarchy 
Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i e. as prices) or indirectly 
(i e. derived from prices) 
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

28 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/RE IT/19-20/003 

tt lc~ In lh~ Co1Hlcus d S11111cl;lh1111• l' lnunciul Slutcmc.nts 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

(c) Financial instruments 
Qu~111111111, • d,st·lost1rc~ linr vn luc measurement hic111rd1v for assets as at 30 June 2021 

Particulars Tnla l 
li'inancial assets & liabilities measured at fair value 

()111 111 tha1, vc d,sdosurcs li:11r vn lll~ mcnsurcmc ni lti cmrchy for Assets as nl 31 Mureil 02 1 
Particulars Total 

Financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value 

( d) Transfers between Level I, Level 2 and Level 3 

I .c, ·cl I 

Level 1 

There were no transfers between Level I. Level 2 or Level 3 during the year ended 30 June 2021 and 31 March 2021 

(e) Determination of fHir values 

,,cl 3 

Level 2 Level 3 

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods , When 
applicable. further information about the assumptions made in determinmg fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability 

i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date 
ii) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values. 
iii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future contracted cashflows discounted at the 
current market rate 

34 Segment Re11orting 
Mindspace REIT does not have any Operating segments as at 30 June 202 J and 31 March 2021 and hence, disclosure under Ind J\S I 08, Operating 
segments has not been provided in the Condensed Standalone financial statements 

35 Distri IJu lions 
The Governing Board of the Manager to the Trust. in their meeting held on 13 August 2021, has declared distribution to unitholders of Rs 4 60 per unit 
which aggregates to Rs 2,728 million for the quarter ended 30 June 2021. The distributions of Rs 4.60 per unit comprises Rs 4 23 per unit in the form 
of dividend and Rs O 37 per unit in the form of interest pay men I. 

36 The figures for the quarter ended 31 March 2021 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021 and 
the published year-to-date figures up to 31 December 2020, which were subject to limited review 

37 Previous period figures have been regrouped, as considered necessary, to conform with current period presentation. 

38 "O" represent~ v~lue less tlmn Rs. 0.5 million 
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'11Nl>Sl'ACE IWSINESS PARKS ltEIT 
J{N: IN/RIC IT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Finaui:ial Statements 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
(All amounts in l{s. million uulrss otherwis1~ stated) 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 
Property. plant and equipment 
Capital work-i•r-progrcss 
lrncslmcnl property 
lnvcslment properly under construction 
Other intangible assets 
Financial assets 

- I nvcstmcnts 
- Other financial assets 

Deferred tax assets (net) 
Non-current tax assers (net) 
Other non-current assets 
Total 11011-current assets 

Current assets 
lnvcn!o1 ics 
Firn111c1al asscls 

- Trade receivables 
- Cash and cash equivalent~ 
- Ollwr bank balances 
- Other financial assets 

Other current asset, 
l"otal current assets 
Total assets before rcj!ul11tory deferral 11ccount 

Regulatory deferral account - assets 

I otal assets 

Note 

5 

6 
7 
8 

9 
10 
II 
[2 
[3 

14 

[5 
16 A 
16 8 

17 
18 

As al As at 
30 .June 2021 31 March 2021 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

1,403 1,410 
22 22 

1,96,451 1.94,725 
12,489 15.317 

l I 

22 18 
2,160 l,927 
1,624 1.543 
1,150 l,064 
1,013 957 

2,16,335 2, 16,98,1 

54 51 

278 214 
3,368 3.539 

139 123 
925 l. [29 
745 S 11 

S,50~ ,5(17 
2.21,844 2,22.~5 : 

190 167 

2,22,034 2.22.718 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED 

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

To  

The Governing Board,   

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The “Investment Manager”) 

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

 

Introduction 

 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 

Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (“the REIT”) and its subsidiaries 
(the “Special Purpose Vehicles”) (together referred as the “Mindspace Group”), which 
comprise the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2021, the 

unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other 
comprehensive income, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for 

quarter ended June 30, 2021, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes 
in Unitholders’ Equity for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 and the Statement of Net 
Distributable Cash Flow of the REIT and each of its special purpose vehicles for quarter 

ended June 30, 2021 as an additional disclosure in accordance with paragraph 6 of 
Annexure A to the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No. 

CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (“SEBI Circular“) along with summary of 
the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes (together hereinafter 
referred as the “Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements”).  

 
2. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of 

the Investment Manager and approved by the Governing Board of the Investment Manager, 
have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim 
Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations that would have 

been followed for half yearly reporting as per the SEBI REIT Regulations. Our responsibility 
is to express a conclusion on the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 

based on our review.   
 

Scope of Review 

 
3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 

2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the 
Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim 
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’s 

personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and  
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other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in 

accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and consequently does not enable 
us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might 
be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

 
The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements include the financial information 

of the entities listed in Annexure A to this report. 

 

Conclusion 

 

4. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, 

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying  
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in 

accordance with Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the 

SEBI REIT Regulations. 
 

Emphasis of matter 
 

5. We draw attention to Note 44 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 

regarding freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by Avacado Properties 
and Trading (India) Private Limited which is presently under litigation. Pending the outcome 

of proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the 
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2021. 
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

6. We draw attention to Note 20(a)(i) of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 
Statements, which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” to comply with 

the REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 

 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Nilesh Shah 

Partner 

Membership No. 49660 

Mumbai, August 13, 2021                                                 UDIN: 21049660AAAACW8833 
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Annexure “A”  
 

List of entities included in the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 
 

Special Purpose Vehicles: 
 
i. Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 

ii. Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
iii. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 

iv. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
v. Sundew Properties Limited 
vi. Intime Properties Limited 

vii. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
viii. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Fin11neinl Stntements 
Consolid11ted Bnlnnce Sheet 
(All nmounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stnted) 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
Corpus 
Unit Capital 
Other equity 
•:quity 11ttributable to unit holders of the Mindspace REIT 

Non-controlling interest 

Total equity 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

- Borrowings 
- Lease liabilities 
- Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Other non-current liabilities 
Total non-current liabilities 

Current li11bilities 
Financial liabilities 

- Borrowings 
- Lease liabilities 
- Trade payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises 

- Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Other current liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (net) 
Total current linhilities 

Total equity and liabilities before regulatory deferral account 

Regulatory deferral account - I iabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Note 

19 
20 
21 

51 

22 

23 
24 
25 
26 

27 

28 

29 
30 
31 
32 

As at 
30 June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

0 
1,62,839 

(2,247) 
1,60,592 

8,838 

1,69,430 

28,547 
173 

2,557 
30 

256 
533 

32,096 

11,276 
19 

35 

763 
7,713 

7 
627 

36 
20,476 

2,22,002 

32 

2,22,034 

As at 
3 I March 2021 

(Audited) 

0 
1,62,839 

191 
1,63,030 

9,104 

1,72,134 

33,489 
171 

2,528 
28 

258 
524 

36,998 

4,065 
18 

52 

813 
7,663 

6 
924 

15 
13,556 

2,22,688 

30 

2,22,718 

Significant accounting policies 3 

Sec the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated 4-56 
Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: I I 7366W/W-100018 

/,J.Y~ 
Nilesh Shah 

Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Rah '111vcM11tr11I Managers LLP 
( In umgcr 10 M indspucc Business l'arl<s REIT) 

\)~ 
', RHhcja Vinod N. RohirH Prccti N. ChhedH 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

2 

Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 



MINDSPACE BllSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Statement of P·rofit and Loss 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note For the quarter l'or the quarter For the quarter For the year 
ended ended ended ended 

JO June 2021 31 March 2021 30 June 2020 3 I March 2021 
(Unaudited) (Audited)• (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Income and gains 
Revenue from operations 33 4,197 4,341 11,381 
Interest 34 13 82 133 
Other income 35 12 116 51 
Total lnrome 4,222 ,1,11611 1 I ~~(,'i 

Ex11enses 
Cost of work contract services 69 274 
Cost of materials sold 2 
Casi of power purchased 117 145 341 
Employee benefits expense 36 57 56 115 
Cost of property management services 37 76 112 191 
Trustee fees I 0 2 
Valuation fees I 3 9 
Insurance expense 20 21 57 
Audit fees 4 II 23 
Management fees 120 126 316 
Repairs and maintenance 38 116 121 416 
Legal & professional fees 27 39 138 
Impairment Loss 7 176 176 
Other expenses 39 362 497 l,0J9 
Total Expenses 901 1,376 5 3,099 

Earnings/(loss) before finance costs, depreciation and 3,321 3,093 (5) 8,466 
am ortisn tion, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items 
and tax 

Finance costs 40 599 607 1,707 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 41 744 657 1,964 

Profit/(loss) before rate regulated activities, exce11tional items 
and tax 1,978 1,829 (5) 4,795 

Add: Regulatory income/ (expense) (net) 21 17 32 

Add: Regulatory incomd(expense) (net) in respect of earlier 
(13) (33) periods 

Profiti(loss) before exce11tional items and tax 
1,999 1,833 (5) 4,794 

Exceptional Items (refer note 54) (1,332) 

Profit/(loss) before tax 667 1,833 (5) 4,794 

Current tax 42 368 309 1,033 
Deferred tax charge/ (income) 42 (II) 249 628 
MAT credit (entitlement)/ charge 42 n 9 12 1~ 
Tax expense 2/IS 567 1.4115 

Profit/(Loss) for the period/year 382 1,266 [5) ).3<19 

Profit/(Loss) for the period/year attributable to unit holders of 414 1,144 (5) 3,075 
Mindspace REIT 
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year attributable to non-

(32) 122 274 
controlling interests 

3 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Statement or Prom and Loss 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Other comorehensive income 

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
- Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) 

(ii) Income tax relating to above 

B. {i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
{ii) Income tax relating to above 

Other comprehensive income attributable to unit holders of 
Minds11aee REIT 
Other comprehensive income attributable to non controlling 
in tcrests 
Total comprehensive income/{loss) For the period/ year 

Total comprehensive income /(loss) For the period/ year 
attributaMe to unit holders or Mindspace REIT 

Total comprehensive income/{loss) For the period/year 
attributable to non controlling interests 

Earnings per unit 
Basic 
Diluted 

Significant accounting policies 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated 
r:inancial Statements 

•Refer note 53 
As per our report of even date attached: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: I 17366W/W-l00018 

Nilcsh Shah 

Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

!'lace: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

Note 

48 

3 

4-56 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

{0) 

(0) 

382 

414 

{32) 

0.70 
0.70 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 March 2021 
(Audited)• 

(0) 

(0) 

1,2 ()/i 

1,144 

122 

I 93 
1.93 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 
(Unaudited) 

(5) 

(5) 

2 20 
2.20 

(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

uvl C. Raheja 

Memher 
DIN: 00028044 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

4 

lnod N. Rohlrn 
Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 202 I 

Prccti N. Chhcda 

Chief Fin"nci"I Officer 
DIN: 08066 703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

For the year 
ended 

3 I March 2021 
(Audited) 

(0) 

(0) 

3,075 

274 

7.74 
7.74 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS IU: JT 
RN: IN/RE IT/ 19-20/003 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

A Cnsh flows from ooerating activities 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Finance costs 
Interest income 
Provision for doubtful debts (net) 
Gain on redemption of preference shares 
Gain on redemption of mutual fund units 
Lease Rent 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Inventory written off 
Exceptional Items (refe, note 54) 
lmpai, ment Loss 
OperRting cnsh now before working capital changes 

Movement in working capital 
(Increase) i dec1ease in 111vento1ies 
(Increase) i decrease in trade I eceivables 
(Increase)/ decrease in othe, financial assets and other assets 
(Dec,ease) / lnc,ease in Other financial liabilities, other liabilities 

and provisions 
(Decrease) i inc1ease in regulatmy deferral account (assets I 
liabilities) 
(Dec1ease) I increase in trade payables 
Cush generated/(used in) from operations 

Direct taxes paid net of,efund received 
Net Clish generntecl/(usecl in) from operating activities (A) 

ll Cash tlows from invcstine: activities 

Expenditure incuncd on investment prope, ty and investment 
property under construction including capital advances, net 
or capital crcditms 

l'utchasc of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
nsscls 
Investment in Government Bond 
Investment in mutual fund 
Proceeds from redemption of mutual fund 
Movement in fixed deposits/other bank balances 

Loans repayment received from hody corporates 
Purchase of Investments (P1eference slrnres) 
Interest received 
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities ( B) 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

667 

744 
S99 
(13) 

0 

(3) 

(9) 

1,332 

3,317 

(3) 
(64) 

(262) 
(396) 

(22) 

48 
2,522 

1433 
2,089 

(911) 

(19) 

(4) 
(1,660) 

1,663 
(58) 

24 
{965) 

For the qua, ter For the quar1er For the year 
ended ended ended 

31 March 2021 30 June 2020 3 I March 2021 
(Audited)* (Unaudited) (Audited) 

1,833 (5) 4,794 

657 1,964 
607 1,707 
(82) ( 133) 
(12) II 

(3) 
(3) (5) 

2 5 
(40) (40) 

I I 

176 176 
3,138 (5) 8,477 

(10) 5 
(382) (272) 
(349) (1,089) 

357 3 433 

(5) 0 

310 2 543 
3,059 (0) 8,095 

32 57 1 
3,091 (0) 7,525 

(740) (3,555) 

(8) (30) 

(3,852) (10,122) 
3,856 10,127 

(17) ( 127) 

0 12,382 
0 (334) 

39 I 526 
(723) 9,867 



MINDSl'ACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 

Condensed Con,olidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 
(All nmounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

C Cash nows from financing activities 

P, oceeds from ext em al borrowings 
Repayment of external bonowings 
Proceeds from issue uf u11its 
Collection towards Offer Fo1· Sale 
Payment to Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities in respect 
of Offer For Sale 
Proceeds from issue of non-co11ve1 tible debentures 
Expenses incurred towards Initial Public Offering 
Non-convertible debentures issue expenses 
Payment towards lease liabilities 
Dividend paid (including tax) 
Recovery Expense Fund Deposits 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash generated /(used in) financing activities ( C) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash nnd cash equivnlents at the beginning of the ,,eriod/yenr 
Cnsh and cash equivalents acquired due to asset 
acquisition (refer note 43) 
Cash nod cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year 

Cash and cash eouivalents comurises (refer note no. 16A & 27) 

Cash on hand 
Investment in axis ovemi ght mutual fund 
Balance with banks 

- on cu, rent c1ccounts 
- in esc1 ow accounts 

Deposit accounts with less than 01 equal to tluce monlhs mnturily 
Chc@cs on hand 
Less: 13nnk ovcrdrnll 
Cush and cssh equivalents at the end of the pel'iocl / year 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

Note: 

For the quarter 
ended 

JO June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

2,778 
(1,996) 

(2) 
(3,086) 

463 
(2,769) 

(1,645) 

1,465 

(180) 

2 
0 

3,146 
145 
75 

(3,548) 
(180) 

for the quarter 
ended 

3 I March 2021 
(Audited)• 

1,605 
(4,492) 

4,500 

(32) 
(14) 

(3,066) 
()) 

(557) 
(2,057) 

311 

1,154 

1,465 

2 

3.060 
64 

413 

12074) 
1,465 

fo1 the qua11er 
ended 

30 June 2020 
(Unaudited) 

(0) 

(0) 

() 

0 

fo1 the year 
ended 

3 I March 2021 
(Audited) 

3,542 
(34,785) 

10,000 
35,000 

(35,000) 

11,500 
(264) 
(70) 
(16) 

(3,253) 
()) 

{1,697 
(15,04/4) 

2,348 

0 
(883) 

1,465 

3-°60 
64 

413 

12.074) 
t ,465 

I . The Trusl has issued units in exchange for acquisition of assets dm ing lhe period ended 30 September 2020. The same was not been reflected in Condensed Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March, 2021 since these were non-cash transactions. (refer note 43) 

See the accompanying noles to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-56 

•Refer note 53 

As per our report of even date attached: 

J'or Deloitte Hnskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Fi11n's registJation number: I I 7366W/W-IOOO 18 

Nilesh Shsh 

J>arlnCJ' 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : 13 August 2021 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

DIN: 00028044 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 
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Vinod N. Rohira 

Chi~( Exec11/ive Officer 

DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

Preeti N. Chheda 

Chief Financial ()[fleer 

DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Statement of changes in Unil holder's Equity 
(All amouuts in Rs. million 1111lcss otherwise staled) 

Balance as on I April 2020 
Additions during the year 
Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 

Balance as on I April 2021 
Additions during the period 
Closing balance as at 30 June 2021 

B. Unit 11pilnl 

Balance as at I pril 2020 
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note 20) 
Less: Issue expenses 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 
Balance as at I April 2021 
Changes during the period 
Balance as at 30 June 2021 

C. Other c uitv 
Retained Earnings 
Balauee as at I April 2020 
Add: Profit / (loss) for the year atlributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 
Add : Other comprehensive income attributable to the unitholders of Mindspaee REIT 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2020* 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 
Balance as at I April 2021 
Add: Profit/ (loss) for the period attributable lo the unitholdcrs of Mindspace REIT 
Add: Other comprehensive income attributable to the unitholders ofMindspace REIT 
f .ess : Distribution to Unilholdcrs for the quarter ended 31 March 2021 * 
llalancc as at 30 June 2021 

mount 

0 

0 
0 

0 

Amount 

1,63,080 
(24 1) 

1,62,839 
1,62,839 

1,62,839 

Amount 
(49) 

3,075 

{2,835) 
191 
191 
414 

(0) 
(2 ,852) 
(2,247) 

* The distributions made by Trust to its Unilholders arc based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the Rl:IT 
Regulations. 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

Sec the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-56 

As per our report of even date atlached: 

ror Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: I 17366W/W-IOOOI8 

Nilcsh Sh11h 

Pa rtner 
Membership number: 49660 

!'lace: Mumbai 
Dale : 13 August 2021 

for and on behalfofthe Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(acting as the Manager lo Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Vinod N. Rohira Precti N. Chheda 

Chief Execulive Officer Chief Financial Officer 
DIN:00460667 DIN:08066703 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai !'lace: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 Date : I 3 August 2021 Date : I 3 August 2021 
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MINDSPACE 13USINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidnted Finsncinl Statements 

Disclosure pursu1111t to SEBI circular No. CIIVIMD/OF/I46/2016 
(All 11mounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stnted) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) 11ursunnt to guidance under l'aragrnph 6 to SEBI circuinr No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(i) Mindspace REIT Stnndnlone 

Sr. no. Description 

I. Cash fl11ws rc~eivcd from Asset SPVs inQludi 11!! b111,11ot lf1111t~d to: 
interest 
dividends (net of applicable taxes) 
repayment of REIT Funding 
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital ,eduction (net of applicable taxes) 

redemption proceeds from preference shares or any other similar instrument 

2. Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets, sale of shares of Asset SPVs, 
liquidation of any othe, asset or investment (incl. cash equivalents) or any fonn of 

fond misc at Mindspace REIT level a4justed for the followin1r ilJ&MJ 
applicable capital gains and other taxes, if any 
debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
t1 ansaclion costs 
proceeds re-invested or· planned lo be reinvested in accordance with the 
REIT ,egulalions 
nny acquisition 
in vestments as pcnnitlcd unde, the REIT 1egul ations 
lending lo Asset SPVs 

as maybe deemed necessary by the Manager 
3 Add: Prncccds from sale of investments, assets or sale of shares of Asset Si'Vs 1101 

dist, ibuted pursuant 10 an earlie, plan to 1c-i11vest in accordance with the REIT 
Rcl(u!ations. if such p1oceeds arc not intended to be invested subseouentlv 

4. Add: Any other income received by Mindspaee REIT not captured here in 
5. Less: Any other expenses paid by Mind space REIT not captu, ed herein 
6. Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expcnditu1 e at Mindspace REIT level 
7, Less: Net debt repayment / (drawdown), redemption ofprefcrencc shares/ debenttues / 

any other such inst,umcnt / p1emiums / any othe, obligations / liabilities, etc,, as 
maybe deemed ncccssa , y by the ManaJ.(cI' 

8, Add/Less: Othc1· adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security 
deposits, wo,king capital, clc., as may be deemed necessary by the Manager iSJ&(r,J 

9. Less: lnte1cst paid on external debt bo1rowin11 at Minclspacc REIT level 
I 0. Less: Income tax and othe, taxes (if applicable) at the standalone Mindspace REIT 

level 

Ncr lli.s tl'ibut:ihlc Cu,h Flow~ (Nl>CF) 
Notes: 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 
/I lnnutlitcd) 

420 

(420) 

I 
(19) 

(55) 
(46) 

2,732 

ror the quarter 
ended 

31 March 202 I 
(Audited) 

255 
2.681 

5,200 

(30) 

(5,170) 

I 
(2) 

(31) 
(37) 

7.,86<, 

fo, the year 
ended 

3 I March 202 I 
(A11d11cd) 

456 
5.344 

7,620 

(50) 

(7,570) 

,. 
(35) 

5,701, 

I . The Gove111ing Boaid of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held 011 13 August 2021, has declared distribution to unitholders of Rs 4 60 pc, unit which aggregates to Rs 
2,728 million for the quaiter ended 30 June 2021 . The distributions of Rs 4.60 per unit comp,ises Rs. 4.23 per unit in the fol'ln of dividend and Rs 0.37 pc, unit in the fo11n of 
inte,csl payment. 

2, Statement of Net Distributable Cash Plows have not been disclosed for all the comparative periods since the first disllibution of the REIT as slated in ihe Final Oller 
Document was made upon completion of the fi1St full quarter atler the listing of the Units on the Stock Exchanges i.e. 31 December 2020 , 

3, For the year ended 3 I March 2021, lending to Sl'Vs from fund raised at REIT level in the qua11cr ended 30 September 2020 has been excluded fo, the purpose of NDCF 
calculation 
4, Repayment of REIT funding which is fu11he1 lent lo Sl'Vs has been capttned uncle, "Liquidation of assets" 

5. I .end ing 10 and repaym ent liom SPVs within the same quallc1 has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments" 

6 llor,owing li'om and repayment to SPVs within the same qum1er has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments" 

Significant Hccounting policies - refer note 3 

Sec the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial Statements - 1cfer note 4-56 

As per Olli repo, I of even dale attached: 

fo, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLI' 
Chartc,ed Accountants 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLI' 

Fi11n 's rcgislration number: I l 7366W/W-I 00018 

Jv-V~ 
(as Mill icr of the Mindspucc Business l'nrk~ REIT) 

,~~ 
Nilcsh Shah 

t>mtnc, 

Vinod N. Rohira Prccti N. Chheda 

Memher 
Membership number: 49660 DIN: 00028044 

!'lace: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 

Dale : 13 August 2021 Date : 13 August 2021 
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Chief lixecutive Officer 
DIN:00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

( 'hie/ 1-'inuncral Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : I 3 August 2021 



:\IINDSPACE Bl'SI'.\lcSS PARKS REIT 
R:-1:I'.\.'REI f/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular l'>o. CIR/TMD/DF/146/2016 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (:\'DCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBT circular '.\o. CIR/I'.\<JD/DF/146/2016 
(ii) Calculation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPY 

For the quarter ended 30 June 2021 pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 

Sr. no. Description 
Avacado MBPPL 

Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure (standalone) (A) 59 647 
2. Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure 20 111 
3. Add/less: Loss 1gain on sale of real estate assets 
4 Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, liquidation of any other asset or investment (incl. cash 

equivalents) or any form offund raise at the Asset SPV level adjusted for the following: 

debts senled or due to be senled from sale proceeds 
transaction costs 
proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the REIT 
Regulations 
any acqms1tion 
investment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 
5. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest. if such 

proceeds are not i~tended to be invested subsequently 

6. Add/less Any other item of non-cash expense; non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items), 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager (S, 28 125 
For example, any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in statement 
of profit and loss/income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, interest 
cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognised on a straight line basis, etc. 

7. Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including (applicable for Holdco 
only. to the extent not covered above): 

repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt 
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction 

8, Add: Interest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT 38 56 
9. Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital, 

etc, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager (I >&l'> 63 (204) 
10. Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the parties 

other than Mindspace REIT), overheads, etc. '"' "- <
5
> (35) (120) 

11. Less: Net debt repayment/ (drawdown) / redemption of preference shares/ debentures/ any other such 
instrument I premiums / accrued interest / any other obligations / liabilities etc, to parties other than 
Mindspace REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager (135) 193 

12, Less: Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT through buyback of shares/ capital reduction/ 
dividend paid on preference or equity capital, buyback distribution tax if any paid on the same, and further 

including buyback distribution tax, if applicable on distribution to Mindspace REIT 1
"

1 

Total Adjustm ents (B} ('I J 161 
:'<ct Llistrihnwble C:i.sh Flowi (CEJ ,\~B) 38 808 

9 

Horizonview 

(186) 
30 

70 

18 

86 

(3) 

(61) 

133 

274 
87 

Total 

Giga11Iex KRC Infra Intime KRIT Sundew Elimination <'> (Unaudited) 

(200) 79 253 88 486 1,226 
88 37 8 9 83 386 

350 420 400 100 (U40) 0 

297 17 5 224 81 795 

52 26 6 264 

(57) 36 (76) (97) (195) (533) 

(322) (403) (3) (94) (96) (1,134) 

181 (119) 0 244 851 920 2,268 

NA (63) (85) (86) 
239 (5~) 291 601 744 ( .l.lCll 

39 23 $44 689 1.230 (-HO) 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/lMD/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 1: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT within the same quarter has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments", 

Note 2: For the purpose of eliminations, repayment oflnter SPV loans and repayment ofloans from REIT (further lent to Asset SPVs) is considered 

Note 3: In case ofKRIT, amount includes written down value (in SPV) of the buildings bearing nos IA & 1B and plant and machinery and other items attached to the buildings amounting Rs 260 million on account of demolition of the said 
buildings. The Company has received concurrence from TSIIC on 23 June 2021 for redevelopment. 

Note 4: The change in balanee in of Book Overdraft disclosed under other current financial liabilities is not considered as distributable cash-flow and accordingly, it is adjusted while determining Net distributable cash flow for the quarter, 

Note 5: In case ofSundew, during the quarter ended 30 June 2021. a total amount of Rs. 204 million (Including Rs.42 million incurred during the quarter) has been transferred from capital expenditure to other adjustments pursuant to lease 
commencement offit-<>uts 

Note 6: As per Chapter V. clause l 6(a) of Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time. the entity is required to distribute not less than 90% of net distributable cash 
flows of the entity to Mindspace REIT in proportion of its holding in the SPV subject to applicable provisions in the Companies Act, 2013. As per distribution policy adopted by the governing board ofMindspace REITs Manager (K Raheja 
Corp Investment Managers LLP), any proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT is reduoed to arrive at Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF). 

The above note has been prepared as per the distribution policy adopted by the governing board ofMindspace REIT's Manager, which is forming part of the Final offer document ofMindspace REIT and does not represent amount available for 
declaring dividend as per section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Declaration and Payment of Dividend Rules 2014 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-56 

As per our report of even date attached: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: l 17366W/W-100018 

J,J.V~ 
Nilesh Shah 
Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13 August 2021 

for and on behalfof the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(as Manager of the Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Ravi C. Raheja 
Member 
DIN: 00028044 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

10 

' 
'\>~ 

Vinod N. Rohira 
Chief Execulive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13 August2021 

Preeti N. Chheda 
Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 
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'.\-11:\DSPACE Bt:SI:\ESS PARKS REIT 
RN:l:\/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(iii) Calculation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPV 

For the quarter ended 31 March 2021 pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 

Sr. no. Description 
Avacado MBPPL 

Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and ln,wi ncom< and expenditure (standalone) (A) 
2 Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure 
3. Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of real estate assets 
4. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, liquidation of any other asset or investment (incl cash 

equivalents) or any form of fund raise at the Asset SPV level adjusted for the following: 

debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
transaction costs 
proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the REIT 
Regulations 
any acquISJtmn 
investment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 
5. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such 

proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 

6. Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non cash income ( net of actual cash flows for these items), 
as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 

For example, any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in statement 
of profit and loss/income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, interest 
cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognised on a straight line basis, etc. 

7. Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including (applicable for Holdco 
only, to the extent not covered above): 

repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt 
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction 

8. Add: Interest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT 
9. Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital, 

etc., as may be deemed necessary by the Manager<'> 

10. Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the parties 

other than Mindspace REIT), overheads, etc. ,;> 
11, Less: Net debt repayment / (drawdown) I redemption of preference shares / debentures / any other such 

instrument / premiums / accrued interest / any other obligations / liabilities etc , to parties other than 
Mindspace REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 

12. Less: Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT through buyback of shares/ capital reduction/ 
dividend paid on preference or equity capital, buyback distribution tax if any paid on the same, and further 

including buyback distribution tax, if applicable on distribution to Mindspace REIT'" 

Total Adi u.« menrs (13 
J\.et Disl rlbul!lbl~ Qish Flo,~s A- Bl 

56 649 
18 109 

750 

21 16 

43 41 

159 318 

(45 ) (84) 

191 (916) 

387 234 
443 883 

11 

Hodz.on,·iew 
(396) 

31 

200 

220 

80 

0 

(78) 

19 

~n 
76 

Gil!a!,!le.i. KRC Infra Jntime KRlT Sundew Elimination <3> Total 

147 (81) 228 320 469 1.392 
87 36 9 8 76 374 

500 250 315 3,960 (1 ,505) 4,470 

(68) 161 6 24 19 399 

62 18 11 255 

398 37 96 137 (561 l 584 

(299) (397) (6) (120) 129 (900) 

40 (267) 0 71 (3 ,305) 805 (3,362) 

(63) (83) (86) (232) 
770 88 29? 352 1~_; 1700) 15 
367 7 520 6TI il2 (700) 



:vnl\DSPACE Bl;SINESS PARKS REIT 
R.1'i:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 1: Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows have not been disclosed for all the comparative periods since the firs\ distribution of the REIT as stated in the Final Offer Document was made upon completion of the first full quarter after 
the listing of the Units on the Stock Exchanges i.e. 31 December 2020. 

Note 2: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT within the same quarter has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments". 

Note 3: For the purpose of eliminations, repayment oflnter SPY loans and repayment ofloans from REIT (further lent to Asset SPYs) is considered, 

Note 4: As per Chapter Y, clause 16(a) of Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time, the entity is required to distribute not less than 90% of net distributable cash 
flows of the entity to Mind space REIT in proportion of its holding in the SPY subject to applicable provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 , As per distribution policy adopted by the governing board of Mindspace REIT' s Manager (K Raheja 
Corp Investment Managers LLP), any proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT is reduced to arrive at Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) 

The above note has been prepared as per the distribution policy adopted by the governing board ofMindspace REIT's Manager, which is forrning part of the Final offer document ofMindspace REIT and does not represent amount available 
for declaring dividend as per section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Declaration and Payment of Dividend Rules 2014 

Note 5: In case of Sundew, during the quarter ended 31 March 2021, a total amount of Rs 469 million (including a sum of Rs 136 million incurred during the quarter) has been transferred from capital expenditure to other adjustments pursuant 
to lease commencement of fit outs. 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-56 

As per our report of even date attached: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firrn's registration number: 117366W/W-!00018 

/v-V~ 
Nilesh Shah 
Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(as Manager of the Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

~ 
~ 

Ravi C. Raheja 
Member 
DIN: 00028044 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

12 

... 

,~~ 
, Vinod N. Rohira 

Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13 August 2021 

Preeti N. Chheda 
Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 



Vll'.'.DSPACE Bl SJNESS PARKS REIT 
R'li:l:'i/REITil9-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/l!l-10/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CTR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular !\o. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(iv) Calculation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPV 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IVID/DF/146/2016 

Elimination 
Sr. no. Description 

Arncudo ~rBPPL Horizonvicn Gigaele.\ KRC infra !mime KRIT Sund"'' t•> Total 

Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure (standalone) (A) 105 1,357 (606) 177 (28) 524 671 901 3,101 

2. Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure 37 210 60 172 71 17 17 153 747 

3 Add/less: Loss1_gain on sale of real estate assets 
4 Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, liquidation of any other asset or investment (incL cash 

equivalents) or any form of fund raise at the Asset SPY level adjusted for the following: 2, 170 2,370 :no 2,430 860 250 315 4,380 tl ,925) 11 ,070 

debts settled or due to be settled fi-om sale proceeds 
transaction costs 
proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the REIT 
Regulations 
any acquisition 
investment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 
5. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such 

proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 
6 Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows forthese items), 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 45 1 267 (11) 172 (9) 2 30 497 

For example, any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in statement 
of profit and loss/income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value. interest 
cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognised on a straight line basis. etc. 

7 Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including (applicable for Holdco 
only, to the extent not covered above): 

repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt 
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction 

8 Add: Interest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT 90 44 167 124 19 - 12 456 
9 Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working 

capital, etc,, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager'" & '" 213 226 (32) 373 (316) 141 485 (465) 625 
10 Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the parties 

other than Mindsoace REIT). overheads. etc '61
"' 

1
·
71 (82) (80) (195) (615) (1,294) (6) (231) ( 156) (2,659) 

11. Less: Net debt repayment / (drawdown) / redemption of preference shares / debentures / any other such 
instrument / premiums I accrued interest / any other obligations / liabilities etc. to parties other than 
Mindspace REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager (2,086) (2,136) 2T!. (1,817) 476 0 71 (3,420) 805 (7 ,835) 

12. Less: Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT through buyback of shares/ capital reduction ' 
dividend paid on preference or equity capital, buyback distribution tax if any paid on the same, and further 

including buyback distribution tax. if applicable on distribution to Mindspace REIT 1
" 

- (114) (149) (155) (4 18) 
Toml Arljustments (E) 387 645 759 656 (12) 279 510 379 \I. POI 
:'let Distributable Cssh Flows !C)"'i/\+Bl 492 2.001 153 833 (..W) 803 1.1 81 1.280 (1,120) 

~ 
13 



\11'.\DSPACE BCSINESS PARKS REIT 
R,-.;: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBJ circular No. CIR/ll\1D/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note I: Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows have not been disclosed for all the comparative periods since the first distribution of the REIT as stated in the Final Offer Document was made upon completion of the first full quarter 
after the listing of the Units on the Stock Exchanges i e. 31 December 2020. 

Note 2: Lending to and repayment from REIT within the same quarter has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments" 

Note 3: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT within the same quarter has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments" . 

Note 4: For the purpose of eliminations, repayment oflnter SPY loans and repayment ofloans from REIT (further lent to Asset SPVs) is considered 

Note 5: As per Chapter V, clause 16(a) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time, the entity is required to distribute not less than 90"/o of net distributable 
cash flows of the entity to Mindspace REIT in proportion of its holding in the SPV subject to applicable provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 As per distribution policy adopted by the governing board of Mindspace REIT' s Manager (K 
Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP), any proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT is reduced to arrive at net distributable cash flows (NDCF). 

The above note has been prepared as per the distribution policy adopted by the governing board of Mindspace REIT's Manager, which is forming part of the Final offer document of Mindspace REIT and does not represent amount 
available for declaring dividend as per section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Declaration and Payment of Dividend Rules 2014. 

Note 6: In case ofMBPPL, during the quarter ended 31st December 2020, a total amount of Rs 134 million (including a sum of Rs 50 million incurred during the quarter) has been transferred from capital expenditure to other adjustments 
pursuant to lease commencement of fit outs, 
Note 7: In case of Sundew, during the quarter ended 31 March 2021 , a total amount of Rs 469 million (including a sum of Rs 136 million incurred during the quarter) has been transferred from capital expenditure to other adjustments 
pursuant to lease commencement of fit outs. 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-56 

As per our report of even date attached: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: 117366W/W-100018 

/e/-Y~ 
Nilesh Shah 
Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
C.~ Manager of the Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

i __; p,./ 
Ravi C. Raheja 
Member 
DIN: 00028044 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13 August 2021 
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Vinod N. Rohira 
Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 

Preeti N. Chheda 
Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13 August 2021 



MINDSl'ACE llllS INESS PARKS RI,;l'J' 
ltN:IN/HF:IT/19-20/00J 
Conc..lcnscd Consolidntcc..l Finn11ci11I Stn lcmcnts 
Notrs to Accounts 
(All 1111rnunts iu lh. million unles~ olhcnvisc stuted) 

Orgnnisntion Structure 
The interim condensed consolidn1cd financial statements ('Co1,dcnscd Consolid;ucd f<inancial Statements') comp1ise financial statements ofMindspace Business Parks Rc11I 
Estate (n VCjil 1ntJ1I 'I rus, (1l\ hml n:11:1cc. BmmC!ft; l•Br~• tt l- lT/ MindKpA~ IU~ITfltu.,',l), hlli SP\I, Ml ndsp.11c( llu~lno • P1u$0, f'ri\fiilc Limi ted fMB l11)1.'}1 OiH,:IPlC..'< liswL 1, ,,v:uc 
Limited 11ti1gnrlc~1

) , S,mdc.w l'nJ1'1(11t1r.:11 l~1mllcd fS.u ndcw') l11 titnLl 1•m1•t•t tie11.l mi tci.l (' lntln1u'), K. lt.llh,:J tt rr Pn11t i11yt1e111b1td) Limitctl ('KRTT'), KH(' lnfmstrth:::U 1rc nnd 
Projects P11vo 11! 1.imitt(l t1Klt(" lofrn1

) . Mor1.tu11vi.:w l~m11\l11 lei. Prh-:11c l .. imiH..td t 'llnrizurwil~·w'), \1dt.:.AdO l'rOJ~11 lci flllfl l'rnding (l nd1ti ) f'(ivnto t 11 nhcd {1A\•;,.ci:i~o') 
(i11dividuolly rclC'rrc:d l~' 11r- ",Si,,gcu,I P111110~ Vchlch:' m I l'V' ,~r ·• ,~\Cl ~l~V •' amt h.ijf.l.'!l b~1 1eferrcLI ton, •~linds:p.1 i:e llt1:11i111:ss Park , (J rou1J?Mln~lll1111c ,roup'J l11e 
SPVs Rre cotnpR11ies domiciled in India 

Anbee Construcuuru LLP (' ACL ') and Cape Trading LLP ('CTL') ~olla~liydy known RS {the 'Sponsors' or the 'Co-Sponsors') have set up the 1Mindspace Business l'arks 
REIT as an i11c\J()t;r1ble trust, pursuanl to the Trust Deed, under the 111t>W1i loos ofl he Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with SEl31 as a Real Estate 
lnvllbtu1c1H Tmst on 181h November 2019 under Reguh11ion 6 of the Securities and Ex:change Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 20 14 having 
regla1t111iun number RN ·IN/REIT/19-20/003 . The Tnistee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the 'Trustee') Rnd the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K 
Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (the' Investment Mannger') 

The objectives and pri11cipal activity of Miml(!,~\.:11.:c REl'f is to cuny on rhc activity of n real csrarc inves1men1 t1us1. as permissible under the REIT Regulations, to rnisc fonds 
through the REIT, to make lnvestmenls in ttC mtJ1111 nce with the REIT R\.!guh1liu11~ t1nd the Investment Strnlcgy and lo c;my on the activities 11s nrny be required for opcrn1ing 
lhe REIT, including incidental antl ancillary mnllers thereto 

Mindspace REJT acquired the SPVs by acquiring nil the equity intcresl held by lhe Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities in lhe SPVs on 30 July 2020 In cxchnnge frn 
these equity interests, the above shareholders have been allotted 55,66,54,.582 Units ol' Minclspace Parks REIT issued at Rs 275 each 

Mindspace REIT wenl public as per its plan for Initial Public Offer of Units afler obtaining the required app1ovals from the relevant outhorities The Units were allo11ed to 
the successful applicants on 4 August 2020. 
All lhese units were sub~equenlly listetl on the Bombiiy Stock Exchange (DSE Limited) And National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 7 August 2020 
I ll I r vi i I I I 11' I' I SPV I d I I I Jc rt m:11 I Ct. n1H ~ 1:m.: Ill ( ln.l.l n.ut1L·1T1 0 1 tC K ll.10 HrD\lh t:! )tow 

Nnme of (11c SPV Activities 
Shnreholding Shnrcholding 

(in pcrcentngc) ns n( 31 MArcli 21 (in pcrccnlngc) 1u1 nt 30 Ju ne 202 1 

MllP/'I rt,e SPV is engaged in real estate Mindspace Business Pa1ks Mindspacc Jlusincss Parks 
development projects such as Special REIT : 100% REIT 100% 
Economic Zone (SEZ), Information 
Technology Parks and Olhcr commercial 
assets The SPV has its projccls in Airoli 
(Novi Mumbai), Punc and Pocharam 
(I lydcrnba<l) The SPV is a deemed 
disllibution licensee pursuant to which it can 
distribu1e power to !he SEZ tcnan1s within 
the Park It commenced distribulion of 
electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi 
Mumbai from 9 April 2015 

Gigaplcx The SPV iS engaged in real estate Mindspace llusincss Parks Mi ndspace Dusi ness Parks 
devclopmenl projects such as Special REIT: 100% REI I · 100% 
Economic Zone (SEZ), Information 
Technology Parks mid other commercial 
~sscts 'fhe SPY has its p1ojects in Airoli 
(Navi Mumbai) The SPV is a deemed 
distribution licensee pu1sua111 to which it can 
distribule powe1 lO the SEZ tenants within 
the Paik It commenced disuibution al 
electricity in its p1ojcct at Airoli, NA.vi 
Mumbai from 19 April 2016 

Sundcw The SPV is engaged in development and Mindspace Business Parks MIIII ISJ'l t,CC Business P.trks 
leasing/licensing of IT park, SEZ to differcnl REIT : 89'/4 REIT 89'/, 
customcn; in Hyderabad Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Andhra Pradesh Industrial lnfr11!!tru c.111rc 

Corporation Limited (11%) Corp,n:ir ou Limited ( 11%) 

rn1ime The SPV is engaged in development and Mlnd51)UG0 nu,lne < l'w ks Miudt1p.nca n u~i 11 ~,.: Parks 
lc;ising/liccnsing of IT pa,k to diffe1en1 ItU 1" · 89% fl l:IT 89% 
customers in Hyderabad Andhra Pradesh Industria l lnfnistructurc Andhra Pradesh Industrial lnt'rasln1clu1c 

Coqwrntinn Limited ( 11%) Corprnation Limited (1 1%) 

KRIT The SPY is engaged in development and Mindspace Business Parks Mindspacc Business Pi!rks 
leasing/licensing of IT park to different REIT : 89% REIT 89% 
customers in I lydernbad Andh1a Pradesh Industria l fnfrastrncture Andhra Pradesh lnduslrial lnf1as1ruc1urc 

Corporation Li mited (11%) Corpoiation Limilcd (11%) 
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MINIJSl'ACE IJUSINF.SS PARKS RHr 
RN:IN/RlclT/19-20/003 

( .'011d,rnscll Consolidnlcd Finnnrinl Slnlcmcnls 

Notes to Accounts 

(All umounts in Rs. million unless othe1 wise stntcd) 

KI\C Infra 11,c SPV is engaged in r 111 Clll:lAlC! 

dcvcl opmc11t p1ojccts such as Spcci~I 
Economic Zone (SEZ) and l11 1'tM II H\11011 

Technology Parks 'I he SPY has its prnjcct hi 
Klla rndi Punc I he SPV is • detme-c.l 
diriU'l bution licensee pursuant to which it Un 

tlis1rl butc power to the SEZ tenants wnhm. 
U10 Park It commenced distribution ot 
c.lt\'.Uici t in its project at Kh;,radi, l't111c 
11-om I June 201 9 

1-lorizonview 'Il ic SPV lo cnj!/lgcJ in dcvclopmcnl ruld 

lc:uing/licansiug of IT park to dlfforcnl 
c1utct1 nt 1 ~ in Chcnnai 

A.vacado The srv has developed 11 11 lmll1\ hiifl 11ark 
fo1 lhe purpose of leuing oul to 1f11Tou.•ut 
cuisw111c-, 11 in Paradigm building at l\ liillW• 
M111 11\l nl and is being main tained an1I 
111,c1~1cd by th e SPY The SPY also has 11, 

~u1 1m1cr1:in l project in llandra Kt1rlA 
C'oJl)pfo)(, Mumbai 

Bnsis of prepnralion 

Mind space Business Pai ks Mindspacc Business Parks 

Rllff 10~• REI i' 100% 

Mindspacc Business Porks Mindspacc Business Parks 
REIT· 100% REIT : 100% 

Mindspacc Dusincss Parks Mindspacc Business Parks 
REIT 100% REIT · 100'/o 

The Condensed Consolidated r-inirncial Statements of Mindspacc Business Parks REIT comprise the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 June 202 1, the 

Condensed Consolidated Statement of P101it and Loss, including other comprehensive income, lhe Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash f-low for quailcr ended JO 
June 2021, the Condensed Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for lhe quarter ended 30 June 2021, the Statement of Net Di st1ibutable Cashflows of Mind space 
Business Parks REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter ended JO June 2021 and a summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory information and 
other additional financial disclosures.The Condensed Consolidated Financial S1a1ements have been prepared in accordance with the req uirements of Securi1ics and 
Exchange Ooard of [ndia (Real Estate Inves tment Tru sts) Regulations, 201 4 as amended from time to time including Rny guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read 
with SEil! Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 ("the REIT regulati ons"); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 "Interim Financi•I Rep orting" 

to lhc cx1enl not inconsistent with REIT 1egulalions (refer note 20 on presentation of "Unit Capital'' as "Equity" instead of compound instruments under Ind AS J2 -
Financial Instruments: P1esentation), read with releva nt niles issued thereu11der tind other 11ccounting princi ples generally accepted in lnd is, 

The µreparation of the t1tndc.11 1i.cd consolidated fim1nd al statements is aficr taking into consideration, effect to the amended Schedule Ill or lhc C1on1panies Act, 2013 noli lied 
vide Ministry or Corprn 111.c. flili rs notificalion dalcd 241h March 2021, lo lhc exlcnl lhcse arc relevant to 1hc preparation of the condensed ..:on~ol ldatcd financial slatemenls. 

!'he Condensed Consolidated FinRncial St11tcmc11ts were authori sed for isSllC in accordance with the resolution passed by the Governing Board of the M11m1gcr on 1J August 
2021 

S1111cment or rnrnplianct: lo Ind AS: 

I hcse Condensed Consolidated linancial statements fur the quarter ended 30 June 2021 hi,vc been prepa red in accordance with Indian Accounling Standf11d (Ind AS) 3,1 
"Interim Financial Rcponing'', 10 1hc extent not inco11sis1cnt with the REIT 1cgula1ions as more fully described above and Note 20 to the condensed consolidated linnncial 
statements 

Hnsis of Co11solid11tio11 
Mlnd1t1)ncc Business Parks Group consol iwtlc.s. entl1l es which it owns or controls . The ComJc,n.5.:d Cur.solfd;tte~I 1:11 11md11l SU1 tem~11t,. comprise 1l1i: !i nancfo l ~i.~ ICIU4,.'nl~ of 
Min~:qmce Uusincss parks REIT and it s suh~di fU)' SPVs as di sclosed in note I. Control ~xlsl.li when lh~ 11111cn1 ha, power over 1he cmity, is O.."< IJO)Cd, u1 l11U1 11 u.)Hfil, 10 
varir1hlt returns from its involvement with tl1 ~ ct1t lry ;md has the ability lo affect those retumr. I>)' u,in.u 11~ J1owcr over the crllity. IJm4,1ar ,s demo,u,rrl't h:.,1 throuyh ax-ll'iilnf.l 
lights that give the abilily to direct 1elevant activities, those whi ch significantly affect the c:nlity~i retumri S1 1l:,.1d lL'11 lc" nro i;:onsolulaltd from the diUC ,0111ro1 comm t.' tl L.:i;:, .. 

until the dale con1rol cea5cs 

The 11roccduf'Cl ic>f 1•r~11 11rin1i Coo~lcnsed Consolld:nct.l l'lnnncial Staternc111 ~ nl~Mlntl5p11(41 llUBlnr.~ r'1tl-. (lrou1., n1e aw.tied below 
a) The f11 rnm: lul suncn1ents cf Mit1rhpace Busi m:i.:s l,il rk :1 Group arc c,)n'loll dlllL'il for like llcmH notl lntrngr.oup 1.1.-. 1n11cc~ fi nd tnmsnctions for assets and liabilities, equity, 
income, cxpcmc~ and cash llovJJ be.tween entitii.: of Mlnc.lspace llusind~ P.irkJ Grot1rJ Jtrc ellminntc.ll iu foll 111 ,on consolfd,uion. 
b) ;\mlhrn f'n1dc1h Indu'lilfilll lr11'nu,1n,ctLJrC c·oq101'l'ltlort 1.ln111cd, which is a i lmn:holdcr ln lnt lme, KR ff nud Sumlow lnt!J nm M,U(ei!d to exchange their equity interest in the 
S l•Vs (ln1irno, KRIT 1.1ml Sundcw), 11111,., l\'llndspacti Buwun:s.s Parks REI I' luu• rct1irded a non-co11trol ll11a h11 c:1ie,u for these SPVs. 111c 111to1c:H or non-i:tml ro1 11ng 
.:dmrcholdCJ,i mny be inlilnUy 111q,.un.xl t:hher at lia lr va.lw:. or 1u tho non-contmlHuB lntc1cst proportionate sh 111t or 1ha. r11ir value of the acqui roc' ,i rdo n1ilhblc ne, n,scts The 
d1 u;c or mc1Uureme,11 Liusi.\ h., made 011 11n ;1.c<1ui'\itio11 ~h~-ntqulsl tion basi ,_ Sub!l!l,lllcnt to acquisition , tho unrryinll 1.mount of non-controlllng 1111c.ri:~u i, 11te Qll1 0un1 of 
those interests at inl1ial recogni1ion plus the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent changes in equity 
c) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have hecn Consolidated line by line and Inter-company transactions 1rnd balances includi ng unrealised profits arc 
eliminated in full on consol idation 

d) Mindspace Business Parks Group holds 4% of the equity share capital of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, a company involved in the real estate developmcnl 
Mindspl\ce Business Parks Group is of the view that it is not able to exercise signilicant innuencc over Stargaze Properties Priv11te Li mited and hence it has nol been 
accounted using equity method 
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MINIJSPACE BUSINESS PARKS RHI' 
RN :IN/IU:IT/19-20/003 
CondcnsclJ ConsolitJnlcd Finnnci1tl St11tc111cnls 
Notes to Accounts 
(All nmounts in Rs, million unless olherwisc stntcd) 

SignificRnl ncco1111tiug policies 

(a) functional and prescntalion currency 
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements a1c presented in Indian rupees, which is Mindspacc Business Parks Group's functional currency and the cunency of the 
prinu,ry economic environment in which Mindspacc Business P1trks Group operates All financial information µ1escnled in Indian rupees has been rounded off lo nearest 
million except olhcrwisc slated 
(b) Br1sis of measurement 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements arc on the historical cost basis, except for the following: 
• Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instrumenl): measured at fair values; 
- Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability less presenl value of defined obligations: Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit plan 
(c) Use of judgements and estimates 
The 1nt!p;un1ion ofrhe Co~dcnscd Consolidated Financial Stalcmcnts in conformity with generally accepled accounting principles in lndift (Ind AS) 1cqui1es mt1nagcmcnl to 
make C:!.li111 t1 tes and assl,!i:nptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses Actual results could differ from those estimates 
Eslimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates arc revised 
and in any future periods affecte-d 
Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements is included in the following notes: 

Presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead of compound instrnmc111 (Note 20) 

Es1imalion oflease term for revenue recognition 
Estimation or useful life of property, phrnt and equipment and investment property 
Estimation of recognition of deferred tax assets, av11ilabilily of future taxable profit against which laK losses carried forward can be used and income taxes 
Impairment and Fair valuation of Investment Property, Investment property under construction, Property, plant find equipment and Capital work-in-prog1ess 

Rccognilion and measurement of provisions for conlingcncies and disclosure of conlingcnt liabilities 
d) Crnrcnl versus non-current classification 
Mindspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Ilalanee Sheet based on current/ non-current classilication: 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 
- Expected to be realised 01 intended to be sold or consumed in no, mal operating cycle; 
- lleld prinHlrily fo1 the purpose of trading; 
- Expected to be realised within twelve months aflcr 1hc reporting period; or 
- Cash or c11sh equivalent unless restric1ed from beins cx<:ht1u&(d or used 10 settle a liability for at least twelve months aller lhe reporting period 

All other assets ;:ire classified as non-current 
A liability is current when : 
- It is expected to be seuled in normal openning cycle: 
- ll is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
- It is Uue to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period; or 
- l'here is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for a1 least twelve months after the reporting pe1iod 
Mindspacc Business Parks Grauµ classifies all other liabililies as non-currenl. 
Deferred tax assets and littbilities are classified as non•currcnt assets ;:ind liabilities 
The opeialing cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and c;:ish equivalcnls Mindspace Business Parks OJ ot1p has 
idemitie<l twelve months as its opera ling cycle 
(e) Measurement off.ii, values 
Mindspacc Business Parks Group's accounting policies and disclosures rcqui1e the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities 
Mindspace Busi ness P.irks Group has an esrnblished control framework with 1espect 10 the me11suicment of fair values 
They regularly review significant unobserv;iblc inputs and vah1t1tion adjustments , If third party info1mation is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the 
evidence obtained from the third parties lo suppo11 the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair valllc hiernrchy in 
which such valuations should be dl!ssified 
When measuring the fair v;:iluc of'an asset 01 a liability, Mindspace Business P.i1ks Group uses observable market data as far as possible Fair values arc categorised into 
different levels in a fair value hie1archy b;:ised on the inpuls used in the valuation techniques as rollows: 
• Level I: quoted 111ict<J (uuaJJu,.11.'d) in uctlve uuukcts for idencicHi nucti or li 11bi li1fes 1h111 cnUI}' can access on measurement date. 
• Level 2: inputs otlu:, thu11 41l101t ll prkt!l l11cludc:1l in Level I that ~n:: ob11c,v,1brc ror the: ffktC:L uf' li-;ib lllly, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i e derived from prices) 
• Level 3: inputs f'of 1ht as 1c:i1 u 1 lhtbill l)' 1l11u at e 11 01 hased 011 obse11,•11hlc m1uke1 d"1~ (1111 obr.crv11hlc- in1111ts) . 
If the inputs used to mc;isu1c the fair value of an asset 01 a liability fall into dim: rem l~\·d, vf 1hu 11'11 value hierarchy, lhcn the fair value measurement is categorised in its 
entirely in the same level of the fair value hie1archy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement 

3.1 Fiuflnciol gnarnntce contrncts 
A financial guarantee co11tiact is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified 1n1yments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incu1s because a specified debto1 fails to 
make payments when due in accordance wilh the terms of a debt instrument. 
Financial guarantee cont1acls arc measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis elects to account frn• financial 
guaranlce as Insur ance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104 
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.~IINl>Sl',\Ct: BUSINESS l'ARKS RHI' 
HN:IN/llEIT/ 19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidnlcd Finnnchd Stntcmcnls 
Nuti's to Accounts 
(All nmounls in lh. million unless othenvisc i.lntcd) 

.t2 Properly, plnnl nn<l cquipmcnl 
(ll) llt:tot, 11lf ifl11 1111d llllHb Lll'C"Wt'II( 

Pmpc.1()1. ,,1un1 :mcl i.:,tlUIUl )CUI are slrtlcd at coM less i:,ccumulatcd depreciation and impnirmcnl. if any. Depreciation is char gcd when the assets arc ready for thci1 intended 
\IM.' Purcho,~ ruu:c 01 con'"rnu;1ion cost is dcHncd as any 1:onsideration prtid or fair value of ;my other consideration givl:n to acquire the flSSCl 

(b) Subscq11c111 u.pcnditnrc 
Subscqucni expenditure is capitalized only ifil i~ probable that the future economic.: bc11cflt.!i associated with the expenditure will now lo Mindspacc Du si ness Pa1ks Group 
Subsequent costs arc included in the asset's c11rrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as Hppropriate, only when it is probable that future.: economic benefits 
associated wi1h lhc item will now to Mindspacc l'lusiuess Parks Group and 1hc cost of the item can be measured rcliAbly All other repairs and maintenance a1e chargcrJ lo 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the 1cporting period in which they are incurred 

(c) Depreciation 
Depreciation I amortisation is provided using straight line method as pc1 the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance uscfl1I life The estimated 
useful lives of the essels, which arc higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule II of lhe Companies Act 2013, arc listed in the table below 
Depreciation on addition/ deletion of property, plant and equipment made during the period is provided on pro~rata hasis from/ 10 the date of such addition/ deletion 

The assets and estimated useful life arc as under: 

Asset grou1J 
EsUmnfcd Useful Life 

(in yen rs) 

Power ~Sr.ls Or.her asset~ 
Right to use - Leasehold land Balance Lease lerm . 
Buildings• 75/90 

Plani Rnd machinery 15 15 
Elccuical insrnll111io11• 15 15 

Computers J 3 

·1 cmporar,i Stmcturc• I 

om cc equipment• •I •l 
Furniture and fixtwcs• 7 
Vehicles,. 5 

• For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the mirnagement believes the useful life of the assets is app1opria1c which is diITercnt than those p1escribed unde1 
t•art C of Schedule II or the Companies Act, 2013 

(I) Based on internal assessment the manageme111 believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the originnl cost ol' those 
respective assets al SPV 

(2) Assets individually costi11g less than Rs 5,000 nre fully written off in the year of acqu1srt10n 
(3) ·rhc estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciati on method a1e reviewed at the end of the repo11ing petiod with the effect of Rny changes in the estimation 
nccounted for on a p1ospcctivc basis 

{d) J>r-recognilion 
An item of property, plaru and equipment is derecognizcd upon disposal or when no future economic benefits arc expected to arise from the continued use of the asscl Any 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item ofpropc1ty, plant and equipment is clctcrmii1cd as lhe difference between the Si\les proceeds and the ca1ryi11g 
c1111ount ol'thc asscl and i~ 1ccognizcd in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

(c) C:nJ)ilnl work in pro2rrss 
Property, plant and equipment under construcrion is disclosed 11s capilal work in p1ogrcss which is carried at cost less i\nV recognized impairment losses Cosl comprises or 
1n1rclrnse p, ice and any allributable cusl such as duties, ncighl, hon owing costs. erection an<l commissioning expenses incurred in b1inging the assc:t to it s working co11clilio11 
!o1 its intended use 

Allvancc paid and cxpcnditl,1 l' iucuircd on acquisition / constrnction of p1ope1ty, plant and equipment which arc not ready for thci1• intended use at each balnnce sheet dHlc 
;,re disclost!d unde1 othc1 11011 cm rent assets as advances on capirnl account and capital work-in-progress respectively 

3,3 lntnngil,le nssels 
(a) Rrcognition and mcnsurcmcnl 

:\n inlangihl..: asset is an idcntiliable 11011-monelary asset without physica l subslance Intangible assets with fin ite useful lives that are acqui1ecl sepa1atcly 111e initially 
me.1sure<l at ils cosl and then carried 11t the cost less .1ccu111ulatcd ,11t1ortisation and irnpair111e111, if any The estimated ttseful life and ;,rnor1is:ition method arc reviewed at the 
end of each repmting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that arc 
acquired separately arc carried al cost less impairment, if any 

(h) S11hstq11r111 t' 11c11,J1111rt 
~11bM:tlUt:ll l C..'tpc11 Ji tuu: h ci\pitalised only when it increases the ll1turc economic benefits embodied in the spccillc asset to which it relates . All other expenditure, including 
11;:xpt:ndlt11rc 011 lnt~J 1111ll~ generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the Condensecl Consolidated Statement of Pro flt and Loss as incurred. 

(c) Anrnrlisnlion 
Amortisation is calcul.11ed over the cost of the a~cl, or othe, amount subslitutcd fm cosl, less its residuil va lue Amortisalion is recognised in lhc Condensed Consolida1ed 
S1atemen1 of P,ofit and L.oss on a straight line method over the esti mated usefol lives of intangible assets, from lhe date that they arc available for llSe 

Compute1 SnlhvA1ci, 
T1adc111.trks 

Eslimntcd Useful Life 
(in yenrs) 

Ollll'I ' n~ Srh, 

10 

The estimated useful life and .1mortisatio11 method arc 1eviewcd at the end or c;,cl1 reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being ac1.:ounted for 0 11 a 
prospective b1tsis 

{d) 1Jc-recognitio11 
An intangibl<- asset is dcrecognised a,, disposal, or when no future economic benefits arc expected from use or disposal, gains or losses arising from dcrccognition of'an 
intangible asset measured as the difference between Lhe net disposal p1ocecds and the ca1rying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Consolidated St.1tcment of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is dcrccognised 
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('.undcnscd Consolidntcd FinllnciHI Stnlemcnts 
Noles lo Accouuts 
(All nmonnts in Rs, million unless otherwise stntcd) 

J,4 Investment pro11crty 
(A) Recog11ition nnd rncnsurcment 

Properties includinH lam!, building a11d othc1 assets. which arc held cithc1 for long-term rental yield or for capital app1cciation or for both, and which are not occupied 
substantially by MindspiH.:c Business Parks Group arc classilied as investment propcr1y 

l11vcstment propcr1ies a1c i11itially 1ccogniscd at cost, including ,elated transaction costs Subsequent co initial 1ecognition. investment properties 11re measured in acco,dancc 
with the requirement ol' Ind AS 16's 1cquircmcnts fo1 cost model i c Cost less clcprecia1io11 less impitirmenl losses, if 11ny. Depreciation is charged when the investment 
property is ready for ils intended use . Cost comprises of direct expenses like land cosl, site labour cost, material used for project construction, projecl manftgemenl 
consultancy, cosls for moving 1he plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insu1ance, design and technical 
assistance, and construction ove1hcads arc allocated on a reasonable basis lo the cost of the project 
Plant and machinery, fumiture and fixtures, office equipment and electrical equipments which ere physically attached to lhe commercial buildings are considered as part of 
investment property 
Acquisitions i\nd disposals arc accounte<l for al the date ofcomplc1ion of acquisitions and disposals 

(b) S11h'l,•11i1C'.11 I n1lm1ditur~ 
Subf.C'f!uCnl C.'KTIOTidhur~ ls capitalised Lo the asset's t:arrying 11111uu11t unly when it is probable lhat future ccono1nic benefits associated with the expenditure will now to 
Minelipace Uush10» Ptt1~s Group and the cost of the item c11n be measured reliably. All other repairs and m11intenance costs 11re expensed when incurred . 

(c) Oeprccintion 
Depreciation/ amortisation is provided using straight line mclhod ns per the useful life of the assets estimated by lhe management over the balance useful life The estimated 
useful lives of the asse1r., which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed lmder Schedule II of lhe Companies Act 2013 and listed in the t11ble below 
Depreciation on addition , deletion of investment property made during the period is provided on pro-ra1a basis from/ to the date of such 11ddition / deletion 

Asset gronp 

Right to use - Leasehold land 
Buildings• 
lnfraslruclurc and Jevelopmcn 
Roftdworl<" 
Plant and machinery 
Office equipment• 
r-umiture and fixtures• 
Electrical i1u tttllhm111• 

Esllmatcd Useful Life 
in cars 

Balance Lease te1 m 
75/90 

15 
15 
15 
4 

15 

"'For these class of assels, based on technical assessment lhe rnana~ement believes lhe useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those presclibcd u11de1 
Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 201J 

Basc<l on inte1nal asscssrncnt 1hc management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those 1espective 
assels in SPY 
Assets individually costing less 1h;rn Rs 5,000 arc folly w1itte11 orTin lhc year or acquisition 

l'hc estimated uscJ'ul lives, residual vall1cs and depreciation method arc reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation 11ccou11tcd 
fo1 on a prospective basis 

(d) Fnir Vnluc 
1-'llir value or i nvcstmcnt p1 opcrty is based 011 a vulu<1lion by an inclepenclent value, who holds a recognised and I clevnnl µ1 ofcssional qualifica tion c111<l has I ccenl expc1 ie11cc 
in lhe loctilion and cnteg,11 y of the inws1111enl p1op e1 ty being valueJ The l'i\i1 vttlue of investment p1oper1y is disclosed in the Statement ol'Nel assets M Fai1 Value 

(r) IJc-rccognition 
An investment p1operly is dcrccogni zed upon clispositl or when the investment properly is pcnnanenUy withdrawn from use and no future economic benclits a1c expected 
from lhc disposal Any gain ur loss arising on de-1 ccognilion of the property (calculated as the difference between tile net disposal proceeds and the c111 rying amount or the 
asset) is included in the Condensetl Consolid11ted Statement of P1olit and Loss in the period in which the prope1ty is de-recognised 

(f) lnvcstmcnf 11ropcrtics under construclion 
Properly that is being constructed for rutmc use as investment p1operty is accounted for as investmcnl properly under construclion until assets are ready for thcil intended use 

Direct expenses like l11nd cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, p1ojcct management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the silc 
and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, desisn and technical assistance, and constn,ction overheads are taken as the cost of the 
project 
Investment properties under constniclion represent the cost incurred in respect of areas under construction of the real estate development projects less impairment losses, if 
any 

Advance paid for acquisition of investment property which arc not rea<ly for their intended use at et1ch balance sheet date arc disclosed under other non current asse1s as 
capital advance 
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J,5 Impairment or assets 
Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses al each balance sheet d;,tc, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired If any such indication exists, Mindspacc 
f3usiness P11rks Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset [he recoverable amount of the assets (rn where applicable that of the cash generating unit to which the 
asset belongs) is estimated as 1he higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash nows expected to 
arise from the continuing use of the t1ssets and from ils disposal at the end of its useful life An impairmcnf loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or 
the cash-generating unit to which il belongs, exceeds its recoverable amou11t lmp11irmenl loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses. the carrying amount of1he asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so 
that the increased carrying amounl docs not exceed lhc carrying umount thal would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash­
generating unil) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in lhc Consolidated Suucment of Profit and Loss 

J,6 Borrowing cosls 
Borrowing costs that arc attribulallle to the acquisition, construction or produc!ion of qualifying assets are treated as direct cos! ;ind arc considered as part of cost of such 
as<iels Rnrrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in conneclion with the borrowing of funds Investment income earned on the te111porary 
investmenl of specific borrowings pending their e;,cpenditurc on qualifying 11ssets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation A qualifying asset is an 
assel that necessarily requires ft substRntial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 
Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs lo be c11.pi111lised is the weighted average inleresl rate applicable to the genernl borrowings 
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when 
substantially all the 11ctivitics necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete 
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they a1e incurred 

Borrowing cost incurred by the SPVs on inter-company loans is conlinued to be c11.pitaliscd only to the extent Mindspace Group has incurred external borrowing cost 

3.7 lnvenlorics 
(n) Mcnsurcmcnt of inventory 

Inventories comprise of building material and components Contractual work in progress, in respect of third party customers, is classified as work in progress Mindspace 
llusiness Parks Group mci,suics its inventories at lhe lower of cost and net realisable vah1c 

(b) Cost of inventories 
The cost of inventories ufbuilding material Hnd t.:omponcnls and work in progress cornp1ise all costs ofpurch11se and other costs incmred in bringing the inventrnies to thei1 
present location 11nd condition Cost is dete11ni11ed on moving weighted average basis 

(c) Net renlisable volue 
Net realisable value is the estimaled selling price in the ordina1y cou1se of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale 

J,8 Revenue recognition 
{R) Fncility reutnls 

Revenue from property leased out under an operating lease is recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis, except where there is an unce1tainty of ultimate 
collection 

(b) Revenue from works contraclual services 

Revenue from wo1 ks contraclual service is accounted for on the basis of completion of work as per the specification and agreement with the customer 

(c) Mnin(cnnncc services 
M11intenance income is r~cognised over a period of time for sc,viccs rendered to the customers 

(ti) Revenue from power supply 
Revenue from power supply is at:countcd !'or on the b;isis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting year Mindspflce 
Bl1sincss Pat ks Group determines su1 plus/deficit i c excess/ shortfall of aggregate gain over retu1 non equity entitlement fo1 the period in respect of its operations based on 
the 1>rinciplcs laid down under the 1espcctivc Tariff Rcgulalions as notified by Maha,ashtra Electricity Regulato1y Commission (MERC), on the basis of the tariff order 
issued by it In 1espcct of Sl1ch su1plus/deficiL, appropriate adjustments 11s stipulated undc1 the 1egulations arc made (,hiring the period further, any adjustments that mAy arise 
on irnnual pc1frn111a11cc 1cvicw by the MERC undei the tariff1eglilations is made after 1hc completion of such review 

(c) Vinnuce Lc11sc 
For assets lcl m1t under !inancc lease, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises II receivable al an amount equf!I to 1he net invcstmenc i11 the lease Rentals 1eceivcd arc 
accounted for as rcpay111ent of principal and finr111cc income Minimum lease payments receivable on linance leases arc apportioned between lhe tinancc income and the 
1eduction of the outstanding receivable The finance income allocated to each period during the lease tenn so as to produce a constant periodic rate of inte1est on the 
remaining net investment in the finance lease 
Contingent 1cn1s are rct:orded as income in the periods in which rhey arc earned 

(f) Snlc of surplus construction nrntcrinl nnd scrap 
Revenue from sale of surplus constmclion material is recognised on transfer of risk and rewards of ownership which is generally on dispatch of material 
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3.9 Recognition of dividcntl incomc 1 interest incom<-: 
(i) Dividend income is 1ccognised in p101it or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT group has right to 1cccive pr1ymcnt is established 
(ii) Interest income is 1ccogniscd on time propor1ion basis, by reference Lo the principal outstanding and lhc effective interest tale applicable 
(iii) Delayed payment cha,ges and intercsl on delayed payments fire recognised, on lime proportion basis, except when there is unccr1ainty of ultimate collection 

J,10 Tax expense 
Income ta.'< expense comprises cu1Tcnt tax and defc1 red u,x charge or credit It is recognised in the Statement or Prolit and Loss excepl to the extent that it 1elaLcs lo an ilcm 
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in equity 11nd other comprehensive income 
respectively 

(n) Current tnx 
Current tllx comprises the expected lax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year find any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect or 
previous years The amounl of current tax renects the best estim1He of the lax amount expected to be paid or received afler considering the uncertainty, if any, related to 
income taxes lt is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or subsu1n1ively enacted by end of reporting period 

(b) Deferred I•x 
Deferred tax asset/liability is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Defe1red tax assets and liabilities arc measured that are exp~tcd to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and tax laws thit have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reponing period The measurement of 
deferred tax liabilities and assets rcnccts lhe tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which Mlndspace Business Parks Group expects, al the end of the 
reporting period, Lo rccovt!r or seule the canying amount of its assets and liabilities 
Deferred tax is not recognised fo1 
- Temporary ditl"ercnces arising on the initial recognition of assets find liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and tha1 affects neither accounting not 
taxable profit or loss at the time or the transaction; and 
- Temporary dill"erences related to investments in subsidia1ics, Hssociatcs, and joint arrangements to the extent that Mindspace Business Park Group is able to con11ol the 
liming or the reversal of the temporary dirTcrenccs and it is p1obablc that they will not 
1 cversc in the foreseeable future; 

Dcfc1rcd tax liabilities a1c generally 1ecogniscd fo1 all tairnble lcmprn·a1y dilfcrences Deferred tax assets arc gcneially 1ecogniscd for all dcdm:tible temporary diffc1c11ccs to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difTerences can be u1ilized Such det"eired tflx assets and liabilities 
arc not recognised ii' the temporary ditl"ercncc arises from 1hc initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a tiansaction that n£Tccts 
neither the taxable profit 11or the accOlmting profit 

The carryin8 fl mount of defcned tax assets arc reviewed at the end of each reprnting period rrnd reduced lo the extent that it is no longer probable thal sufficient tasablc 
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered 
Dcfened tax assels and liabilities arc otfsct if the,e is a legally enforceable right lo orrset current tax liabilities, and they relate to income laxes levied by the same lax 
authorily 011 the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, bL1t they in Lend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will l:Jc 
realised simultaneously 

For operations c1mied out under lax holiday period (SOJA benefits of Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax 11ssets or liabilities, if any, have been established fo1 the u1.x 
consequences of I hose tempo, ary differences between lhe ca1 rying values of r1ssc1s and liabilities and lhei, respective tax bases that reverse afle, the tax holiday ends 
111 the situations where one or more units of the G1oup arc entitled to a tax holiday under !he tax law, no dcfcned tas (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary 
differences which rcve1sc during the lax holiday pe1iod, to the extent the concerned llnit's gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period 
Dcfe, red tax in I cspcct ()f tempo1 ary differences which reverse a Her the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate I lowcvcr, 
the Group restricls 1ecogni1ion of dcfc11cd tax a5SCtll 10 1he ex1ent it is probable that sufficient fu1urc taxable income will be available againM which such deferred tax assets 
can be r ealizcd Frn 1ecog11itio11 of dcfc1 f'cd taxes, the temporary diffc1 ences which originate first arc considered to reverse first 

(r) Minimum Alttrnnte T:u (MAT) 
MAT credit e11titlc111cnl is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence thal normal income lax will be paid during the specified period In 
lhc ycflr in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Consolidated Statement of Prolit and Loss and 
shown es MAT credit cnlitlemcnt unde1 deferred tax assets This is 1eviewcd at each balance sheet date and the car tying amount of MAT crcdil entitlement is written clown 
10 the extent it is not 1casonably cc11ain thal 110,mal income rnx will be paid <luring lhe specified period 

J.11 Enrnings per unil (EPU): 
The basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net p1ofit/ (loss) attributable to the unit holders of Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number or units 
outstanding dming the reporting period ·1 he number of units used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units conside1cd for 
de1iving basic earnings/ (loss) pe1 unit and also the weighted average number of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive po1ential unirs 

Dilutive potential units a1c deemed conve1ted as of the beginning of the rcporling date, unless they have been issued at a later date In com puling diluted earnings pc1• llllit, 
only potential equity units that arc dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units arc included 

J.12 Provisions, conlingcnt linl,ilitics n11d confi11ge1H nsscts 
P1ovisions arc recognised when Mindspace llusincss Parks G1oup has fl present legal or constnictive obligation as a 1csult of a past event, it is probable th;il Mindspacc 
IJ11Si11css Pa1ks Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation 
'!he amount recognised as a provision is the best c-stimatc of the consideration required lo settle the present obligation at the end of the rcponing period, tHking into account 
the risks and uncertainties sunounding the obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the expce1ed future cash flows at a pre-rnx rate that 1efleets current market 
assessments or lhe time value of money and the 1isks specific to the liability The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 

Contingent liabilities arc disclosed when the1e is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably nor, require an outtlow orresou1ccs When 1he1c is 
a po5sible obligation of a p1csent obligation in 1cspcct ol'which lhe likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision 01 disclosure is made 

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non­
occurrence of one rn more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace Business Parks Group 
P1ovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets arc reviewed at each Balance Sheet date find adjusted to reflect the current best estimates 

J, IJ Foreign currency tn111sactions and lnrnslnlions 
Trans;ictions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange 
uansactions scllled during the year arc recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the period 
Moncta1y assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which arc oulstanding as at the pcr'iod-c.nd and not covered by forward con1rac1s, are translated al the period­
end at the closing exchange rale and the resultant exchange differences arc recognised in the Condensed Consolida1ed S1a1emcnt or Profit and Loss. Non-moncta1y foreign 
currency items arc Cflnicd at cosr 
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.l.1-' Lc11.~cs 
AsR Lcsso1 
Mindspacc Business Parks G1oup cntc1s inlo lc..tsc agreements as a lessor with respect to some or its investment p1operlics 
LL'asc.'i fo1 which Mindspacc Business Pr11ks G1oup is a lcssrn is classified as lina1,ce or opc1a1ing leases Whenever 1he term s of the lcHsc trn11s!'c1 sl1hsurn1ially all the risks 
and rewards or ownership to the lessee, the contrnct is classified as a finance lease All other leases arc classified as opcratinB leases 
When Mi11dspacc Business Parks Gr0l1p is im intermediate lessor, it accounts for the hcrid lci1sc and the sublct1sc as two separate conlracts. The sublease is classilicd as.-, 
finance or operating lease by reference lo the 1ight-of-usc asset Rrising from lhe head lease. 
llcn1al income from Oflcr.tting leases is 1ccognised on a straight-line l>.uis ovc1 the lenn of the relevant lcRse lnilial direct cosls incurred in negotiating and rtrrang1ng an 
operating lease arc added to the carrying amount of the leased asset nnd recognised on a s1ralgl11..finc b1Ui1' M'Cr d tc lo:o5ic tc:1111 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases arc recognised as receivables at the amou11t or Miud.spft c ll1umos1 Pnrks Gl'CJl1p's net investment in the leases. Finance lease 
income is allocated to reporti ng periods so as lo reflect a conslant periodic ra1e of return un Mindsp3co lhLlitnCSS l~1rk.s rou1l's net investment outstanding in rcspcc1 of the 
leases 

As a Lessee 
Minrlspace llm111cn Parks Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a leue. at inception ol' Jl c: mun,rt. ~1fl11 dSfJace Businc.,!i 1•urk, G1oup r~CCl.ijniirmi a ri ~h\o{Jr•use 
asset nnd a 1.:01'1'1:isJtf'lllding lease liability witll respect to all lease agreemenls in which it is the lc~ L\ olCtc1)t fa r sho11-1erm leases ( denned as lcll$c1 with II lcase tern , ~1 1 12 

months rn less) and leases of low value assets for these leases, Mindspace Business Parks Grotlp rcn:ugn lMe.!! tl1e lt:ti~c payments Alli 1m npc-rar1 nu CIJC IJt:: 11 ~ (1n a sl fl'II IJIU•l.ne 
b11sis over the term of the lease unless 1rnothcr systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed 
The lease liabi lity is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments 1hat arc not paid al the commencement date, discounted hy using the rme im1>lici1 in lhc 
le.tse If this rate cannot be readily dctcrmi11ed, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses ils incremental borrowing ,ate 
Lease payments inclL1ded in the mcasuumJOJll uf lhe lease liability comprise: 
• fixed lease payments (including in-subli!.4.I ICC Hxcd 1>aymcnts), less a11y lease incentives; 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or iate, initially measured using the inde.x or rate at the commencement elate; 
• lhc u111m11\l expected 10 be payable by the lessee under 1esiduo1I value guarantees; 
• payments of penalties for tcnninnting the lease, if 1hc lease term relleclS the exercise of an option to lcnninate the lease 

I he lease liabil1ty is p1csented separately as pa1i of Financial Liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated balance sheet The lease liability is subsequently 111ec1sured by 
inc,easing the carrying amount to retl ccl interest 011 the lectse liahility (using lhe effective intcres1 method) and by reducing the carrying amount lo renccl the lease pay111cnts 
made 
Mindspace Business Paik.~ Group remeasures lhe lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assel) whcncve1 
• the lease te1111 has chc111gcd or there is a cllangc in the assessment of exercise ofa pu1chase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the 1cvised 
lc;:i se p.-1y111ents using a revised discount ra1c . 
• the le;:ise payments cha.11ge due to changes in an index or 1111c rn 11 changc in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is 
measured by discounung lhe 1cvi se,J lease payments using the initial discount rate (11nlcss the lease payments clrnngc is due to a change in a fl oa ting interest rate, in which 
case a ,cviscd discou111 rate is used) 
• :1 lcilsc conlract is modilicd and the lease modilication is not accounlecl for as a separntc lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised 
lease payments using a 1evised discount 1atc, 

'I he ,ight-of~use assets comp1ise the initial measurement of the co1rcsponcJing lc.-1se liabili1y, lease payments mat.le at oi l>cfo1e 1hc commencement clay and any initial di1cc.:t 
cosls They 111c subsequently mc;,smed at cost less accumulated dcprcciatio11 and impairment losses 
Wheneve1 Mindspace Business Pa1ks Group ineu1s an obligalion for costs lo dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the sile on which it is located 01 1cstmc the 
unUcllying asset to lhe condition rcCJuired by the 1e1ms and conditions oJ' the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS .17 'Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilittes nnd C'ontingenl Assets' ·1 he costs arc included in the ,elated right-of-use nssct, un less those costs arc incurred to p1llducc invcn trnics 
lligh1-nf-use ttsscts an: dep1edatcd over 1he shrnicr pc1 iod urlcase te1 m rind llseflll life of the underlying 11ssc1 
Mi11Uspr1cc Business [l;uks G1 ou1, applies 1ml AS .l6 lmpl'!i1mc111 of Assets to detc1111inc whether a righl-of-use asset is impaired /'Ind accounts J'o1 any idc111ilicd irnp11irme11t 
lo~s 11s descrihcd in Nrne J 4 

Va1ia1Jlc 1c11Ls that do not depend on an index or rnte arc nol i11ch1ded in the rncasu1eincnt the lease liability and the light-of•use assel lhe related payments arc 1ecog11iscd 
as an expense in Ille pe1iod in which the event or co11di1irn1 thal tiiHgCrs those payments occu1s and arc included in the line " othc1 expenses" in the C(lndensed 
('unsolida1cd S1a tc111c11t of P101i1 ;ind I .oss 

3.1~ Financial ins11•11mc111s 

lnirinl rcco~11itio11 nnd ml'11suremc11t 
Fi,1ancial assets and /or financial liabilities arc recogni sed when Mi11dspace Business Parks Group becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial inslru111c11 ts 
All Jinancial assels, linancial liabilities arc initially measured at fai1 vall1C Transaction costs that arc attiibulable to the acquisition 01 issue of financial assets aml !inancial 
liabili1ics (other than financil'll assets and limrncial liabilities at lair value 1h1ough profit rn loss) arc added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fai1 value ot" such 
assets or liabilities, on initial recognition Transaction costs directly attributable lo the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair v;,, lue th, ough p101it 01 loss 
au.: 1ecogniscd immedialcly in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of P1olit and Loss 
Fiunncinl assets: 

(n) ( 'lll.)) lrrr ri Hm1 ur n ua11rfi11 ru .(tb; 

(i) •fi11 \ll'l1>ntc: Jlm,lnt.:.U /1t1 1 k~ Group clilssifics its linancial assets in lhc i'ollowing measurement ci\legories : 
- lhosc hl t,c 111W1MJrcd 11ubscqucntly at f11ir value (eilher through other comprehensive income, or through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and I .oss), and 
- Lho~c measured at amortised cost 

(ii) I he classifica1ion i:. Jone depending upon Mind space Business Parks G1oup's business model lb, 1rn111agi11g the financial assets and the contractual tcnns of the cash !lows 

(iii) h 1r investments in Jehl instrnmcn(s, this will depend on 1hc business model in which lhc invcstmenl is held. 
(iv) Mi11dsp11c~ Business Parks Group rcclas!:ilie~ debt invesuncnls when and only whc11 its business model for managing those assels clrnnges 
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(h) Subsequent Mcnsurcmcut 

(i) Debt inslrumcnls: 

Subsequent measu1emcnt of debt instnuncnts depends on Mindspacc Business Parks G1ol1p's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow ch;mictcristics of the 
asset There arc three measurement catcgoiics into which Mindsp11cc Business Parks Group clnssifies its debt instruments: 

FinnnciAI nsscts HI Rntortlscd cost 

Financial assets arc sub~cquently measured al amortised cost if these financial Rsscts a,c held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in ol'dcr to collect 
contrac1ua.l cash flows and the con1rac1ual rerms of lhe financial assel give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and inte1cs1 on the 
principal amount outstanding 
Finnncinl nssels nt fnir vnlue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

FinanciA.1 assets arc subsequently measured 111 fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets arc held within a business whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting conlrac1ual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely paymenls of princip1tl and inte,csl on lhe principal amounl oulslanding and by selling 
financial assets 

Finnncinl nssets nl fair vnluc through the Consolidnled Stntcment or Profit nm.I Loss (FVTPL) 

financial assets are subsequently measured al fa.ii value through the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair 
value th tough other comprehensive income on initial recognition The transaction costs di reedy attributable to the acquisition of fim1ncial assets and liabilities al fair value 
th1ough pront or loss arc immediately recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Stalement of Profit and Loss 

(ii) Equity inslrnmcnls: 

Mindspace Business Parks Group subsequently measures "II equity invesfmcnts al fair v11luc There are two meilsurcment categories into which Mindspacc Busine~s Parks 
Group classifies its cquily instruments 

Investments in equity instruments nt FVTPL: 

lnvcstmcnLs in equity instruments MC cl11ssified as al FVTPL, unless Mindspaee Business Parks Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes 
in fair vAluc in other comprehensive income frn equity instruments which arc not held for trnding 

lnvcstrncuts in equity instrnmcnls nt FVTOCI: 

On initial recognition, Mindspace Business Pa1ks Group can make an iircvoc11ble election (on an ins1niment-by-ins1rumcnl basis) to present the subsequent clrnnges in fair 
value in other comprehensive income This election is not pcrmiucd if the equity investment is held for trading These elected inveslmenls arc initially measu1ed at fai1 value 
plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are me;:isured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the reserve for 'equity instnJmcnts through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not rcclassine<l 10 Consolidated Statement oJ'Protil 
and Loss on disposal of Lhe investments, bul is transferred to retained earnings 

(c) lmpnirmcnt or limrncinl nsstls: 

Min<lspace Uusincss Parks G1m1p 11pplies Lhc expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on linancial assets measured al amortised cost, lease 1eccivablcs, 
trade receivables, other contracLUr1I rights to receive cash or other fimmcial asset fat trade receivables, Mindspacc Business Parks Group measures the loss allowance al an 
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses Further, fo1 the purpose or measuring lifetime expected c1edit loss allowance for trade 1cccivables, Mindspace Business 
P;,rks Group has used a practical expedient as permitted u1lder Ind AS 109 'fhis expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which lakes into 
11ccount historical credit loss experience and adjusted for rmward~looking information 

(d) Dcrccognillon of finnndnl assets: 

1\ financial asset is prim;i,ily dcrccogniscd when 
(i) the tight to receive cash Hows fiorn the assel has expired, or 
(ii) Mindspacc Business l'a1ks Gtoup has transferred its rights to receive cash !lows from the asset; And 

Mindspace Business PHrks Group lrns lrnns!Crrcd substantially all the risks and rew;irds of the asset, or 
Mindspacc Business Parks Group has nei1hcr transferred nor relained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, hut has lransferreU con1rol ol'the asse1 

On dcrecognition of a ti11a11cial asset in its entitely (other Lhf!n investments in equity instruments al f-VOCI), the diffe1ences between the ca11ying amounts measured al the 
date of dcrccognition and the rnnside1a1ion received is recognised in Consolidated Slatcment of Profit and Loss Any in1ercs[ in transferred financi;il assets that is created 
01 1ctaincd by lhc SPV is re1.:ognised as a separa1c asset 01 liability 

3 Fiirnncinl liHbililirs Hild rqui(y instruments 

(n) ClnssifirnHon 11s dchl or equity 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by Mindsprtcc llusincss Parks Group arc classified according to the substance of the contrnctual arrangements entered into 
and the definitions of a financial li11bility and an equity ins1rurncnt 

(b) J1:quily instruments 

An equity inst1umcnt is any contract that evidences a 1csiduRI interest in the r1sscts of Mindspacc Bl1siness Parks Group afler deducting all of its liabilities Equily 
instnunenfs arc recorded at the proceeds 1cccivcd, net of direct issue costs 
Repurchase of Mindspace [lLlsincss Parks Group's own equity instrnmcnt is recognised and deducted directly in eql1ity. No gain or loss is recognised in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation ofMindspace Business Parks Group's own equily instnunents. 

(c) Com1>011nd linanciRI instrumcnls 

The component pans of 1.:ompound financial instnrmcnts issued by Mindspacc Business Parks Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance 
with the substance of the contractual anangcments and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instnrmcnt A conversion option that will be settled by the 
cxcha11gc or R fixed a111ounl ot' cash or nnother financial asset tor a fixed nu111hc1 of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments is an equicy instrumem 

At the date of issue, the fair value of the li11bility component is estimated usin8 the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instn1mcnts This amounl is 
1ecordcd as a lit1.bili1y on i\11 amortised cost basis using the effeclivc interest mc1hod l1ntil extinguislied l1pon conversion or at the instrument's 111aturil} dare 

·r he conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound inslnJmcnt as a whole ·1 his 
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effcccs, and is not subsequently remeasured 
Transaction costs that 1clate to the issue of the conve1tible instnJments arc allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross 
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to 1he equity component arc recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to Ille liability component arc included in the 
carrying a111ount of (he liability component and arc amortised over the lives of the convertible instnimcnt using lhe <1ffec1ive interest method 
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(d) Fiunncinl Linbilitics 

Recognition, mcnsuremcnt nnd dnssilicntion 

financial liabilities arc classified as either held at a) fai1 value through the ConsolicJa1cd Sratcmcnt of Profit and Loss, orb) at amortised cost M,rnagcmcnl dc1c1mincs lhc 
classification of its tinancinl liabili1ics nt Ilic time ofi11itial recognition m. where applicable, at the time ofreclnssiflcalion 

Mindspacc Business Parks Group's !inancial liabilities incll1dc trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments Subsequent measurement 
or financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortized cost All changes in fair value of 
financial liabilities classitied as FVTPL are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Aino11iscd cost category is applicable to loans and borrowings, 
trade and other payables After initial recognition the financial liabili1ies are measured al amortised cost using !he Effective Interest Rale method 

Derccognllion 

A t1nancial liability is dcrecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires Gains and losses arc recognized in the Condensed 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities arc dcrecognizcd 

Offsetting or finnnciHI i1utru111e11b 

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and presented on nel basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and the1e is an intention either to settle on a nel bR.sis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously 

J.16 Cnsh nm.I cnsh equivnlents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 01 
less that are readily convertible 10 known amounts of cash and which arc subjecl to an insignilicant risk of changes in value 

J.17 Statement ofCuh flow 

Cash now is reported using the indirect method, whereby net p1ofit before tax is adjusted for the effects oftram1actions ofa non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of 
pasl rn future cash receipts or payments 'lhc cash llows from operating, investing and financing activities ofMindspace Business Parks G1oup are segreg11ted 

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolida1cd S1a1emen1 of Cash Flo\V, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of 
outstandin~ b;,nk ovcrd1afts as they arc considered f\11 integral part of Mindspace Business Parks Group's cash management 

As pc1 pal'a 8 of Ind AS 7 "whc1e bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part ofan enlily's cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a 
component of cash and cash equivalents Bank ove1d1an, in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, is included as 'borrowings· under Financial Liabilities 

J.18 1-:mploycc benefits plnn 

Disclo!lure pursuant lo Ind AS-19 1 Employce be11cri1S 1 

(1) Short term employee benefits 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of 1endering the service arc classified as short-tem1 employee benefits such as salaries, Wl\gcs, etc and arc 
tccogniscd in the period in which lhc employee rendered 1hc ,elated se1viccs The undiscountcd amount of sho11-1e1m employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange fo1 
the se1viccs rendered by employees is recognised as An expense dllling the period 

(2) Long term em1Jloyee bencrits 

Dcrincd contribution plnns 

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as An expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when 
services arc rendered by the em1>loyees Mindspace Business Parks G1oup's provident fund contribution, in rcspecl of certain employees, is made to a government 
adminis1c1cd fund a.nd cha,ged as an expense ·1 he above benefits arc classified as UcJincd contribulion schemes as Mindspace Rl1siness Parks G1oup has no tl1nhcr dclincd 
obligRtions beyond the monlhly cont1ibutio11s 
Defined benefit phm 

Mindspace Business Parks Group's g1atuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan Mindspace Business Pa1ks Group has determined the grntuity liability based on internal 
calculation based on rhc number of years completed and lasl drnwn basic sr1lary as mcnlioned in the Payment ofG.-atuity Act, 1972 The liability or asset recognised in 1he 
balance shcel in respect of delincd bcncJit gratuity phrns is the p1esenl value of the defined benefit obligation ill the end of the reporting peliod less the fair value or plan 
assets if m1y The dctinc<l be11enl obligation is calcula1ed annually by actuaries/ SPVs using lhe µ1ojected unil credit method 
I he present value or lhe defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is detc1111ined by discollnling the estimated future cash m11nows by rc!Crencc lo market yields al the 
end of the rcpor ting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation The nef interest cost is calculated by applying the 
discount 1a1e to the ncl balance of the defined bencfil obligation R.nd the fair value of plan assels This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Condensed 
Consoli<latcd Statement of Profit and Loss 

Other long term employee Ucnerils - Compcnsnted nbsenccs 

Benefits unt.ler compcnsi\ted absences are Rccounted as other long-term employee benefits Mindspace Business Parks Group has dete1mincd the liability for compensated 
absences hased on internal calculation which is determined 011 the basis of leave crcditeU to employee's account and the last drawn salary Mindspacc Business Pr1rks 
Group's nel obligation in 1espcc1 of compensalcd absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have earned in relum fo1 their service in the cu11cnt 
and previous years The benefit is discounted to dctem1inc its µresent value The ol,ligation is measured on the basis ofa.n aclllllrial VRluation / by SPVs using the projected 
unit credit method Remeasurement is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise Compensated absences which arc not 
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability 
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J, 19 Em·uings before rinnncc costs, clcprccintion nnd umortisntion, rcgulntory income/ expense, cxccptiounl items nnd tnx 

Mindspacc Business Pa1ks Group has elected to present earnings before imc1cst, dep,ecialion and 1111101tisation, rcgul;:,tory income/ expc11sc, exceptional items and tax as a 
separate line item on the face of the Condc11scd Co11solid11ted Slaleincnt of Prolit and Loss Mindspacc Business Pa1ks G1oup measures earnings before interest, 
dcprcciarion and amor1isation, rcguhuory income / expense, exceptional items and tax 011 the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations 

J,20 Subsequent evcnls 

The Condensed Consolid~tcd Financial Stalements arc adjusted lo reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Condensed Consolidated I-'inancial 
Statements arc issued £1,e Consolidated Financial Statements have their own date ofRulhotisation, which differs from that of the financial statements of the entities which 
arc part of Mindsp(l;ce REIT 8roup Therefore, when preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, management considers events up to lhe d;,te or 
authorisation of lhcse financial statement!ii 

J.21 Errors nnd cstimRtes 
Mindsp11ce Business Parks Group revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to II change in lnd AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable 
information to the users of the Condensed Consolidated financial statement Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively 
A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the 
period(s) of change 

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of Rssets. liabilities and equity of lhe et1rlics1 prior period in which the error is 
discovered The opening balances of the earliest period presented arc also restated 

3.22 Non-cnrrenl nsscts held for snle 

Non-currcnl assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable thal they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than lhrough continuing use Such asscls arc 
generally measured at the lower of their canying amount and fair value less costs to sell Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re­
measurement a1e recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

Once classified as hcld-fo1-sale, intangible assets, propc1ty, plant and cquipmcnl and investment p1opc1 tics ;,re no longer amoniscd or depreciated, and any equity-accounted 
investee is no longer equity accounted 

3.23 Scgmc111 lnformntion 

rrimnry segment inforn1Htio11 
·1 he prima1y reportable segment is business segments 

Uusiness segment 
Mindspace Business Parks Group is 01ganiscd inLo the two operating divisions - 'real estate' and 'power distribution', which arc determined based on the internal 
organisation and management structure of Mindspace Business Parks Group and its system of intenu1I financial reporting and the nalurc of its risks and its rctums The 
Governing Roard of the manager has been idcntilicd as 1hc chief operating decision maker (CODM). CODM evaluales Mindspacc Business Parks Group's perfonrnrncc, 
allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators of Mindspacc Business Pa1ks Group as disclosed below 

Rcnl cslntr 
Real eslatc comprises development of project/prope11y under special economic zone (SEZ), information technology parks (IT parks) and other comme,cial project/building 
Aller development of the project/property, the same is leased oul to the different customers Real Estate will t1.lso include Facilities Maintenance services received from 
tenants for common area rm1intcnancc (CAM) services Mind space Business Pa, ks Group has its project/property in Mumbai, Hyderabad, Pune and Chcnnai Mindspacc 
Business Parks Group executes work s contracts for constrnction of buildings based on customers specification and requirements 

l'owcr distribution 
·1 he state power 1egulator has taken on record the SEZ develope1 MB PPL, Gigaplc.'<, Sundcw and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power The approved 
SPY being Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers within 1hc notified SEZ 

SccnntJBrv scmncut infornmtiou 
Mimisp<1cc Business Parks Group's oµcratiuns are based in India and thc1cforc Mindsp<1ce Business P<1rks Group has only one geographical segment - India 

J,24 Non-controlling inlcr ests 

Non-controlling interests 1cprcsent Lhc share ol' 1cscrves and capital auribulablc to the sh11reholdcrs of the SPVs who have not agreed lo exchange their shares in the SJ>Vs 
fo, units ofMindspacc REIT and will not become the unitholdcrs ofMindspace REIT Below is the list of shareholders of the SPVs for whom non-controlling inlcrcst has 
been 1ccogniscd Non-controlling intcrcsls in the resu lts and equity or subsidiaries arc shown sepa1ately in the Condensed Consolidated St<1tcment of P,otit and Loss, 
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Condensed Balance Sheet 

SPY 

KI\ IT 

fnlime 

Sundcw 

Shnrcholder 

/\ 11 dl 11·0. 1•u1.dt11d1 lut.lwctnnl Infrastructure 
Corporation Limited 
Andhra Pradesh Jnduslrial Infrastructure 
Corporation Limited 
Andhia Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure 
Car oration Limited 

% Holding in SPY 
,; UII n:i1t1rlinl! tl111 ,) 

11 o,:. 

110% 

110% 

Ind AS 110 requires entities to allributc the prolit or loss and et1.ch component of other comprehensive income to the owners of Mindspace RElT <1nd to lhe non-conttolling 
inlcrcsts 1his requirement needs lo be followed even if this rcsulls in the non-controllinB interests having a delicit balance 

3.25 Cnsll distrilJution to unil holders 

1'11c Group recognises a liability to make cash di stributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authotiscd and a legal obligation has been created As per the REIT 
Regulations, a distribution is au1ho1iscd when it is app1ovcd by the Governing Uoa1d of the Manager A corresponding amount is recognised directly in eqllity 

3.26 Oistribution Policy 
The Net Distributable Cash Flows ot (\lindspace REIT arc based on the cash flows generated from Mindspacc REl1 's assets and investments 

In tcnns of the Dist1'ibuLio11 Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed to Mindspacc REIT, in 
proportion of their shareholding in the Asset SPY. subject to applicable provisions of the Ct1mJ>Jmi«:1 Ac l bl tile U ... f' Aot P164:lntly, NOC'I;; ID be received by Mind space 
REIT from the Assel SP Vs may be in the form or dividends, interest income, p,incipal loah 1\!pnymc111 . pfil\!tc~ or ""Y ci.11iutf rcduclit:m or buyflo.ck from the Asse1 SPVs, 
sal e proceeds out of disposal of investments if any or assets directly held by Mindspace REIT or 1'111. ~pc.·clfkn ll~ penmucd under lhc Tru~ J)cctl or in such other form as may 
be permissible under the applicable law 

·1 he Manager is rcquiret.l to and shall declare and distribute at let1sl 90% of the NDCfo of Mindspace REIT as distributions ("REIT Dis1ribu1ions") to the Unitholders Such 
REIT Disuibutions shall be declared and made fo1 every quarter ofa Financial Year 
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4 Pursuant to the share acquisition agreements entered between Mindspace REIT, Sponsor Group and Blackstone Entities for acquisition of the shares of the Asset SPVs held by the Sponsor Group and Blackstone Entities, the 
acquisition was effected on 30 Jul) 2020 However. consolidation of the financials of these Assets SPVs has been done effective 1 August 2020 considering the impact of 1 day operation on the financial results is immaterial 

5 Property, plant and equipment 
Reconciliation ofcarryinl! amounts for the period ended 30 June 2021 

Power assets Other assets 

Right of use - Plant and Electrical 
Right of use 

Plant and Electrical Office Furniture Total 
Particulars Buildings - plant and Computers 

Leasehold Land machinery Installation 
machinerv 

machinery Installation equipment and fixtures 

Gross block (cost or deemed cost) 

At 1 April 2020 
Additions due to Asset acquisition I 467 711 150 63 40 8 5 l 4 1,450 

Additions during the year 26 2 - 0 0 28 

Dis osals 
At 31 March 2021 I 467 711 150 63 66 10 5 1 4 1.478 

At l April 2021 I 467 711 150 63 66 10 5 1 4 1,478 
Additions during the period 2 17 0 19 
Dis sals 
At 30 June 2021 1 467 711 150 63 68 10 5 18 4 1,497 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 April 2020 
Charge for the year 0 4 47 3 5 4 0 3 I I 68 
Disoosals 
At 31 March 2021 0 4 47 3 5 4 0 3 1 1 68 
At 1 April 2021 0 4 47 3 5 4 0 3 1 1 68 
Charge for the period 0 2 18 l 2 2 0 0 1 0 26 
Disposals 
At 30 June 2021 0 6 65 4 7 6 0 3 2 I 94 

Carrying amount (net) 
At 31 March 2021 1 463 664 147 58 62 10 2 0 3 1_410 
At 30 June 2021 1 461 646 146 56 62 10 2 16 3 1.403 

Note - refer note 43 for Asset acquisition 
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6 Investment property 

Reconciliation of carrying amounts for the period ended 30 June 2021 

Development rights Leasehold 
Infrastructure 

Plant and Furniture Electrical 
Particulars Freehold Land Buildings and Roadwork 

of Land** Land 
de\·elo ment 

machinery and fixtures installation 

G-ross bloc.k (cost or deemed cost) 
As at 1 April 2020 
Additions due to Asset acquisition 2,758 67.666 26.206 88,720 3,421 29 4,834 81 1.491 

Additions during the year 862 112 436 II 113 

Disposals 
At 31 March 2021 2,758 67,666 26,206 89,582 3,533 29 5,270 92 1,604 

As at 1 April 2021 2,758 67,666 26,206 89,582 3,533 29 5,270 92 1,604 
Additions during the period 703 2,390 408 234 3 37 
D1Sp0sals (Refer note 54) (1,341) (3) - {15) (0) (16) 
At 30 June 2021 2,758 67,666 26,909 90,631 3,938 29 5,489 95 1,625 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at 1 April 2020 
Charge for the year 328 822 195 1 433 II 105 
Disposals 
Im a inn ent Loss• 118 

At 31 March 2021 328 940 195 1 433 11 105 

As at 1 April 2021 328 940 195 1 433 11 105 
Charge for the period - 123 320 79 0 151 4 42 
Disoosals (Refer note 54 ) (19) (1 ) (9! !J 4) 
At 30 June 2021 451 1,241 273 1 575 15 133 

Carrying amount (net) 
At 31 March 2021 2.758 67.666 25.878 88.642 3.338 28 4.837 81 1.499 
Ar 30 June 2021 2.758 67.666 26.458 89.390 3,665 28 -t914 80 1.492 
,',otc - refer note 43 for Asset acquisition 
**Conveyance of the proportionate share in the land will happen upon handover of22% of the proportionate share of the constructed area belonging to the landowner as per the Joint Development 
Agreement 
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1,95,206 
1,534 

1,96,740 
1,96,740 

3,775 
(1,375) 

1,99,140 

1,895 

118 

2,013 

2,013 
719 
(43) 

2,689 

1.94.725 

1,96.451 
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7 Investment property under construction 
The breakup of investment property under construction comprises upcoming buildings in various parks The SPV wise details are as follows : 

Particulars Asal As at 
30 June 2021 31 March 2021 

MBPPL* 2,261 2,203 
Gigaplex 4,782 7,579 
Sundew S8 656 
KRIT 73S 627 
KRC Infra** 4,487 4,122 
Avacado 164 130 
Horizonview 2 0 
Total 12.489 15.317 
Note - refer note 43 for Asset acquisition 

*During the year ended 31 March 2021, an impairment loss of Rs 176 million has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for Mindspace Pochararn, Hyderabad and recorded as "Buildings" under Investment 
Property and Investment Property under construction in the financial statements of the Group ('Property' ) These assets are used in the Group' s "Real estate" segment. The Group has determined this Property as Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) of the Group for the purpose of Ind AS 36. The impairment charge arose due to vacancies at the Property and the Group' s expectation of longer time to lease the vacant area against earlier estimates, as a 
result of the existing market conditions due to Covid-19 pandemic. The recoverable amount of Rs 2,746 million as at 31 March 2021 being the higher of value in use and the fair value of the Property as per Ind AS 36 is 
considered for impairment and has been determined at the level of the CGU In determining value in use of the property as at 31 March 2021 , the Independent Valuer has discounted the cash flows at a rate of 12,25% for 
completed buildings and 13.60% for under construction building on a pre-tax basis. 

•• The cost of construction and other related expenses incurred on building no. GI for Gera Developments Private Limited is classified under IPUC as on 30 June 2021, since the SPV is in the process of finalising the 
arrangement with Gera Developments Private Limited. 
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8 Other intangible assets 
Reconciliation of carrying amounts for the period ended 30 June 2021 

Particulars 

Gross block 

As at 1 April 2020 
Additions due to Asset acquisition • 
Additions 

Dis~sals 
At 31 March 2021 

As at 1 April 2021 
Additions 
Dis~ sals 
At 30 June 2021 

Accumulated amortisation 

As at 1 April 2020 
Charge for the year 
Disposals 
At 31 March 2021 

As at 1 April 2021 
Charge for the period 
Dis~sals 
At 30 June 2021 

Carryinj!: amount (net) 
At 31 March 2021 
At 30 June 2021 

Trademarks 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

• includes trademark and computer softwares (less than Rs 0.5 million) 

Note - refer note 43 for Asset acquisition 
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9 Investment 
Particulars 

Financial assets 
Investments in equity instruments 
Unquoted equity shares measured at FVTOCI 
2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, face value of Rs. IO each fully paid-up 

(31 March 2021 : 2,000) 

Unquoted investment in Government Securities at amortised cost 
25,000 7.61 % Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2021: 25,000) 

25,000 8.24% GO! 2027 Bond (Face value Rs I 00), (31 March 2021 : 25,000) 

25,000 7. 17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs I 00), (3 l March 2021: 25,000) 

22,000 7.26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs l 00), (31 March 2021: 22,000) 

22,000 7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2021: 22,000) 

10,000 7.72% GOl 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2021 : 10,000) 

18,000 7.26% GO! 2029 Bond (Face value Rs I 00), (31 March 2021: 18,000) 

28,700 7.40% 0012055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2021: 28,700) 

21,210 8.33%0012036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2021: NIL) 

12,000 7.06% GO! 2046 Bond (Face value Rs I 00), (31 March 2021 : NIL) 

1,790 8.33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs I 00), (31 March 2021: NIL) 

Investments measured at cost (gross) 
Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss 
Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
ln\'Cstmcnts measured at amortised cost 
Aggregate amount of impairment recognised 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

30 

As at 
30 June 2021 

0 

3 

3 

2 

2 

2 

1 

2 

3 

3 

I 

0 

22 

0 
22 

22 

As al 
31 March 2021 

0 

3 

3 

2 

2 

2 

2 

3 

18 

0 
18 
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IO Other financial assets (Non current) 
Particulars 

U11sec11red, co11sidered good 
Fixed deposits with banks* 
Unbilled revenue 
Finance lease receivable 
Security deposits for development rights 
Security deposits 
Other receivables 

As at 
30 .June 2021 

254 
556 
826 

517 
7 

2,160 

• These fixed deposits arc held as lien against loan availed to support debt servicing and bank guarantees. 

11 Deferred tax assets (net) 
Pa rtieula rs 

Deferred lax assets (net) 

I 2 Non-current tax assets (net) 
Particulars 

Advance tax (net of pro vision for tnX) 

13 Other non-current assets 
Particulars 

U11sec11re,J, co11sidered good 
Capital advances 
Advance to vendors 
Balances with government authorities 
!' repaid cxpons-.~ 

14 Inventories {valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 
Particulars 

Building materials and components 

15 Trade receiva hies 
Particulars 

U11sec11red 
Considered good 
Credit impaired 
Less: loss allowance 

31 

As at 
30 ,June 2021 

1,624 

1,624 

As at 
30 .June 2021 

1,150 
1,150 

As at 
30 ,I une 2021 

603 
10 
20 

380 
1,013 

As at 
30 June 2021 

54 
54 

As RI 

30 June 2021 

278 
52 

(,52) 
278 

As at 
JI March 2021 

As at 

201 
496 
712 

6 

506 
6 

1.927 

3 I March 2021 

1,543 

1,543 

As al 
31 March 2021 

1,064 
1,064 

As at 
3 I March 2021 

577 
12 
24 

344 
957 

As at 
3 I March 2021 

51 
51 

As at 
3 I March 2021 

214 
62 

(62) 
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1\'IINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

I 6 A Cash and cash equivalents 
Particulars 

Cash on hand 
Investment in axis overnight mutual fund 
Balances with banks 

- in current accounts• 
- in escrow accounts 

- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 
three months 

As at 
30 June 2021 

2 
0 

3,146 
145 

75 
3,368 

*Includes balance with banks of Rs 0 million (31 March 2021: NIL) for 11np11 id distributions. 

16 B Other bank balances 
Particulars 

r-ixed deposits with original maturity for more lhan 3 months and less than 
lwelve months* 
13alnncc with banks•• 

As at 
30 June 2021 

45 
94 

13'.) 
* These fixed deposits arc held as lien against loan availed lo support debt servicing and bank guarantees. 

•• These arc unspcnl Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) balances deposilcd in scparale escrow accounls 

17 Other fimrncial assets (Curren I) 
Particulars 

Unsecured, co11sidered good 
lnlcrest receivable 

- on fixed deposits 
- from others 

Interest accrued but nol due 
- from others 

Security deposit for development righls 
Security deposits 
Fixed deposils with banks* 
Unbilled revenue 
f'inance lease receivable 
Other receivables 

- Considered good 
- Credil impaired 

Less : loss allowance 

As at 
30 June 2021 

2 
24 

6 
60 
30 

209 
315 
244 

35 
I 

(I) 

925 

• These fixed deposits arc held as lien against loan availed lo support debt servicing and bank guarantees. 

18 Other current assets 
Particulars 

Umecured, considered good 
Deposit/ advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 
[3alances with governmenl authorilies 
!'repaid expenses 

As at 
30 June 2021 

32 

105 
200 
440 
745 

As at 
3 I March 2021 

As at 

2 

3,060 
64 

413 
3,531) 

31 March 2021 

123 

113 

/\s al 
3 I March 2021 

2 
24 

17 
61 
23 

221 
526 
209 

46 
1 

( 1) 

1,129 

As al 
3 I March 202 I 

61 
206 
244 
511 
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Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All nmounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

19 Corpus 

Cor us 
As at I Aplil 2020 
Additions duling the yca,-
Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 
As at I April 202 I 
Addilions d11 ri11g 11,c p~iiod 
' lostns halnncc as 111 0 .lune 2021 

20 Unit Capital 

A. Unit Capital 
As at I April 2020 
Units issued during lhe year 

- pu1suant to the initial public o!Ter, issued, subscribed and fully 
paid-up in cash (refer note a (ii) below) 

- in exchange fo, equity interest in Sl'Vs (refer note a (iii) below) 
Less: Issue expenses (1efe1' note below) 
Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 
As at I A11ril 202 I 
A<icli ti1111s durinH the porind 
·1t1Nlng hnwucc as at 30 June 2021 

A111nu111 

No. 

3,63,63,600 
55,66,54,582 

59,30, 18,182 
59,30,18,182 

59,30118, I Ill 

Amount 

0 

0 
0 

0 

10,000 
1,53,080 

(241) 
1,62,839 
l,62,839 

1,62,839 

Note: Issue expenses pertaiuing to the Initial Public OtTcling (IPO) and listing of the units on the National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange have 
been reduced from the Unitholde1s capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 financial lnst1uments: Presentation 

(a) Terms/rights altttched to Units and other disclosures 

(h) 

(i) The T1ust has only one class of Units Each Unit 1cprcscnts an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holde, of Units is entitled to one vote pc, unit The 
Unit holders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash l'lows of the Trust at least once in eve,y six months in each linancial yea, in 
accordance with the REIT Regulations, The Board ofDi1ecto,s of the Manager app1oves distiibutions The distlibution will be in proportion to the numbe1 or 
Units held by the Unitholders. The Trust decla1es and pays distributions in Indian Rupees 

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspacc Business l'a,ks REIT is requi,cd to dist,ibute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net dist,ibutablc 
cash nows of Minclspacc Business Parks REIT ro, each financial yea, . Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the 
Mindspacc [lusincss Pa1ks REIT to pay to its Unitholdc1s cash distributions Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial inst1umcn1 which contains equity 
and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - l'inancial Instruments: Presentation 1-lowever, i11 acco1dance with Simi Ci1cula1s (No 
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 elated 29 Dcccmbe1 2016 and No CIR/IMD/DF/141/2016 dated 26 December 2016) issued under the REIT Regulations, the 
Unitholdc1s' funds have been presented as "Equity" in order to comply with the requirements of Section 1-1 of Annexure A to the SEHi Ci,culai dated 26 
Dccembc, 2016 dealing with the minimum p1esentation and disclosure requirements fo1 key financial statements, Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as 
equity, the distributions to Unitholdc1s is also p1escntcd in Siatemcnt of Changes in Unitholdets' Equity when the distributions me approved by the [3oard or 
Direeto1s of Investment Manager 

(ii) Initial Public Olfoting of3,63,63,600 Units for cash at p1icc of Rs 275 per Unit aggregating to Rs, 10,000 million. 

(iii) Mindspace REIT has acquired the SPVs by acquiring all the equity inte,est held by the Sponsor G,oup and Blackstone Entities in the Sl'Vs The acquisition or 
equity interest in the SPVs has been done by issue of55,66,54,582 Units of Rs. 275 each as per the table below. 

Avacado 
Horizon view 
KKC Infra 
Gigaplex 
Inti me 
Sundcw 
KRIT 
Mind space 
Total number of Units issued 

Name of the SPY 

Number of Units allotted for acquiring equity interest held 
by Sponsor Group and 131ackstone entities in SPVs 

Sponsor group mackstonc Entities Total 

2,93,04,371 5 I ,71,359 3,44,75,730 
364 64 428 

2, I 2,24,693 37,15,522 2,19,70,215 
4,73 ,34,745 3,72,113 4,77,06,858 
4,67,89,935 94,84,426 5,62,74,361 

10, 19,43,753 2,06,64,275 12,26,08,028 
7,74,43,859 1,56,98,080 9,31,41,939 

15,08,55.361 2.66,21.662 17,74,77,023 
47,48,97.081 8,17,57,501 55,66,54,582 

llnitholdcrs holdi11u. mu rc thnn 5 prrcc11t Units in the Tru_11 /al.her than Sounsor 111111 Snonsor Grounl 
Nn mc of the unllhuhlcr /\i 111 30 ,June 202 1 As al 3 I Mnrnh W2 1 

No of' Units % holtlin~ Nu or l.J111 1,1 61.,lwkl'itw 

BREP ASIA SG PEARL I !OLDING (NQ) PTE LTD 5,42,9 I ,425 9.16 ◄½, 5,42,91,425 9 16% 

(c) The T,ust has 1101 allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units fiom the date ofregist,ation till the balance shccl 
date . l'urther the T1ust has nol issued any units for conside,ation othc, than cash fiom the date of incorporation till the balance sheet date. except as disclosed 
above 

33 



MINl)SPACE BUSIN~:ss PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Acrounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

21 Other l•. 1 till 1•• 

PR rticu la rs 

Reserves and S11rp/11s 
Retained earnings 

As RI As at 
30 June 2021 3 I March 2021 

(2,247) 191 

2,247 IIJI 

"Refer Condcnficd Consolidated Statement 11 r o1111nucs in Unit holdei's equity fo1 dc tn llc<l movement in other equity balances. 

Retained earnings: 
The cumulative gain or loss arising rrom the operations which is ,etained and is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings. At the end 
of the pc11uu. the µ1olit/loss after tax is transfcncd from the statement of profit and loss to lhe 1etained earnings account. 

22 Uorrowinw, 

Particulars 

Secured 
Terms loans 

- fiom banks i linancial institutions 

Debentures 
10 yea, U-Sec linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non­
cumulative, 1atccl, principal p101ectcd - mal'kcl linked, 1cdccmable, non­
convertible debentures ("Ma1kct Linked Debcntu!'es / MLD Series I") (net of 
issue expenses, al amortised cost) (31 Ma,ch 2021 : 4,975) (refer Note i) 

Secured, listed. senio1, laxablc, 11011-curnulativc, rated, 1cclee111ablc non­
convc11iblc debentures (NCD Series I) (net of' issue expenses, at amortised 
cost) (31 Match 2021 : 1,981) (refer Note ii) 

10 year G-Sec linked secu1ed, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, 1ated, 
principal protected - ma1ke1 linked, 1edccmable, non-convc11ible debentures 
("Ma1kel Linked Debentures / MID Series 2") (net of issue expenses, at 
ammtiscd cost) (31 Ma,ch 2021 : 3,719) (refer Nole iii) 

Secured. listed, senio1, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable no11-
conve1tible debentures (NCD Series 2) (ncl or issue expenses, at a111011iscd 
cMI) (31 March 2021 : 750) (refor Note iv) 

As at 
30 June 2021 

22,092 

1,983 

3,722 

750 

28 547 

A~ at 
3 I Ma1ch 2021 

22,064 

4,975 

1,981 

3,719 

750 

33489 

(ii In Scptcmbe, 2020, Mindspacc REIT issued 5,000 10 yern G-Sec linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, ialed, p,incipal p,oteclecl­
mni ket I inked, redccnrnblc, 11on-convc11ible dcbcntu,es ("Markel Linked Debentures / Ml .D Series I") having face value or Rs. I 0,00,000 (Rupees Jen lakhs 
only) each, a111ou111ing lo Rs 500.00,00,000 (Rupees live hundred cro,cs only). The tenure of the said MLD Series I is 577 days tiom 29 Scplcmbct 2020, being 
date of allotment or the MI..D Sc1ies I and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i c, on matu1ity on 29 i\p1il 2022 The coupon 
payoffs11ucture is linked lo condition where the payoff will be llxcd on the final fixing elate i.e. 30 March 2022 lfidcntilicd JO yea, G-Scc's last 1radcd price as 
on final lixing date is grca1c1· than 25% of its last tiaded piice as on initial lixing date i e. 29 September 2020, the coupon ,ate will be 6 80% pa, Ii' idcnlil'icd IO 
year G-Sec's last tm led µr ice as on t1nal fixing date is less lh c1 n or equal to 25% of its last tr·nt.Icd price n.s on initial lixlng date, the coupon rate will be 1.:ro 
percent. As per the -v11h1c1·, report in respect orval1ia1io11 r,1' MLD Series I, the probability of occ,,ircnce of :n1ch an event ( 111st 1rnded price or idenlil'icd i (I y.:11r CJ. 
Sec on linal fixing .la1c \icing less than or equal lo 25% c,fits ln~I traded price on initial fixin l' dulc ) is rcmolc and hence 1l1c value of the option considc!'cd as 
zero. 
This Ml.O Sc, ,cs I was listed on [lSE L.imitecl on 13 Octobe1 2020 
Security terms 
MLI) Sclics I arc scc111ed by each of the loll owing security in favour of lhe Debenture Trustee (holding lor the benefit of the Debentu1c Holders): 

a) f<irst and exclusive charge 1egistcrcd by way of simple mmtgagc (including 1eceivables aris ing the1efiomJ on the agg,cgate leasable a,ea or app,oximalely 
974,500 Sq Ft. 01 the1eabou1s in buildings no. 6. 7 and 8 ofCommerzonc Yerawada (approx 178,569 sq fl . in building no. 6, approx. 371,799 sq , fl in building 
no. 7 and app1ox 424,132 in buildmg no 8) togclhe, with the p1opo11ionale undivided 1ight, title and intc1esl in the notionally dcma,catcd land aclmeasu,ing 
app1oxi111atcly 25,313 sq. mlrs on which the said three building no 6, 7 and 8, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land a1e situate, lying and being in 
Village Ye1awada, Taluka I-Iawli. District rune ("Mmtgagecl Prope1t1cs")ofMLD Se1ies I. 

b) I\ chdl'ge on the esc,ow account in which receivables oflhe Mo11gaged Prope11ies orMBPPL shall be 1eceived. 
c) Co,poiale guarantee execu1cd by Mlll'l'L. 

Redemption terms: 
a) Ml D Series I a,e redeemable by way ofbullel p"yment at the end of 577 days from the dale of allotment, i e 29 April 2022 and accmdingly the same has been 
classified as cu11ent borrowings as on 30 June 2021 (1clc1 note 27) 
b) The Coupon shall be inc1cased by 25 bps fo1 cvc,y notch downgiadc in Ilic rating by the Ct edit Rating Agency In case rating is upg,adecl ane, any ,ating 
downg,aclc, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps fol' each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Sctics I if the rating is 
downgraded 10 A-1 
c) Upon occu1Tcnce or a 111andato1y 1cde111ption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thiny) business days notice to the Issuer require 
the Issuer 10 redeem in lull, all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amo unt equal to the total mandatoiy 1edcmption amount in 1cspcc1 of each 
Debentwe 
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(ii) In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks RI.ii I' issued 2,000 sccu1cd, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, 1edcemable, non-convc11ible debentures 
("NCD Se1ies l "J having face value or Rs 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs 200,00,00,000 (Rupees two hund1ed c101es only) wilh a 
coupon iatc of 6 45% pa payable qua11crly beginning liom ihe end of lirst full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon payment 
on the scheduled 1edemption date i.e. 16 December 2023 The tenure of lhc said NCIJ Series I is 36 months f1om 17 December 2020, being date of allolmcnt 
This NCD Series I was listed on BSE Limited on 21 Dcccmbc, 2020 

Security terms 
NCD Series I a,e secured by each of the following sccu1 ity in favoui of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders): 

a) Firs! and exclusive charge registc1ed by way of simple mollgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area ol' approxinrnlcly 
414,599 Sq Ft 01 thereabouts in buildings no I and 5 ofCommerLonc Yerawada (approx 43,200 sq fl in building no I and approx 371 ,399 in building no 5) 
together with the p1oportionatc undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demaicated land admeasuring app,oximately 18,264 sq. 111t1s on wl1icl1 1l1c said 
two building no I and 5, out of all those pieces and pa1cels of larger land that a1e situated, lying and being in Village Yerawacta, laluka 1-1avel1, 1J1str1c1 l'unc 
("Mortgaged Properlies") ofNCD Series I 

b) A cha1gc on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mo11gaged l'ropc1tics shall be received save and except any common area maintenance char-ges 
payable to MBBPl. with respect to the maintenance of the mo11gaged p1ope11ies 

c) Corporate gua1antcc executed by MBPl'L 

Redemption terms: 
a) NCD Series 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment al the end of36 months 00111 the date of allotment, i.e. 16 December 2023. 
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (sta11ing from 31 March , 2021) until the scheduled redemption date 
c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps fm cve1y notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rnting 
downg1ade, the Coupon shall be dcc1eased by 25 bps fo1 each upgrade 
d) Upon occwrencc ol'a mandato1y redemption event, the Debenture T1ustce may, by issuing not less than 30 (thi11y) business days' notice lo the Issuer 1cquire 
the Issuer to redeem in llill , all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatrny redemption amount in 1cspec1 or each 
debenture. 

(iii) In Ma,ch 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 yea1 G-Scc linked scctucd, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal p101cctcd - mmket linked, 
redeemable. 11on-wnvc11iblc dcbcntu1cs ("Ma1kc1 Linked Debentures / MLD Sc1ics 2") having face value of Rs 10,00,000 (Rupees len lakhs only) each, 
amounting to Rs . .175,00,00,000 (Rupees three hund1ed seventy five e101cs only). The tcmu e of the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months f1om 18 Ma1ch 2021, bcini; 
date ofallolment of the ML!) Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e . on maturity on 17 May 2024 The coupon 
payoffstructwe is linked lo condilion whc1e the payoff will be tixcd on the final fixing date i.e. 16 Ap1il 2024. lfidcntitied 10 yea1 G-See's lasl lladed Ill ice as on 
final lixing date is greater than 25% of its last t1adcd plice as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 Ma1·ch 2021, the coupon iate will be 6.65% p.a If' identitlcd JO year G­
Scc's last tiaded price as on linal lixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date, the coupon iate will be zero percent, As 
pe1· the valuers 1cpo11 in respect ofvalualion ol'thcse MU) Series 2, the probability ofoccu11ence of such an event (last tiadcd price of identified 10 yea1 G-Sec 
on final fixing dale being less than or equal to 25% or its last traded price on initial fixing date) is remote and hence the value or the option co11side1ed as zc10 
l'his Ml.D Sc,ics 2 was listed on LlSE Limited on 22 March 2021. 

Security terms 
MU) Series 2 a,e secured by each of lhc following sccwity in favour of the Debenture Tnistee (holding for the bcnclit of lhc Debenture Holdc1s): 

a) Fi 1st and exclusive cha1ge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate leasablc a1ca of approximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft 01 tl1c1cabouls in 
buildings no. 12A and Units oflluilding 121l ofMadhapur, Hyderabad (approx. 12,69,140 sq. I\ in building no.12A and approx 1,02,302 sq ll in building no 
121l) logethe, with the propo11ionatc undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admcasu1i11g approximately 29,842 sq. m11s on which 
the said two building no,12A and 12ll, out of all tl1osc pieces and paicels ofla1ger land that are situated, lying and being in Madhapw Village, Sc1ilinga111pally 
Mandnl, Ranga Reddy Districl, Hyderabad ("Mo11gaged Properties"), fo1 MLD Series 2 

b) First ranking exclusive charge c,eatcd by way ofa hypothecation ovc1 the 1-lypothccated Propc1ties ofMLD Series 2 

c) A cha1ge on the escrow account created, in which ,cccivables of tl1e Mo11gagcd P1ope11ies of Sund cw shall be received, save and except any common a,ea 
maintenance cha1ges payable to Sundcw with respect to the maintenance of the mmtgagcd prope11ies. 

d) Co, poiale guarantee executed by Sundew. 

Rcden11ition terms: 
a) Ml .D Series 2 a1c redeemable by way of bullet payment at ihc end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i c 17 May 2024 

b) The Coupon shall be inc1cascd by 25 bps for cvc,y notch downgiade in the iating by the Ci edit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgiaded anc, any 1aling 
downg1adc, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps fo1 each upgrade. The lnvcsto,s shall have tl1e right to accelc1ate the MU) Sc1ics 2 il'the rnling is 
downg1 aded 10 A, 
c) Upon occurrence or a mandato1y redemption evcnl. the Debenttne Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thi1ty) business days notice lo ihc Issue,· require 
the Issue, lo 1cdeem in full, all the Debcntwcs then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total manda101y redemption amount in respect or each 
Dcbcnlurc. 

(iv) In March 2021, Mimlspace Business Parks Rl''l'I' issued 750 secured. listed, senio1, taxable, non-cumulative, ia1cd, redeemable, 11on-conve11iblc debcn1u1es 
("NCO Series 2"J having face value of Rs I0,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs 75,00,00,000 (Rupees seventy five cro,cs only) with a 
coupon 1a1e of 6 686 I% pa. payable qua11elly beginning from the end of ti 1st foll qum1e1 f1om the date of allotment i c. 30 June 2021, with last coupon payment 
on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 17 May 2024 The tenure of the said NCO Series 2 is 38 months from 18 Ma1ch 202 l, being date of allotment 
NCD Series 7. was listed on BSE Limited on 22 Ma,ch 2021 

Security terms 
NCD Sci ies 2 a1e secured by each of lhc following security in favourofthe Debenture Trustee (holding fo1 the benefit of the NCD 1-loldc1s): 

a) ri,st and exclusive cha1ge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate lcasablc aiea or 
approximately 151 ,460 Sq. Fi. or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commcrzone Ycmwndu l1'lgc11'1er with the proport1 011ate undivided right, title and interest in the 
notionally demarcated land admcasuring approximately 9,561 sq. mtrs on wh ich the snid building, out ol' all lltOSc pieces and parcels of larger land thal arc 
situated, lying and being in Village Yeiawada, Taluka I lavcli , District Punc ("Murtt',oged t>ropcrties") ofNCLJ Scncs 2. 

b) A cha1ge on lhc escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged P1opc11ies shall be received, save and except any common area 
maintenance clia,ges payable to MBPPL with respect to the maintenance of the mo11gaged properties. 

c) Co1porate gua,antcc executed by MBPl'L 
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Redemption terms: 
a) NCD Series 2 arc redeemable by way of bullet repayment al the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i e 17 May 2024 
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each nnaneial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date 
c) The Coupon sl1all be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In ease rating is upgraded allcr any rating 
downb>rade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. 
d) Upon occun·enee ofa mandalory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days' notice to the Issuer require 
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each 
debenture 

C) eta1 so 1sc osure 11cu11 1rc, as 11er D ·1 fd ' SEBl Cff:CU Ill' ate Apr I SEBI/HO/DOI-!S/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/7l d d 13 i i 2018 ~ II are as o ows : 

Particulars Secured/Unsecured Previous due Next clue 
date date 

Principal - Not Principal - On 
10 year G-See Jinked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non- Applicable Maturity 

cumulative, rated, principal protected - market linked, redeemable, non- Secured 
convertible debentures ("Market Linked Debentures/ MLD Series 1 ") Interest - Not Interest - On 

Applicable Maturity 

Principal - On Principal - On 
Maturity Maturity 

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-
Secured 

Interest - 30 Interest - 30 

conver1ible debentures (NCD Series 1) June, 2021 Septembe1, 2021 

Principal - Not Principal - On 
Applicable Maturity 

10 year G-See linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, Interest - Not Interest - On 
principal protected - mar·kct linked, redeemable, non-eonver1ible debentures Secured Applicable Maturity 
("Market Linked Debentures/ MLD Series 2") 

Pr ineipal - On Principal - On 
Maturity Maturity 

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-
Secured 

eonver1ible debentures (NCD Series 2) Interest - 30 Interest - 30 
June, 2021 September, 2021 

5. Rating agency CRlSIL has assigned a rating ol'"CRISIL PP-MLD AAAr/Stable" to MLD Series 1 & 2 and "CRIS IL AAA/Stable" to the NCD Series I & 2 or 
the issuer/ Mindspace REIT, Subsequently there is no change in the rating. 
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Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Othe, requirements as per SEBI ci1cular (No SEBl/1-1O/DDI IS/DDHS/ClR/P/2018/71 dated 13 Ap1il 20 I 8) for issuance of debt securities by Real list ate 
Investment Trusts \RE!Ts) and Infrastructure Investment Trusts {h1vl'l's) 
Particulars For the period encled 

30 June 2021 
Securitv / Asset cover (MLD Series I) (1efer a below) 2.20 times 
Sccuritv / Asset cover (NCO Series 1) (1efer b below) 2.37 times 
Seeuritv / Asset cove, (MLD Se1ies 2) (1efer c below) 2.34 times 
Sccuritv / Asset cover (NCD Series 2) (refer d below) 2.44 llmes 
Debt-eouitv ratio (refer e below) 0.24 
Debt-sc1viee cove1al!c ratio (refer fbclow) 3.52 
tn1c1cst-scrviee covcl'al!e iatio (refer g below) 5.58 
Net wo11h rrelcr h below) I 69 430 
Formulae fo, co111putat1on orrnuos a,e as follows basis condensed consolidated hnanc1al statements (lncludmg non-controllmg inte,est) :-
a) Security / Asset cover ratio (ML!) Series 1) = Pair value of the secured assets as on 30 June 2021 as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding 

principal amount ofMLD Series I+ lnte1est accrued thereon) 
b) Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Se1-ies I) = Lower of Pair value of the secu,cd assets as on 30 June 2021 as computed by two independent valucis / 

(Outstanding principal amount ofNCD Series I + Interest accrued thereon) 
c) Security/ Asset cover ratio (MLD Series 2) = Fair value ofthc secured assets as on 30 June 2021 as computed by independent valuer/ (Outstanding principal 
amount ofMLD Series 2 + lnle1est accrued thereon) 
d) Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 2) = rair value of the secured assets as on 30 June 2021 as computed by independent value,s / (Outstanding 

p1incipal amount ofNCD Series 2 + Interest accrued thc1con) 
e) Debt equity 1atio ~ Borrowings / Total equity 
t) Debt Se,vice Cove1age Ratio= Eamings belbre interest, depreciation, exceptional items and tax/ (Interest expenses + l'rincipal repayments made during the 

period•) 

g) lntc,est Service Covernge Ratio ~ Jia, nings befo, c inte1est, depreciation, exceptional items and tax / (Interest expenses [ net of capitalisation}) 
h) Net wor1h ~Corpus + Unit ca11itnl -1 Othe1 equity 

llo11owings = Non current bo11owings + Curl'ent bo11owings , Current maturities of long-term borl'owings + Interest accrued 
• Excludes bullet and full repayment ofexlcmal borrowings 

23 Other nou-runcnt n111111cin l li11hilitics 
l'nrticulars 

Sccu, ity deposits 
Retention money Payable 

- due to micro and small cntcrptises 
- olhc,s 

Interest Ace, ucd but not due on debentures 

24 l'rovM011s ( 011 c11rrc111) 
Particulars 

Provision for employee hcncfits 
- gratuity 
- .:.1mpcnsa1ccl absences 

25 Deferred tax liahilitics (net) 
Particulars 

Dclcr red tax llnb iHt ics ( 1101) 

26 Other non-current lialJUJlie.-J 
Pa rtlcula rs 

Unearned rent 
()1hc1 nclvnn0c 

27 Short term borrowings 
Particulars 

, ecurecl: 
Loans rcuavablc on clcmancl 

- ove rdraft from banks 
- Term loan from banks 

Current maturities of long-term debt 

-IO year G-Scc linked secured, listed, gt1ara11tecd, senior, taxable, non­
cumt1lative, rated, principal p1olected - market linked, redeemable, non­
convcr1ible debentu1 es ("Market Linked Debent111 cs/ MLD Series I") (net of 
issue expenses, at amo11ised cost) (31 Ma1ch 2021 . Nil) (Refer· Note 22(i)) 
- from hnrrks I li11 11 nc111l inst1t11t1011s 
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As at 
30 ,June 2021 

2,324 

94 
69 
70 

2,557 

As at 
JO ,June 2021 

16 
14 
30 

As at 
JO ,June 2021 

256 
256 

As at 
30 ,June 2021 

523 
IQ 

SJJ 

As at 
30 June 2021 

3,548 
1,150 

4,978 
1.600 

11,276 

A~ at 
31 March 2021 

2,201 

76 
66 

185 
2,528 

/\ s at 
3 I March 2021 

15 
13 

211 

As at 
31 March 202 I 

258 
258 

As at 
31 Ma,ch 2021 

514 
1(1 

5 •I 

As at 
3 I March 2021 

2.074 
500 

,OuS 



MINDSPACE BlJSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN : IN/RE IT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless othcn~isc !lated) 

28 Trade lll\'llhk, 
Particulars 

Trade Payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
nnd small cmcrpnscs • 

As at 
30 June 2021 

35 

763 
7911 

As at 
31 Ma,ch 2021 

52 

81 
865 

• fncludes Rs.42 million (31 March 2021 : Rs 40 million) payable to the Manager for Management Fees. Refer note 52 

29 Other current liiurn clnl llnll ilillcs 

30 

JI 

32 

l' n rti culn rs 

Employees dues payable 
Interest accrued but not due on loans from 

- banks I financial institutions 
- debentwe 

Interest acc,ued and due 
Secu, ity deposits 
Retention dues payable 

- due lo 111ic10 and smal I enterprises 
• othe,s 

Book overdrall 
Unpaid Di sir ibutions 
Capital creditors 

- Due to micro and small ente, prises 
-Othe,s 

Otllcr liuhiiitics+ 

As at As at 
30 June 2021 31 March 2021 

0 0 

61 62 
262 2 

67 40 
5,242 5,397 

110 128 
134 146 

100 
0 

432 501 
1,185 1,255 

120 132 
7,713 7,(,63 

• Expense of Rs 19 million (31 Mar ch 2021 Rs. 17 million) is payable to the Manager for Mmdspace REIT Management Fees Refer note 52 

1•,·01•isi11 11 s (( 'uJTcntl 
Particulars i\ at As at 

30 ,June 2021 31 March 2021 

Provision for cm11loycc benefits 
- graluit)' 3 3 
• co11rpc11so1ud ollsurrccs .j 3 

7 6 

(l1hc1· current liullilitlcs 
Pal'llr11lars As at As at 

30 June 2021 3 I March 202 I 

Unearned rent 273 254 
Advances received from customers 109 441 
Statutory dues 190 174 
Other advances so 50 
Othe, £1.! •able s 5 

627 92,1 

Current tax liabilities (net) 

Particulars As at As al 
30 June 2021 3 I March 2021 

i>mvls/1111 il11 i11 cn111c-1nx. net ur 1,dvr,ucc tn~ J I 15 
JG 15 
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MINDSPACJ,: OUSINlcSS l'ARKS RJ,:IT 
ltN: IN/IU:IT/19-20/003 
C:omlensctl ConsolitJntcd Fiunncinl Stutements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stutcd) 

33 ltt•\1cnuc. from U[!£FJ!HWJ 
Particulars 

Sale of services 
Facility rentals 
Maintenance services 
Revenue from works contracl services 

Revenue from 11owcr su11J)ly 

Other operating income 

Interest incnme from finance lease 

Sale of surplus construction material and scrap 
Service connection and othe1 charges 

34 J 1tc1•cst lncmue. 
Pnrticulars 

Interest income 
- loans ~iven to body corporates 
- on fixed deposits 
- on elcch icily deposits 
- on Income-tax refunds 
- olhers 

35 O1lu.•1• 111 lltlll' 

Particulars 

Gain on redemption of mutual fi.md units 
Gain on redemption of preference shares 
Fo1eig11 exchange gain (net) 

Liabilities no longc1 rcqui1ed wrillen back 
Misccllnncous income 

J6 l•~u11,10~1,~t;: IJrucnL, r,pc1lSc• 
J111rtl,1ulu1·s 

Salaries and wages 
Conttibu(ion to provident ttnd olhc1 fonds 
01 atuity expenses 
Com cnsatcd absences 

For the quarter 
emled 

30 ,June 2021 

3,403 

632 

116 

44 
2 

4 197 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 

6 
2 

5 
IJ 

For the qu:1rter 
ended 

JO June 2021 

3 

9 

0 

12 

For the qunrtcr 
ended 

30 June 2021 

50 

3 
2 
2 

Fu, the qua11cr 
ended 

3 t March 202 I 

3,419 

664 

72 

128 

39 

18 

4 341 

Fur tl1c quarter 
ended 

3 I Mai ch 2021 

(0) 

8 
4 

69 
I 

112 

F 01 the quarter 
ended 

31 March 202 I 

J 

40 

2 
46 

l'or 1he quarter 
ended 

31 March 202 I 

55 
2 

(3) 

2 
56 

• J,111plnyce bonolits expenses majorly 1efc1s to en1p\1.1ycc heuofi t expenses or facilities maintenance cn·iccs. 

37 - ( ·ost uf crnpl'th' 111111mge.11U'nl . cn•ic,· 
Pnrticulars 

Housekeeping services 
Fa1rade cleaning 
Engineering services 
SecLU·ity expenses 
AMC expenses 
Garden 111ai11tc1mnce 
Repair and maintenance 
Consumables 
I~lcctricitv consumption charges 

38 Hci,uir~· 11111.J 111n-inu:11n11 c 
Particulers 

Repairs and maintenance: 
- building 
- plant and machinery 

- clcctiical installation 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 

10 

17 

14 

26 

4 

3 

76 

For the qunrter 
ended 

30 June 2021 

67 

45 

4 

116 

39 

For tl,o qua,ter 
ended 

3 I March 202 I 

10 

18 

16 

36 

2 

16 

12 

I 
11 2 

For the qna11er 
ended 

3 t March 202 I 

57 

59 

6 

21 

r-or the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 

l'or the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 

for the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 

l·or the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2020 

ro, ~,. qua11er 
ended 

30 Jnne 2020 

For tl1e qua11cr 
ended 

30 June 2020 

J,'ur I lle yea, 
ended 

31 March 2021 

9,024 

1,665 

278 

315 

77 

20 

2 

I I 381 

l'or 1hc year 
ended 

3 I March 2021 

22 
20 
I 3 
75 
3 

IJ3 

For the yea, 
ended 

31 March 202 I 

For the year 
ended 

40 

2 
5 I 

31 Mai·ch 2021 

l'o, the year 
ended 

105 

5 

0 

5 

115 

31 Maich 2021 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2021 

20 

36 

31 

64 
3 

18 

16 

2 
191 

232 

168 

16 

416 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN : IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

39 O1hc.r ,~~ 1e11~rll 

P11rticulen For the <JUiir tcr Fti1 lho q11 11 ,1w for the 11uru tor F<>r the C[II' 

ended ended ended ended 
30 June 2021 31 March 202 I 30 June 2020 3 I March 2021 

Rent 3 2 5 
Property tax 119 144 337 
Royalty (0) I 
Elecuicity, water and diesel char~•• 104 92 224 
Travelling and conveyance 0 0 4 
Rates and taxes 6 20 28 
Business support fees 14 15 37 
Brokera~c and commission 52 51 127 
riling fees and stamping charges 7 8 II 16 
Business promotion expenses/advertising expense 4 21 
Bank Charges 0 6 
Bad debts w1itten off 0 4 4 
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 46 158 185 
Provision for Doubtli1l Debts ( expected credit 0 (12) II 
loss allowance) 

Foreign exchange loss (net) 0 0 
Directors1 sitting fees 0 2 
Miscellaneous exeenses 6 12 0 31 

362 497 1,039 

40 Finn nee O!iil~ 

PHr llculn1·.&1 For the quarter Fur tl te quarter ror the quarter F<lt 1he yea, 
ended ended ended ended 

30 June 2021 31 March 2021 30 June 2020 31 March 2021 

Interest expense 
- on borrowings from banks and financial institutions 445 483 1,568 
- on debentures 200 132 228 
- on lease liability 5 4 13 

- on others 3 10 
Acc1 ction of interest on O 00 I% non-cumulative 4 
redeemable p,eforence shares 

Unwinding of interest expenses 011 sccurily deposits 67 89 188 
Other linance charges 0 8 17 
Less: Finance costs capitalised to investment pt operty (121) (Ill) (321) 
under co11struction 

5gg 607 I 707 

41 l>s ureai11 tirn1 11 11d u1!.!ll!.:ll~n tion 
P11rticul11rs for th e qunrl cr 1'111' the ~11111·1cr l-"nl'lh1:c1trnrtt!r Forih~ cnr 

ended ended ended ended 
30 June 2021 31 March 2021 30 June 2020 3 I March 202 I 

Depreciation ofprnpe,ty. plant and 25 23 <,R 
equipment 
Depreciation of investment property 719 634 1.895 
Amortisation of intangible assets 0 0 0 
Less: Depreciation cost transferred to investment (OJ (0) 
prope1tics under construction 

744 657 I 964 

42 Tnx e, c11s1· 
PRrticulars 1-''or 1hc (11111rwr Fr11 the qu1 11 tc, F,,r tltc 'I"'" tor et) I tlmyc11r 

ended ended ended ended 
30 June 2021 31 March 2021 30 June 2020 31 March 2021 

Cun-ent tax 368 309 1,033 
Dcfen-ed tax charge / (income) (11) 249 628 
MAT c,edit (entitlement) / charge (72) 9 (216) 

285 567 I 445 
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MINDSPACI<: BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/ 19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

43 Asset Acquisition 
The Mindspace REIT entered into share acquisition agreements with shareholders of8 Asset SPVs (reter note I under 
accounting policies for list of these SPVs) for acquisition of shares of the Asset SPVs in exchange for the units of 
Mindspace REIT. The acquisition was effected on 30th July 2020 ("Acquisition Date"). 

Requirements or Ind AS I 03 apply to a transaction in which assets acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a 
business. J·Iowever, para B7 A and B7B of Ind AS I 03 allow an optional concentration test to perform simplified 
assessment of whether acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The consequence of the test is that if the 
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no further assessment is 
needed. 

REIT has opted to apply optional concentration test in respect of acquisition of these SPYs. Acquired SPVs arc 
engaged in the business or real estate development and leasing. Major asset pool of these SPVs comprise or 
investment property and investment property under construction. Based on the assessment performed, management 
has determined that substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in investment 
property and investment properly under construction (including other assets which meet the definition or group of 
similar identifiable assets as per definition provided in para 87B oflnd AS I 03 such as investment property, properly, 
plant and equ ipmcnt attached to these investment properties which cannot be physically removed and used separately 
from these investment properties, without incurring significant cost, or signilicant diminution in utility or fair value to 
either asset). 

Accordingly, acquisition of these SPVs has been accounted as acquisition of group of assets not constituting a 
business and requirements in Ind AS I 03 for business combination accounting has not been applied to this transaction. 
The REIT has accounted for the transaction as follows: 

a. Identified asset or liability initially measured at an amount other than cost and applied applicable standards for 
initial measurement of these assets and liabilities 
b. Plant and Machinery recognised at fair value as determined by an independent valuer 

c. Deducted from the gross transaction price of the group acquired, amount recognised in respect or items listed in 
point (a) and (b) above 
d. Allocated the residual transaction price to the remaining identifiable assets (i.e. Land and Buildings which arc then 
being classified as Investment Property and Investment property under construction) based on their relative fair values 
ut the date of acquisition, arrived at by an independent valuer. 

The transaction has not resulted in recognition of goodwill or bargain gain in the books of the REIT. Non-controlling 
interests in these subsidiaries have a present ownership interest and is entitled to a proportionate share of nel assets 
upon liquidation. These non-controlling interests have been accounted at their fair value on the date of acquisition or 
the SPVs. For this purpose, fair value has been determined in accordance with Ind AS I 13. 

As consideration for the assets acquired, Mindspace REIT issued 556,654,582 units at unit price of Rs. 275 per unit 
totalling to Rs. l 53,080 million. Mindspacc REIT has also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to the 
asset acquisition. amounting to Rs. 23 million, resulting in the total transaction price of Rs. 153, I 03 million. The 
lbllowing tables summarize the total transaction price, gross transaction price and the allocation of the transaction 
price. 

Amount 
Particulars (in million) 

Purchase consideration 1,53,080 
Acquisition costs 23 
Total transaction nricc 1,53,103 
Issue price per unit 275 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/I 9-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Based on the above total transaction price and adjusted for the other assets and liabilities assumed, the gross 
transaction price is as follows: 

Amount 
Particulars (in million) 

Total Transaction Price 1,53 103 
Less: Other Assets 44,344 
Add: Other Liabilities 91,570 
Add: Non-Controlling Interest 9,247 

Gross Transaction Price 2,09,576 

Based on the above total transaction price and adjusting for the other assets and liabilities assumed, the gross 
transaction price is allocated as follows on the basis of the allocation explained above: 

Amount 
Pa rticu la rs (in million) 

Land - freehold , leasehold and 
development rights of Land as 96,631 
part of Investment properly 

Building as part of Investment 
88,720 

I properlv 
Investment property under 

12,898 
construction 
Property, plant and equipment 

11,327 
and other assets 
Total 209,576 

Depreciation on leasehold land, building, plant & machinery and other assets has been calculated on the above 
allocated amounts based on the balance useful lives ol'these assets as per the accounting policy. 
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~IINDSl'AO: UUSINESS l'Allk:S 1rnrr 
RN:IN/RI•: 1'1'/19-20/003 
Conclcnscd ConsolidAtcd FinanciHI Slnlcmcnts 
Notes to Accounts 
(All nmounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Co11H.n~t11t lfol.tllllld 111111 < '.nuirn l ~mi1111(lut<'nl1 

Pnrtic11h1rs 

Contingent linhilities 
Claims not ack11owlcdgcd c1s Jehl in rcspccl or 

lm:omc I ax matters (Rcl'cr note I below) cxcludi11B interest 
- Service-I ax mallcrs (Ri..:l'cr 11otc 2 below) 
- Customs duw mailers (Rcfo1 nolc .1 below) 
- Stamp duty 
- Bank guarantees to 'lclangana State Pollution Cunuol [foa1d 

C11pit1d commitments 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (ncl of advances) and nol 

provided for (Rcfc1 Note 4 below) 

Notes: 

Asnt Asat 
JO ,June 2021 31 March 2021 

936 936 

332 JJ2 
25 2.1 
65 6.1 
33 ]] 

5,057 4,986 

it) Gigaplcx -An appeal ha!) been filed for A Y 2010-11 before CJT(A) againsl the penally order raising demand of Rs 3 million and the appeal is pending The company has paid 20% 
(Rs O 6 million) with a rcqL1cst to keep the demand in al>cyancc As per Income tax website, there is no demand oulslanding 

(b) KRIT - Contingent liability of Rs 933 million related to A Y 2012-13 to A Y 2018-19 for which company has filed appeals before CIT(A) against ordcis under secti on 143(3) / 143(3) 

read with section I S3A of the Act contesting the disallowance of deduction unde1 section SOJA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 The compimy is hopeful of a favourable m1tcomc for these 
Assessment Years In case of unfavourable decisions in appeal for A Y 2012-13 and A Y 2018-19, the U1x would be payable under nonnal tax and hence, MAT credi1 currently available 
wilh the Company will no longer be available As a result, in addition lo above contingent liability, lhe Company would require to pay additional tax of Rs 326 million w rt A Y 2019-20 
and A Y 2020-21 (These yca,s are not under litigation) because during these years the Company hfls utilised the MAT credit avi!ilcd during A Y 2012-13 to A Y 2018-1 9 
For AY 2009-10 i!nd AY 2010-11, Income tax cases on SOJA disallowanccs arc pending wilh Hon 'ble HC ofTelangana based on appcr1,l filed by 1hc department Against the ITAT-
1 fydcrabt1d aider, which were in favour of lhc Company Fulurc Cash munow in respect of above, if any, is dc1erminnble only on receipt of judgements/ decisions pending with rclcvnnl 
aulhorilies 

srv, A.s nr Asal 
30 Juuc 2021 ) I Morch 2021 

MllPPI. 92 92 
Sundcw 2 2 
lntimc 41 41 
KRIT 189 189 
Avacado 8 

332 J32 

i\l lll'Pl.i : TI,( SPV hu rc1.':ffl ved show c11m i! nnd tla1nnnd nflticcs for 1nchpiHm In 14Xi1hlc vi1h10 n11mmH~ ,~1.,"?'lvcd M rcl11i1Jmsc111c111 or c:l~1r11:hy and allied charges r1,nd demand sc,vicc 
lax 1hcrc 011 of Rs 92 million excluding applicable intere.sl and penally SPV has filled appropriate replies to the show cause and demand nolices 

Surulew: Demand !'or Non Payment of' service tax on tenting of l"ltouts and e(]uipments Rs 2 Million and Demand for Interest and Penally on account of wrong availrncnl of credit or 
sc-1vicc tax pai<l on input si..:1vices Rs O million SPV has riled an appeals with CESTA'I and matter is pending 

lnti111c : Demand for Non f>;iyment of service tax on renting of fitouls and equipments Rs 21 million i:tnd Demand fol' Se1vicc tax on cleclricity and wa1e1 ;ind i1reguh11 iivailmcnt of 
credit of service lax paid on input servi ces Rs 20 million SPV has flied an appeals wilh CESTAT and 111auer is pending 

KRIT Demand l'o1 Nun Pay111en t or sc1vice tax rn, renting ot' Ii louts ;ind C(1uiprncnts Rs 96 million an<l Demand fo1 Sc1vice tax on electricity /\lld water ancl irregular nvttil111ent of c1cd it 
of service tax 1>aid on in1>ut services Rs 93 million SPV has filed an appeals wilh CESTAT and maue1 is pending 

Av:,cndo: (a) Tl1c SPY lrns received a11 01der dated ] I Janunry 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appct1ls), confl1111ing the se1vice tax demand of' Rs 7 million (exch1Jing 
iipplicable inlcrcsl and penally lhcrcun) on renting ol' immovable property services provided lo lcnants du1ing the period Ap1 ii 2008 to Ma1 ch 2011 ·1 he Company has tiled an Appeal 
hi..:l'orc the Cu.~loms, Central Exdse & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal. The mancr is pending adjudication. 

(b) For 1hc subseql1cnt pc1 i~id April 20 11 to Scple111bcr 2011, lhc Comp;iny ha s received a Show Cause cum Demand Notice dated 22 Oc1obe1 2012 alleging non-payment or service tax 
o!' Rs I million (excluding applicable i11tc1cst and penalty thereon) on renting or immovable property services p1ovided to tenants lhc Co111pany has tiled its detailed reply on 24 
Dccc111be1 2012 No li.uthc1 c.:nirespoi1de11cc has been 1eccivcU in lhis case 

For both the above mf!tte rs, the Company has riled applications in Form SVLDRS-1 undc1 the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019 The Company has 1cccived 
SVLDRS-3 with service lax demand in rcspecl of above mailers The Company has not accepted the demand and is evaluating the further course of action 

Customs duty demand at 1he time of dcbonding of assets from the Software Technology Parks or India scheme ( STPI ) for Inti me Rs 16 million and KRIT Rs 9 million 

The SPV wise details of capital commitrnenls arc as follows: 

SPVs 

Mlll'PL 
Gigaplcx 
Sun<lcw 
KRC Infra 
1 lolizonvicw 
KIUT 
Avacado 
lntimc 

43 

As al 
30 June 2021 

483 
953 
319 

2,747 
140 
318 

96 

5,057 

J\ :t at 
3 I March 2021 

404 
938 
434 

2,640 
167 
301 
102 

4 986 



MINDSPACE IIUSINJcSS PAl!KS REIT 
l!N: IN/l!lclT/19-20/003 
c:oudcnsccl Cousoli<lnlcd Finnncinl Stnlcmculs 
Notes to Accounts 
(All nmounls in Rs. million unless olhc1wisc stnlcd) 

AvffClHIO 

II ) I\ Suit has hccn filed in the year 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadia (Plaintifl) against lvo1y Properties and I lotcls Private Limited (Ivory) & Others whi ch i11cludl!s the Company as one ol'thc 
Defendants inter alia in respect ufthe land and the 'Pl\rndigm' Industrial Park building of the Company The PlaintifThas prayed against the Compirny and the said lvo1y 1cslri'lini11g them 
fiom carrying out funhcr construction or any other activity on the land (on which the building Paradigm is constructed), demolition and 1emoval of lhc stn,ctures on rhc said land. 
appointment of a Court Receiver in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring Lhe MOUs I Agrecmenls entered into by the Company wi1h Ivory and the Plaintiff as 
voidable and having been avoided and 1escinded by the Plaintiff and to be delivered up and cancelled, restraining from alienating, encumbering or parting with possession ofstructu1cs 
and restraining from dealing with, creating fresh leases/ licenses or renewing lease/ license in respect of the said Paradigm building and from receiving or recovering any rent/ li cense 
rec/ compensation in respect of the said leases/ licenses, depositing all the 1ents in the Court, etc The Court has not granted any ad-interim relief to the Plaintiff The Company lrni: tiled 
its reply to the sRid Suit denying the allegations and praying that no interim relief be granted to !he Plaintiff. The Company in its reply has also taken up a pica that issue of limitation 
should he decided as a p1elit11inary issue before any interim relief could be granted to the Plaintiff. Pursuant to lhe Plaintiffs application for expedited hearing of the case, fhe Hon'ble 
I ligh Court Bombay vidc an Order dated 19/09/2013 and 20/09/2013 framed the issue of limitation under section 9 (A) of Code of Civil Procedure lo be tried as to jurisdiction for the 
maintainability of lhe suit and di1 ecled the PlaintiIT lo file an affidavit in lieu of examination in chief of the first witness on or before 17/ I 0/2013 Pursuant to the Pio inti tr s SLP in the 
Supreme Court challenging the Orders of lhe Hon'ble High Court dated 19/09120 I 3 and 20109/2013, the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its Order dated 0811012013 stayed the operation of 
the aforesaid Orde1s and fu11hcr proceedings in the High Cm111 Suit No 414 of 2008 Thcreafler the Hon'ble Supreme Court by its O1dcr dated 25 August 2015 has ref'enccl the said Sl.P 
to a lhrcc Judge Hench to be posted along wilh SLP ( C) No 22438 ot 201 ~ I he ~c by lls Order dated 12 12 2018 disposed off the said SLP as infn.1cmous in view of deletion of Sc,1iun 
9A of the Civil Procedure Code by the Maharashlra Act 61 of2018 on 29 10 2018 In view of the subsequent amendment by the Stale ofMahaiashtra to the said provisions, pursuant to 
the Petitioners application LO restore the SLP by cancelling lhc Order dated 12 122018, by Judgement dated 4 102019, three Judge Bench of the SC held that u/s 9A CPC (Maharasht1a) 
question of limitation cannot be decided as a preliminary issue as to jurisdiction The SLP, applicalion for interim relief and the High court Suit a,c pending for the final heari11g 

Based on an advice oblainc<l from an indepcmlenl legal counsel, the management is confident lhat the Company will be able lo suiUtbly defend and the impact, if Rny, on the Ind AS 
linancial statements can be determined on disposal of the above Petition and accordingly, Incl AS Financial statements of the company have been prepared on a going concern basis 
Fl1rthcr, the Plaintiff, through his advocates & solicitors, had addressed letter dated 13 February, 2020 including to Mindspace REIT, the Managc1, the Trustee, the Sponsors, Avacado, 
Mr Ravi C Raheja, Mr Neel C Raheja, Mr Clrnnd1 u L Raheja, Ivory Properties t1nd KRCPL, expressing his objection to the proposed Offer and any actions concerning the building 
Paradigm located al Mindspacc Malad project ·1 he allegations and averrnents made by the Plaintiff have been responded and denied by the addressees, through their advocales & 
solicitrns No fur1her correspon<l1:nce has been 1eccivcd 

b) Pursuant to the levy of sc1vicc tax on 1enting or immovable prope1ties given for commercial use, retrospectively with elTect from I June 2007 by the rinance Act, 2010, some of the 
lessees to whom the Company has le! out its premises, have based on a legttl advice, challenged the said levy and, intcr-alia, its retrospective application and withheld payment of se1vice 
tax to !he Company, based on certain judicial pronouncements and stay orders granted by Hppropriate High Courts from time to time Fmthcr in this 1egard the Hon'ble Supreme Cou1t 
has passed an interim mde1 dated 14th Octobc1, 2011 in Civil appeal nos 8390, 8391-8393 of20l I and in compliance of which, sl1ch lessees have deposited with appropriate authorily in 
] inst11llments, 50% of the amount such service tax nol so paid hy them upto 30 Seplember 2011 and have furnished surety for the balance 50¾ of the amount of service tax and which 
amount has also been deposited by them with the aulhorities Further as per llon'blc Supreme Court's Order dated 5th April 2018 in Civil Appeal No (s) 4487/2010, the mallc1 is 
deferred until disposal of the issues pending before the nine judges Bench in Minernl Arca Development Authorily and others 
In view of1hc above and subject to the final ordc1s being passed by the Hon 'blc Su1>reme Court in the aforesaid appeals, there may be a contingent liability on the Company in rcspe(I of 
i11le1est payable on accoum ot'the delayed payment of service rnx, which amount wmdd be recoverable from the respective lessees by the Company 

KRC lnfrn 
In 1espec1 of the Company's project at Village Kharadi, Punc, a special civil suit is flied rhc suit filed by Ashok Phulchand Bhan<lari against Balasaheb L.axman Shi vale amJ 29 others in 
,cspcct of inter alit1 an undivided share <tdmeasuring 44 15 Arcs out of the land bearing S No 65 l lissa No 3 for declarntion, specific pe1formance, irtjunction and other reliefs Neither 
Gc1a Developments Private l.imitcd nor KRC lntiaslnicture and P1ojccts P1iva1c I ,imited is a party to the aforementioned suit and neither· of them have filed any inLc1vc11tio11 application 
'f here r1rc no orders passed in the mailer affecting the suil lands or the development thereof or restraining the transfer or development of the aforesaid land in r111y 111anne1 whatsoever 
Ashok Phulclrnnd Blrnndari's application to add legal 1ep1csc111ativcs of deceased Dcfc11da11t No I has been allowed The mallcr is currently pending 

MRPPL 
:1 ) Puisuant Lo lhc clcrncrgcr and vesting of the Coinmcrzonc Unde1tRking of K Raheja Corp Pvt Lt<l (KRCPL), in the Company MB PPL, the company MBPPI, is the ow11e1 to the extent or 

R8 16 % undivided right tiLlc and interest in the land bea1ing S No 144, 145 Ycrawada, Punc which is compiiscd in the said U11clcrtaking "Shrimant Chhat1apt1ti Udayan Raje Bhos11le 
(''the Plaintiff') has filed a Special Civil Sui I bcaling No 13] or 2009 in 1hc Court of Civil Judge, Senior Division Pune against the erstwhile lt1ncl Owner Shri Mukund Bhavan rrusl 
(who liacl cnlrusLccl devclop111 enl rights to MBPPLJ and the Slate of Maharasht ra, claiming to be the owner of the said 11,nd The llon'ble Court was plet1sed to rcjccl lhc Application 1'01 
amendment of plaint file<l by rhe Plain1iff and allow the Third Pany Applkarions on 14 11 ,2016 ·1 he Plaintiff has liled two writ pe1i1ions bearing Nos 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 in the 
Bombay f ligh Cm1rt challenging the aforesaid 01<.Jers passed on 14 11 2016, The matter was 1ransfe1 red to another Court for administrative reasons and adjo11rncd 011 several occasions for 
compliance or the ordc1 by the Plaintiff. On 5th Man;h 2018 the Advocate for the Plt1intiff filed a pu1shis on record stating that since he docs not have any instructions in rhe maucr !'ram 
the Plaintiff, the Vakalr1t1111ma is being withdrawn by him and the matter was posted on 20th Ma1ch 2018 On 20th March 2018 the Hon'ble Cour1 was pleased to adjm1rn the matter till 
22nd June 2018 since the Advocate for the Plaintiff had withd1aw11 the Vakalatnama and lhe Plaintiff was not represented by any Advocate Writ Petition Nos 441S/2017 and 4268/2017 
tiled in the llon'blc Bombay High Collll challenging the orde1s dated 141h November 2016 by Shlimanl Chat1apati Udayamaje Bhosale againsl Slui Mukund Bhavan Trusl and olhers 
came up for hearing on 28 November 2017 wherein the Advoct1te for the Petitioner undertook to serve the copy of the petition on the Respondent No 2 i e State of Maharashtra and fhc 
I lon'ble High Court was pleased to adjourn the same till 1601 2018, 26 022018, 22 062018 On 22 062018 the Advocate for the Defendant No I filed a purshis slating tlrnt the 
Defendant No I (a) expired matter was furtheradjourned till 24 IO 18, 26 11 18, 21 12 18, O 1,02 20 I 9, 25 OJ 20 I 9 and 15 042019, I 8 062019, 27 082019, 19 09 2019 On I 9 092019 
the malter has been stayed by the I-Ion 'ble Cou11 and further posted on 11 11 2019 for compliance of the order dated 14 11 2016 by the Plaintiff rhc mallcr has been stayed under Sec IO 
of Code of Civil Procedure On 07 04 2020 the matter has been further adjourned till 11 06 2020 On 11 06 2020 the matter was further adjourned till 11 09 2020 and lhc same has now 
been fmthcr adjourned 1ill 0-4 12 2020 On 04 12 20 the maucr was fur1hcr adjowncd lill 24 02 21 Ou 24 02 21, the mallcr was further adjourned on 09 07 21 and is now posted on 
1'109 21 Both the Writ Petitions were posted on 21 09 18, 11 10 18, 22 10 18 and further posted on 10 06 19 fo1 Admission The matters cr1rnc on board on 20 06 2019, 14 It 2019, 
15 01 20l9 and 21022019 As per the CMIS Writ Petition No 4415/2017 was last posted on 27 OJ 2020 and is yet not listed As per the CMIS Writ Petition No 4268/2017 was last 
posLed on 27,03 2020 and Lhc1cafte1 on 23 07 20 fo1 Admission and is yet not listed In the management's view, as pc1 legal advice, consideling the matter and the l'ac1s, 110 provision for 
Hny loss/ liability is presently required to be made 

b) Maharashtra Stale Electricity Distribution Company Limited (MSEDCL) hr1d sent a lclter and subsequently, a show cause notice as to why the K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd (KRCPL) (of 
which the Commerzonc Unde11aki11g is dcmcrged in the SPY MU PPL) should not be penalised for alleged laying of cable without obtaining proper pcnnission fiom the P11nc Municipal 
Corporation (PMC) and levied a penalty of Rs. 23 million on Ml3PPL. MB PPL has a<lcquatcly n:il'iphudcd to ~uc-h nll('gn lions. Punc M11 nlo.iJ)et l Ccqmmtmn fuu1 isM.1cd l l1 Nf.SEDCL (with fl 

cupy to MBPPI. amJ Panchasbil Corporate Park Pvt. Ltd . (Panchasil) stating that lhe penalty ht1 s b.ccn Wl\lved l1uwc.1,.•cr, Ji) ncc there has l.loe1Jl" vi nl111 io11 orJ•M r 11ppro\1t:d m.: nching policy 
the penalty of Rs 5 million is to be paid by Panchasil and MB PPL MllPPJ. has received leUt:r (i t)m MSEUt'l. 1ulf..fr~ssed to MBPPJ.. n.nd Pnn~hn,1htl to rJ-UY penally chn rgcs of Rs. 5 
mi Ill ions and complete the balance cable laying work on priorily by observing 1ules and regulations of MSEDCL. wi1h due permission from PMC MSEDCL sent a leucr to Panchashil 
and MBPPL p1oviding lhe bifurcation of penally of Rs 5 milllions and requesting Panchashil and MB PPL to make the payment at the earliest MB PPL has sent a reply leller informing 
MSEDCL that MB PPL is not liable to pay penalty of Rs 3 million and in respect of the penally of Rs. 2 milllions, MB PPL and Panchashil arc both jointly liable to pay the same MBPPI 
has fur1hcr requested MSEDCL to confilm on the same to enable MBPPL and Panchashil to discuss/negotiate on the same It is learnt that Panchshil made the payment or Rs 5 million ;is 
penalty charges to MSEDCL and completed the work of laying cable No provision is considered necessary at this stage 

c) The Company is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have r1tisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company's management does nol reasonably expect that these 
legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will hnvc a material and adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or financial condition. 
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d) MllPPL received a communication (alleged reminder) from Punc Municipal Co,porntion (PMC) demanding an amount ol' Rs 157 million allegedly due fiom MB PPL based 011 objections 
by intc1nal audit 1cpo11 of J>u11e Municipal Corporn.tion MB PPL, llas submitted a letter denying all allegation of PMC, as Mn PPL has not been sc1vcd with any document tclcncd to the 
said PMC letter Subscqucnlly MBPPL addressed one more communication stating th11t Ml3PPL would be in a position to submit their reply upon rcccipl of the details or arnounl 
demanded as per thci1 repl y submillcd which slates that if any principal outstanding is dL1e/recove1able, MB PPL agrees to make the said piiyment and sought detailed cla1ificatio11 on the 
in1e1es1 amount 

ltllimc, Sundcw Hnt.1 KIUT 
a) [11 accordance with the Scheme of arrangement which was approved by l lon'blc Andhra P1adesh High Court on 23 March 2007, the lndustlial Park II and Ill undcrt;ikings of K R(lhcjll 

IT Park (Hyderab;:id) Limited (fo1mcrly known as K Raheja IT Park (lfyderabad) Private Limited) ("KRIT", "JV Comp;iny 11
) have been demcrged and vested in the Company with effect 

from the appointed date i e O I September 2006 
The Company had acqui1ed the land at Madhapur, Hyderabad as pflrt or the deme1ger scheme from KRIT The said land is in lieu of the employment opponunities to be generated by 
KRn and others 
I he liability, if any, arising due to the obligation to create the job opportunities for the entire larger land of which lhe above property is a part, continues to be retained by KRIT as al JO 

June 2020 
Du1ing the year ended] I March 2016, Telangana Stflte Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("TSIIC"') has returned the original Rank Guflrnntecs to KRlT find c1lso confirmed to 
the bank that TSBC will not claim any :\mount from the bimk under the Bank Gua,an!efs 11nrl the hank is relieved of its obligation Hence. no liability is recognised towards the price of 
the plot of land 

b) An unconditional obligation to pay amounts due to Andhra Pradesh Industrial lnfrastrncture Corporation Limited ("APIIC") in respect of AP II C's claims of losses due 10 any difference in 
values pertaining to sale transactions of the project undertaken by KRIT Losses incurred by the Governmcnt/fSHC in its JV Company, if any, will be paid in full by K Raheja Corp Pvt 
Ltd and it has furnished to the JV Company in writing agreeing and admitting liability to make such payment lo Govemment/TSHC 
I he sha1eholding pattern or the GovcrnmenlffSIIC in the JV Company and the Company will not change as a result of conversion from Private to Public, the Government/ TSIIC CCJL1ity 
of 11% will remain the same in the Company and all the demcrged companies an<l fu11her in future, Government / TSIIC will not be asked to inrusc further cash to nrnintain its 11% 
stake 

Glgnplcx 
Regular Civil Suit had been liled before the Hon Civil Judge (JD) Vashi at Centrnl Business District by an Education Society ("the Plaintilr') who is claiming rights in existing school 
stnic1ure, claiming its area ns 500 square meters and ils existence since more than JO years, seeking an injunction not to dispossess him The Company has filed its reply opposing 1he 
PlnintifT's p1aycrs After bearing the parties, the llon'blc Judge at the Vashi Cm111 had rejected the Plaintiff's Injunction Application by Orde1 dated 20 08 18 (Order) ThereaOer the 
Plaintiff has filed an ;:ippcal in Thane Disirict Court The Plaintiff's Appeal filed in 'I hane District Court is still pending, it's next date is on 02 09 21 In management view, the estimate or 
liability arising out ol'll1e same is remote, no provision has been taken 

10 KIUT 

A W1it petition has been Hied ;:igainst the Company in the lligh Couit of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Ilyderabad wilh 1espcct to specific use oflhc land ad111easuring 4,500 sqLia1c 
yards, ea1marked HS plot 18 Pursuant to it, the Court has passed r1n Orde1 f01 no constniction activity upon the triangular piece of 2 acres 40 cents of land earlier identilied at the 1ime of 
atlotmenl as 'Common FaciliLy Centre' in the software layoul until forlher orders of the Comt IALA and APIIC have filed affidavits opposing the writ pctilion, conlirrning the allo1mcnt 
an<l rights or KRI \' in the Suit I and, and for vacating the Stay Orde1 The mallc1 is pending before the Court , GreRter Hyderabad Municipal Co1poration (''GI lf,,[C"') had !ilcd an 
application in the Court !'or clarificRtion that the Stay Order docs not prcc1L1dc GHMC from acquiring a portion of O 14 acres (approximately 567 square meters) for ro;:id wide11ing. 
Subsequently, GHMC has acquired the portion of land and constructed the road The mRller is pending for disposal by the High Court. Based on the facts of the case, the management 
docs not expect any liability and is of the 01>inion lhal no 1>rovision nee<.ls to be made 

11 llorilonvicw 
W S Industries (India) Limited ("WSJJL") has lilcd a writ petition before the Madras High Court against the Dist1ict Revenue Officer, ThiJL1vallu1 ("DRO") and J> Jcyapal S/o R 
Pc1urrndsamy ("Jcyapal") seeking directions for quashing a notice dated May 25, 2017 issued by the DRO and Additional District Judge ("Notice") The Notice was issl1cd by the DRO 
cum Addi1ional Disllicl Judye on a complaint presented by Jeyapal alleging that lands were handed over to WSIIL on certain conditions, and instead of using such lands fo1 common 
purpose, WSJIL. has been using the lands for commercial purpose. WSIIL is 1he erstwh llo t'tWIICI' of the land, a 11or1itm "(which WAS 1uMcq11ently sol tl b1uJ transfc tt«:d by \VSI IL to 
certain enlilies. 1-lorizonvicw has been granted development rights over such land. The htrh ,1" lll gh Court, by II~ on.ltu dll.t<!'ll J t111 C!' 5, '20 17. has granlc(I Interim ,mv. The 1111\1 1\.l r is 
pending befote the Madras I ligh Court Neither RPII . Signalling Systems Limited (the p1escnl nw11c:r of the lnnd at l ' l'IIUI 1.,cJnli dc,1olopcd by I lurl zonvicw f' rot>c rties l'ri\'IUc l,i11llh!1,I} nor 
I lo,izonview Properties P1i vatc l.imiled is a paity 10 lhe ;,forcmentioncd suit 

I~ Snndcw 
l'hc Ollice of' the l.c111d Reforms Tribunal Cum Deputy Collector & Special Giade Revenue Divisional Ofliccr, Altapur ("Tribunal") had, by letter dated 27 August 2009, sm1ght 
information from the Compi1ny undc, S~ction 8(2) of the Andhia Pradesh I.,rnd Rcfo1ms (Ceiling on Agliculture Holdings) Acl, 1973 ("APLRAC") in respect ol' the cnti1e land pa1ccl al 
Mindspace Madhapu1 

The Revenue Department ot' the Government of Andhra Pradesh fo1 warded a Memo dated 5 September 2009 for furnishing of certain information to the Government ol Andhra P1adesh, 
including information requested by 1he letter dated 27 August 2009. The Company had filed a Uctnlfed response on 30 Scp1cmbcr 2009 sw ting I hat (a) 1hc luml wu ol'iijinally H~ ntcd hy 
1he Government of Andhra Pradesh to K Raheja IT Park 1-lydcraba<.I Limited (KRIT) which was n joinl venture compa.ny With Andhn1 Pradesh lncl1 l~Oml llrfrn'lln10turc ( 'Qrlloralion 
Limited, (b) the land was vested in the Company by way of demcrgcr order of the Andhra Pradc.511 I Ugh Court, (c) the lt! ru1 hnJI been dL'Clnrcd as an SE/, 11ml •~ 1hc~ron! exempl from the 
local laws; (d) the land WAS shown as a non-agricultural land in the master plan of Hyderabad and is therefore not ''land" covered under the Af>LRAC The Tribunal issued a 11nal notice 
to the Company in Janua1y 2012 1equesting to submit ll decla1ation for full and correct particulr1rs of the lands held The matter is currently pending before the Tribunal 

45 Assessment of possible impact resulting from Covid-19 pnndemic 
The Mindspace Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating lo COVlD-19 on the operations of the Mindspace Group and cn11ying amou11ts or 
properly, plant and equipmcnl, lnvcstmenl Property, Inventories, 1cccivables and other assets The Mindspace Group, as at lhe date of approval of these condensed consolida1ed financial 
stlllcments, has used internal Rnd external sources of information ro determine the expected future imp11ct of COVID-19 pandemic on the performance of the Mindspacc Group The 
Mindspace Group based 011 current estimates expects the canying ;imount of the assets to be recovered . However, due to the evolving nature of the pandemic and its response by various 
government authorities the Management will continue to monitor developments to i<lcnlitY ~igni!icm\l impacts, if any, on the Mindspace Group·~ operations 

.J6 M111111ge111ent Fees 
Pro11erty Mnnngement Fee 
Pu1suant to the Jnveslmcnt Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to recs@ 3% of the total rent ( lease and litOL1t) per anm11n ol' the relev;1nt 
p10Jlerty in respect to operations, nrninlcnance and management of 1he SPVs, as ;,pplicable The fees has been determined 10 meel the ongoing costs of the Investment Manage, to 
undertake the services provided 10 the SPVs 
Property Management fees !'or the quarter ended 30 Jline 202 I amounts to Rs 89 million There are no changes during the period in the methodology for compulation or fees paid to the 
Manage, 

Su1)1Jort Services Fee 
PufSL1ant to the Jnvcstme111 Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees@ 0,5% of the total rent ( lease and fitout) per annum of tile relevant 
property in resµccl to gcnc1a\ administr-alion and other support service of the Sf>Vs, as applicable The fees h;:is been determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager lo 
unde11akc the services p1ovided to the SPVs 
Support Mnnagcmcnt fees for the quarter ended JO June 2021 amounls to Rs 15 million There fire no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid tu 1he 
Manager 
1u;:1T MnnaJl:Cment Fees 
Pursuant to the Investment Management Ag1ecment dated 21 November 2019, Investment Manager is entitled to fees@ 0 5% or REIT Nel Distributable Cash Flows which shall be 
payable eilher in cash or in Uni ls or a combi,rntion of bolh, at the discretion of the Investment Manager The fees hJ1s been determined for underlaking managcmcn1 of the REIT and its 
investments. The REIT Mam,gement fees accrued for the quar1er ended 30 June 202 I arc R.( 16 millio11 There are no changes during the pcliod in the methodology for computation of 
foes paid to the Investment Manager 
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47 Octal S II 111 Ill i ar,011 o nrocccils o b De cnturcs arc as f II 0 ows: 
Particulars 

Provic.hrtg lmmN lo lh~ Sl'Vs Io, 11u:c1i11g 1hd1 Cllll~II IIClifln 1clu1ud 
expenses, wurk1 111, cap,rnl nr general corp(1mrc rcqu1 rcm~nt,. rc11:1)nncn1 ol 
li nn11cml i11clcb1ncs~. gcnc111l co1·11or ,1c purposes 1ncludrn • pa mcm or Ices 
1nnd C,~(J 'll!lCS in C()nll . ·111111 vl1h 1h • l•~l,c, 11.:quisi1lo11 ur C<JllllllCl'ClO I 
propur11cs or ~uch 01hcr p1lrpo;c~ n~ 8ilp1tl n1cd In tile 1rn11sn~tt o11 
Lloc11ntcn1s 

48 Earnings Per llnit (EPU) 

Proposed Actual utilisation tin utilised 
utilisation upto amount as at 

30 June 2021 30 June 2021 

11.500 11.500 

Basic EPU amounls are calculated by dividing the proflt/(loss) for the period attributable 10 Mindspace REIT by the weighted average 
number of units outstanding during lhe period Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to Mindspace REIT 
by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. The Units of the Trust were allotted to Sponsor Group and 
Blackstone entities on 30 July 2020 and to the applicants of initial public offer on 4 August 2020. 

Pa rticu la rs For the quarter For the quarter l'or the quarter For the year ended 
ended ended ended 31 March 2021 

30 ,lune, 2021 31 March, 2021 30 June, 2020 

Profit/ (loss) after lax for calculating basic 
und diluted EPU allributable to Mindspace 
REIT 414 1,144 (5) 3,075 

Weighted average number of units 593 593 Not Applicable 398 
(no in million) 

Earnings Per Unit 
- Basic (Rupees/unit) 0.70 1.93 Not Applicable 7 74 
- Di lured ( Ruoccs1unit) • 0.70 I 93 Not Applicable 7.74 

"'Mindspacc REIT docs not have irny outstanding dilutive units 
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49 Financial instruments 
A The carrying value of financial instruments by categories arc as below: 

Financial assets 

Fair value throu~h Other Comprehensive Income ('FVTOCI') 
Investments in equity instruments 

Amortised cost 
Investments - non-current 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Other linancial ass..:ts 

Total assets 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 
Lease Liabilities 
Security deposits 
Trade payables 
Other linancial liab ili ties 
Total liabilities 

As at As at 
30 June 2021 31 March 2021 

0 0 

22 18 
278 214 

3,368 3,539 
139 123 

3,085 3,056 

6 892 6 950 

39,823 37,554 
192 189 

7,566 7,598 
798 865 

2,704 2,593 
51 083 48.799 

The Management considers that the carrying amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value 

B. Measurement of fair values 
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that arc: 
a) recognised and measured at fair value 
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. 
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into 
the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard An explanation of each level is mentioned below: 

Fnir vnlue hierarchy 
• I.eve! 1 inputs are quoted rriccs (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities lhat lhe enlity can access at the measurement 
date; 

• Level 2 inputs arc inputs, other Lhan quoted prices included within Level I, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 01 

indirectly; and 

• Level 3 inputs arc unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 

The following table rresents the rair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as al 
30 June 2021 . 

Financial instruments 

Quantitative disclosures rair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2021 . 

Particulars Date of valuation Total Level I Level 2 Level 3 

Financial assets measured at fair value: 

f'VTOCI linancial investments: 

c) Transfers between Level I, Level 2 nnd Level 3 
There were no transfers between Level I, Level 2 or Level 3 during the period. 

d) Determination of fair values 

30-06-2021 0 0 

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods 
When applicable, runher information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or 
liability. 
i) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values. 
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50 Segment information 
The Mindspacc Group is organised inlo the two operating divisions - 'real estate' and 'power distribution', which are determined based on ll1c 
internal organisation and management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nalure or its risks 
and its returns. The Governing Board or the manager has been identified as lhe chief operating decision maker (CODM). CODM evaluates the 
Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below. 

Primary segment information 

The primary reportable segment is business segmenl. 

Real estate 

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other 
commercial assets .The Group has its project/properties in Mumbai, Hyderabad, Pune and Chcnnai for development and managcmcnl of 
commercial SEZ and IT parks. 

Power distribution 

The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee l'or 
Power. The approv.:d SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ. 

For the quarter encJed JO June 2021 

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total 
Particulars distribution elimination 
Segment revenue 4,081 153 - (37) 4,197 
Segment result 2,656 28 ( 110) - 2,574 
Less: finance eosl 67 (0) 532 - 599 
Add : Interest income/ other income 15 0 10 - 25 
Profit/ (Loss) before exeeplional items 
and tax 2,603 28 (632) - 1,999 
Less: Exceptional Items (refer nolc 54) (1,332) - - (1 ,332) 
Profit / (loss) bcfort: tax 1,271 28 (632) - 667 
l.css: Tax - 285 - 285 
Profit/ (Loss) a rter tax 1,271 28 (917) - 382 

For the quarter ended JI March 2021 

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total 
Particulars distribution elimination 
Segment revenue 4,205 I 8 I - (46) 4,340 
Segment result 2,553 8 (249) - 2,312 
Less: finance cost 89 I 517 - 607 
Add : Interest income/ other income 40 0 88 - ]28 
Profil / (Loss) before tax 2,504 7 (678) - 1,833 
Tax - - 567 - 567 
Profit / (Loss) after tax 2,504 7 ( 1-.246) - 1.266 

For the year endecJ JI March 2021 

Real estate Power llnallocable Inter segment Total 
Particuhtrs cJistribution elimination 
Segment revenue I 1,045 460 - ( 124) 11 ,381 
Segment result 6,761 3 (447) - 6,317 
Less: Finance cosl 188 I 1,519 . 1,707 
Add: Interest income/ other income 62 0 122 - 184 
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 6,636 2 (1,844) - 4,794 
Tax - - 1,445 - 1,445 
Profit/ (Loss) after tax 6,636 2 (3,289) . 3,349 
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For the quarter ended 30 June 2021 

Other Information 

Particulars 
Segment assets 
Segment liabilities 
Capital expenditure 
Depreciation & amortisation 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

Other Information 

Particulnrs 
Segment assets 
Segment liabilities 
Capital expenditure 
Dcnrecialion & amortisation 

For the quarter ended 30 .lune 2020 

Real estate 

2, 13,400 
10,653 

968 
724 

Real estate 

2, 14,065 
10,923 
4,037 
1,910 

Power 
distribution 

1,645 
1,186 

0 
20 

Power 
distrihution 

1,712 
1,321 

0 
54 

Unallocable Inter segment Totnl 
elimination 

6,989 - 2,22,034 
40,765 - 52,604 

- - 968 
- - 744 

Unallocable Inter segment Total 
elimination 

6,941 - 2,22,7 I 8 
38,340 - 50,584 

. . 4,037 

. . 1,964 

Mindspacc REIT did nol had any Operating segments as at 30 June 2020 as SPVs were acquired on 30 July 2020. Accordingly, disclosure 
under Ind AS 108, Operating segments for quarter ended 30 June 2020 is not applicable. 

Secondary segment information 
Mindspace Group's operations are based in India and therefore the Group has only one geographical segment - India. 

Segment accounting policies arc in line with accounting policies of the Mindspace Group. In addition, the following specific accounting 
policies have been l'ollowed for segment reporting: 

Segment revenue includes income directly allributablc lo the segment. 

Revenue and expenses directly attributable lo segments arc reported under respective reportable segment. 

Revenue and expenses which are 1101 allributablc or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable'. 

Borrowings and finance cost of the Group which are not allributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable'. 

SPV ' WISC rev en ne rom 111:1,101· customers: 
Quarter ended 30 Year ended 31 

Entity June 2021 March 2021 
MBPPL 179 439 
Gigaplex 258 704 
Sundew 127 329 
lntime 207 552 
KRIT 272 1,025 
KRC Infra 241 903 
I lorizonview 8 8 
Avacado 139 383 
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51 Non-controlling interest 

Name of the entity 

Parent 
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

SPVs 
lntime Properties Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Consolidated net Hs8clsl Total comprehensive income 

For the period ended 30 June 2021 
Net assets Shnrr in total comprehensive income 

As a % of Amount As a% of Amount 
consolidated net consolidated total 

nssets comprehensive 
income 

94.8% 1,60,592 108 .5% 414 

1.1% 1,826 6.2% 24 
1.7% 2,903 (29.2%) (111) 
2.4% 4,109 14.5% 55 

!00 % 1,69,4311 I 00'1/• 382 

The following table summarises the financial information relating to subsidiaries which have material Non-controlling interest. 

(i) lntime Properties Limited 

Summarised balance sheet 

Particulars 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Net assets 
NCI holdings 
Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests 

Summarised stntem cnt of profit & loss nnd Cash now 
Parlit'11lnrs 

Tola I comprehensive income for the period 

Attributable to Non-controlling interest 
Total comprehensive income for the period 

Cash flows from/ (used in) : 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivnlcnts 

\ii) K. Rnheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 

Summarised bnlnnce sheet 

Particulars 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Net assets 
l'IICI holdings 
Carrying amount ofNon-eontrolling interests 

As nt 
30 June 2021 

17,204 
164 

(106) 
(661) 

16,601 
11.0% 

1,826 

For the period 
ended 

30 June 2021 

216 

24 

17 
so 

(63) 
4 

As at 
30 June 2021 

50 

27,581 
202 

(234) 
(1,161) 
26,388 
11.0% 
2,903 

Asal 
3 1 March 2021 

17,664 
95 

(107) 
(696) 

16,956 
11.0% 
1,865 

For the year 
ended 

3 1 March 2021 

605 

67 

59 
58 

( 116) 
1 

As at 
31 March 2021 

29,165 
121 

( 198) 
(917) 

28,171 
11.0% 
3,099 
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Summarised statement of profit & loss and Cash flow 
Particulars 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Attributable to Non-controlling interest 
Total comprehensive income for the period 

Cash flows from: 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 
Net increase in cash and cash equivnlents 

(iii) Sundew Properties Limited 

Summnrised balance sheet 

Particulars 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Net assets 
NCI holdings 
Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests 

Summarised statement of profit & loss and Cash flow 

Particulars 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Attrihutnblc to Non-controlling interest 
Total comprehensive income for the period 

Cash nows from/ (used in) : 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Tnto l carrying 111noun1 of <:I 

For the period 
ended 

30 June 2021 

(1,014) 

(II I) 

17 
42 

(8S) 

(26) 

As at 
30 June 2021 

48,872 
594 

(9,503) 
(2,617) 
37,346 
11.0% 
4, !09 

For the period 
ended 

30 June 2021 

S04 

S5 

4S 
9 

(%) 

(42) 

8,838 

51 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2021 

As at 

739 

81 

73 
69 

(150) 
(8) 

3 I March 2021 

48,910 
407 

(9,337) 

(2.357) 
37,623 
11.0% 
4 , 140 

For the year 
ended 

3 I March 2021 

1,149 

126 

140 
652 

(759) 
33 

9,104 
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52 Relnted Pnrty Disclosures 

A, Parlics to MlndspHce Rt:IT as Ht JO June, 2021 (Rcfor Note 1) 

SI. No . Pnrtlculnr.!t Nnmc of Entities 
I 'l'•ufih 'l' Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Sponsors Anbee Const1 uctions LLP 

2 

....___ 
Cape Trading LLP 

J 

4 
MAnAgcr K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

s ISpmi,un Group Mr Chandru L Raheja 
,_ (rcrr:r note below} 

,__L Mr Ravi C Rahe;• 
7 Mr Neel C Rahe;• 

1-
Mrs Jyoti C Rahe;a _ R_ 
Capstan Trading LLP 

'I 

-- Casa Maria Properties LLP 

10 

Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 

11 

-- Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 

12 

-- K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd 

13 

,_ 
lnorbit Malls (India) Private Limited (till 30 July 2020) 

14 

~ 

Promoters/Pnrlners "" Directors 

-
Mr Ravi C Raheja 
Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Mr Ravi C Raheja -
Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Mr Rav, C Raheja 
Mr Neel C Raheja 

-
Mr, Ravi C Raheja 
Mr. Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja 
Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Mr Ravi C Raheja 
Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Mr Ravi C Raheja -
Mr Neel C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Ravi C Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Neel C RaheJ a 

Ramesh Valccha 

Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Jointly with Vinod Rohira 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Casa Maria P1operties LLP 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 
Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Ramesh M Valecha 

Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Ravi C Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Neel C Raheja 

Sunil Hingorani 

Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C. Raheja 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Anbee Conslructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Casa Maria Properties LLP 
Raghukool Eslate Developement LLP 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 
Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Ramesh M Valecha 
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvl Ud 
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 
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52 Reln1ec.J Parly Disclosures 

A, Pnrlies lo Mindspsce REIT ns nf 30 June, 2021 (Refer Note l) 

SI. No, Pnrtkulnrs Nnmc or EutiJie., 
Ivory Properties and Hotels Private Limited (lill 30 
July 2020) 

15 

-- K Raheja Private Limited (till 30 July 2020) 

16 

Ivory Property Trusl 

17 

- Genext Haidware & Parks Pvt Lid 

18 

Promoters/Partners 1111 Director~ 

Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Rav, C Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Neel C Raheja 

Ramesh Valecha 
Mrs Jyoli C Raheja Jointly with Vinod Rohira 

Mr Chandru L Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Casa Maria Properties LLP 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 

Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja 

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Ravi C Raheja 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with Neel C Raheja 

Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Vinod Rohira 

Mrs Jyoti C Raheja 

Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Casa Maria Propcriies LLP 
Raghukool Estate Dcvelopement LLP 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLI' 

Chandru L Raheja 
Jyoti C Raheja 
Ivory Propert ies & Hotels Pvt Lid 
Ravi C Raheja 
Neel C Raheja 
(all are trustees) 
Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly wilh Ravi C Raheja 
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Neel C Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Ramesh Valecha 

Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with 
Mr Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs Jyot i C Raheja 
Chandru L Raheja jointly with Jyoti C Raheja, 
behalf of beneficiaries of Ivory Property Trust 
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52 Rclntcd Pnrty Disclosures 

A. PArtles to Mindspncc REIT as Hf 30 Jun~. 2021 {R.crcr Note I) 

SI. No, Pnrtic11Jnrs Nmuc of Entitles Promotcrs/Pnrtners"' 

19 

20 

21 

Names of SPVs 

Governing Bomd and Key 
Manage1 ial Personnel ol lhe 
Mana~c• (K Raticja Corp 
In vestment Managc1 s LLP l 

Entilies controlled/jointly 
controlled b} members or 
Governing Board 

• ~,1d .~ when acting collectively 

I Avocado Properties and Trading ([ndia) Private 
Limited 

2 Gigaplcx Estate Private Limited 

3 Horizonview Properties Private Limited 

4 KRC lnfrastruclUre and Projects Private Limi1ed 

5 lnlime Properties Limited 

6 Sundew Properties Lim ited 

7 K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 

8 Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 

9 Dices Realcon Private Limited (upto 19th February, 
2021) 

10 Educator Protcch Private Limited (upto 19th 
Pebruary, 2021) 

11 Happy Eastcon Private Limited (upto 4th February, 
2021) 

12 Sampada fa1stpro Private Limited (upto 17th March, 
202 I l 

(itt\1l!1'11(11g 001,rd 
M, Deepak Ghaisas 
Ms Manisha Girotra 
Mr Bobby Parikh 
M, Alan Miyasaki 
Mr Ravi C Raheja 
M, Neel C Raheja 

Kt >' Mmwl!arlol l1epmnul'I 
Mr. Vinod Rohira 
Ms Preeti Chhcda 

Brookficlds Agro & Development Private Limited 
Cavalcade Properties Private Limited 
GranHe Hotels And Properties P1 ivatc Limited 
Immense Proper1ics Private Lirrntcd 
Novel Properties Private Limited 
Pact Real Estate Private Limited 
Paradigm I ogistics & Distribution P1ivate Limited 

Susrnin Properties P1ivatc Limilcd 
Aqualine Real E~tatt! Private Lnnitcd 
Feat Properties Pri vate Limited 
Cm in Properties Pt ivate Limited 
Asteropc Properties Private Limited 
ContmH P1opertics Private Limited 
Grandwell Properties And Leasing Private Limited 
Sundew Real Estate Private Li1nitcd 
Mis Bobby Parikh c1nd Associates 
Gencoval Strategic Services Pvt Ltd 
Stemadc Biotech P1 ivatc Limited 
Hariom lnfrafacilities Services Private Limited 
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52 Related pnrty disclosures 

8, Rell1ted parties with whom the transRctions have taken place during the period/ year 

Particulars 

Project M11n11gement Fees 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Investment Management Fees 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Trustee fee expenses 
Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Legal & proressional recs 
M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates 

Interest income 
Ivory Property Trust 

Rent expense 
Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd. 

Sitting Fees 
Neel C Raheja 
Ravi C Raheja 
Vinod N. Rohira 
l'reeti Chheda 

Lonn repnid 
Ivory Property Trust 

Reimbursement of Expenses 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP* 

30 June 2021 

104 

16 

3 

0 
0 
0 
0 

3 

Quarter ended 

3 I March 2021 

110 

17 

0 

3 

0 
0 
0 
0 

30 June 2020 

For year ended 

31 March 2021 

282 

34 

2 

7 

19 

8 

0 
0 
0 
0 

3150 

61 

*Includes fees paid to M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates amounting to Rs. I million for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 and Rs 0.48 
million for the year ended 31 March 2021 . 
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52 Related party disclosures 

B. Related parties with whom the tnnsactions have taken place during the period/ year 

Particulars 

1'11ymcnl lu Sponsor Group comp1111ics in 
relation to Offer for Sale 

Chandru L Raheja 
Jyoti C Raheja 
Ravi C Raheja 
Neel C Raheja 
Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited 
lnorbit Malls (India) Private Limited 
Ivory Properties And Hotels Private Limited 
Ivory Property Trust 
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 
K. Raheja Private Limited 

Issue of Unit capital 
An bee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Casa Maria Properties LLP 
Chandru L. Raheja 
Gcnext Hardware & Parks Private Limited 
lnorbit Malls (I) Private Limited 
Ivory Properties & Hotels Private Limited 
Ivory Property Trnst 
Jyoti C. Raheja 
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 
K Raheja Private Limited 
Neel C. Raheja 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 
Ravi C. Raheja 

Quarter ended 

30 June 2021 31 March 2021 

56 

30 June 2020 

For year ended 

31 March 2021 

10 
1,139 
1,180 
1,180 

958 
1,506 
3,387 

10,357 
4,304 
2,852 

9,736 
9,736 

11,301 
11,30 I 
8,984 
7,274 
1,541 
3,466 

13,008 
3,912 

14,468 
2,918 
5,845 

11,30 I 
9,958 
5,846 
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52 Related party clisclosurcs 

C. Balances as at periocl encl 

Particulars 

Other Receivable 
Vinod N Rohira 

Tracle Payables 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
Mis Bobby Parikh and Associates 
Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd. 

Sitting Fees Payable 
Neel C.Raheja 
Ravi C.Raheja 
l'reeti Chheda 
Vinod N Rohira 

Other Financial Liabilities 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Security Deposit 
K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd. 

Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus 
Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 

Ason 
30 June 2021 

0 

42 
I 
3 

0 
0 
0 
0 

19 

2 

0 
0 

As on 
3 I March 2021 

0 

40 
0 

0 
0 
0 

17 

2 

0 
0 

53 The figures for the quarter ended 31 March 2021 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 
31 March 2021 and the published year-to-date figures up to 31 December 2020, which were subject to limited review. 

54 KRIT is proposing lo redevelop Buildings I A and I Bat Mindspace, Madhapur, Hyderabad. Vacation of these buildings by the 
tenant, provided the SPY an opportunity to evaluate the possibility of redevelopment which would potentially increase the area 
of the building, help incorporating new upgraded facilities, enhance the marketability of the buildings and also offer future 
consolidation opportunities to existing tenants in the Park with continuity and growth. Basis the assessment by the SPY of the 
opportunity and concurrence from the Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd. (TSIIC) vide its letter dated 
June 23, 2021, the SPY proposes to redevelop the said buildings subject to the receipt of statutory approvals & clearances as 
may be required for the proposed redevelopment. Accordingly, the Mindspace Group has charged the written down value of the 
said buildings, plant and machinery and other assets in relation to the buildings aggregating lo Rs.1,332 million to the Condensed 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosed as Exceptional Item. 

55 Previous period figures have been regrouped, as considered necessary, to conform with current period presentation. 

56 "0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million. 
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